

                    CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 


 


                              15728 Main Street, Mill Creek, WA 98012 (425) 745-1891 


  
 


  


 


Pam Pruitt, Mayor • Brian Holtzclaw, Mayor Pro Tem 


Mark Bond • Mike Todd • Vince Cavaleri • Jared Mead • John Steckler 


   


 


Regular meetings of the Mill Creek City Council shall be held on the first, second and fourth Tuesdays of 
each month commencing at 6:00 p.m. in the Mill Creek Council Chambers located at 15728 Main Street, Mill 
Creek, Washington. Your participation and interest in these meetings are encouraged and very much 
appreciated. We are trying to make our public meetings accessible to all members of the public. If you 
require special accommodations, please call the office of the Acting City Clerk at (425) 921-5725 three days 
prior to the meeting.  


 


The City Council may consider and act on any matter called to its attention at such meetings, whether or not 
specified on the agenda for said meeting. Participation by members of the audience will be allowed as set 
forth on the meeting agenda or as determined by the Mayor or the City Council.  


 


To comment on subjects listed on or not on the agenda, ask to be recognized during the Audience 
Communication portion of the agenda. Please stand at the podium and state your name and address for the 
official record. Please limit your comments to the specific item under discussion. Time limitations shall be at 
the discretion of the Mayor or City Council.  


 


Study sessions of the Mill Creek City Council may be held as part of any regular or special meeting. Study 
sessions are informal, and are typically used by the City Council to receive reports and presentations, review 
and evaluate complex matters, and/or engage in preliminary analysis of City issues or City Council business.  


   


 


Next Ordinance No. 2018-826 


Next Resolution No. 2018-573 


March 27, 2018 


City Council Meeting 


6:00 PM 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
ROLL CALL 
 
AUDIENCE COMMUNICATION 
 


A. Public comment on items on or not on the agenda   
 
STUDY SESSION 
 


B. Long Term Strategic Planning  


• Economic Prosperity  


• Leadership   
 
OLD BUSINESS 
 


C. Public Records Access; New Management Rules and Policies; New MCMC Chapter Establishing 
Administrative Authority and Regulations; Amended MCMC Chapter Amending Fees and Other 







Assesments 


(Rebecca C. Polizzotto, City Manager)   
 


D. Adoption of Ordinance Approving a New City Policy Regarding Reimbursement of Business 
Expenses 


(Rebecca C. Polizzotto, City Manager)   
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
 


E. Approval of Checks #58310 through #58380 and ACH Wire Transfers in the Amount of 
$158,197.84 


(Audit Committee: Mayor Pruitt and Mayor Pro Tem Holtzclaw)   
F. Payroll and Benefit ACH Payments in the Amount of $243,797.07 


(Audit Committee: Mayor Pruitt and Mayor Pro Tem Holtzclaw)   
G. City Council Meeting Minutes of February 13, 2018  


 
REPORTS 
 


H. Mayor/Council 


• Mayor Pro Tem Holtzclaw - CPP Amendments   
 


I. City Manager 


• Labor Management Meeting Minutes  


• 35th Ave SE Preliminary Communications Plan  


• Council Planning Schedule   
 
AUDIENCE COMMUNICATION 
 


J. Public comment on items on or not on the agenda  
 
RECESS TO EXECUTIVE SESSION 


(Confidential Session of the Council)  
 


K. Discussion of the performance of a public employee per RCW 42.30110 (1)(g) 


  


No action anticipated.   
 
ADJOURNMENT 


Page 2 of 131







Agenda Item # i ,2
w A S H I N G T 0 N Meeting Date: March 27, 2018


CITY COUNCIL AGENDA SUMMARY
City of Mill Creek, Washington


AGENDA ITEM: PRESENTATION: LONG TERM STRATEGIC PLANNING


PROPOSED MOTION: N/A


KEY FACTS AND INFORMATION SUMMARY:
The Government Finance Officers Association recommends that all governmental entities use
some form of strategic planning to provide a long-term perspective for service delivery and
budgeting, thus establishing logical links between authorized spending and broad organizational
goals.


In his management book The Dance of Change, management author Peter Senge, references the
importance for organizations to deliberately manage their ?iture. Unfortunately, managing the
future often comes head to head with the pressure of the immediate day-to-day management
needs of the organization.


The need to get critical day-to-day management issues handled is important to every
organization. This drive to get things done can at times overshadow the need to think and act


strategically on the future of the organization. How does an organization find balance?


The key is to develop a strategic plan that is integrated into the business systems of the
organization. The strategic plan should be integrated into the City’s business practices by
linking the Council’s agenda (goals), budget, other approved plans (e. g., Capital Improvement
Plan, Comprehensive Plan), departmental work plans and any current and/or newly developed
performance measures into the plan.


Integrated strategic planning creates a balance that aligns both the City’s ?nancial and human
capital to focus on achieving strategic goals and objectives.


The City began integrated strategic planning in 2016 with development and implementation of
the City’s Guiding Principles. At the Council’s February 13.2018 meeting, the City Manager
presented an overview of the integrated strategic planning process and described the next steps in
the process as the City continues to develop a long term strategic plan.


At its February 27 meeting, the Council, City Manager and Leadership Team engaged in the first
of several “brainstorming” sessions in order to begin to identify those priorities, projects and
initiatives to be accomplished over the next several years in the areas of Community Preservation
and Civic Pride.


At its March 6 meeting, the Council, City Manager and Leadership Team focused on the areas of
Fiscal Responsibility and Customer Service.


AGENDA ITEM #B.


Long Term Strategic Planning Economic Prosperity Leadership Page 3 of 131







City Council Agenda Summary
Page 2


At its March 13 meeting, the Council, City Manager and LeadershipTeam focusedon the areas
of Recreational Opportunities and Public Safety.


At its March 27 meeting, the Council, City Manager and LeadershipTeam will focus on the
areas of Economic Prosperity and Leadership.


This work will ultimately generate a long term strategic plan that will link the Counci1’sgoals,
budget, other approved plans, departmentalwork plans and any current and/or newly developed
performance measures into the plan.


CITY MANAGER RECOMMENDATION: N/A


ATTACHMENTS:
0 Planning Workbook


Respect?allySubmitted:


Rebecca C. Polizzotto
g3


City Manager


AGENDA ITEM #B.


Long Term Strategic Planning Economic Prosperity Leadership Page 4 of 131







L m
illCree


Shared Vision I Bright Future
Council Pl


1?" r: ~‘!_


e


)
Mi11fTeEk


\\.\5wlH\k.ION


AGENDA ITEM #B.


Long Term Strategic Planning Economic Prosperity Leadership Page 5 of 131







Goal 1: Fiscal Responsibility
To responsibly manage the City's ?nancial resources to provide quality public services, cultivate
economic prosperity, and maintain a sustainable budget.


Goal Overview
From a policy perspective: 1) Why is this goal important to you? 2) What do you envision achieving
for the City through this goal?


/‘voiololeficitspenolinq ?bllltkl/J1to withsta nol


economicolownturns- ability to {ina nce lon0l—term S
needs.


Council Priorities


Strategic Objectives Purpose


1. Developaoloptanal implement a lono_ 1. M@@
grm fiscalmanaaement plan anol resourcesare available in


accompanginapoliciesas neeoleol. the Lona term.


2. lnstitute olata analusisanol 2. To iol nti ina ncial


performance ma naaement slélstems. trenols that impact the_


Citg anal ta leeappropriate
proactivemeasures.


3. lmplement linhaale betweenbuolaetanal 3- T0 WSMV tll 031': '3


strateaicplannina tl/at /LS W ll/Lt Wt Ol


into its business
practices.


4. Completecomprehensivefeeanol ra’g_ 4. ;eW_we;


gteepl?gg. HY S1/L 0l"COlb tl/l


a ro riat anal rat


structure anal lessen the
overall tax burolen.


MillCree1<CitywideVision|Projectldenli?cation--o---o--------o-o-----------oc- 2


AGENDA ITEM #B.


Long Term Strategic Planning Economic Prosperity Leadership Page 6 of 131







Goal 1: Fiscal Responsibility
To responsibly manage the City's ?nancial resources to provide quality public services, cultivate
economic prosperity, and maintain a sustainable budget.


Goal Overview
From a policy perspective:1) Why is this goal important to you? 2) What do you envision achieving


forthe City through this goal?


Council Priorities


Strategic Objectives Purpose


1. 1


2. 2


3. 3


4 4


MillCreekCi’cywideVision|Projectldentif-ication on o o o o o - .. 0
..................... 3


AGENDA ITEM #B.


Long Term Strategic Planning Economic Prosperity Leadership Page 7 of 131







Goal 2: Community Preservation
To support the development, maintenance and revitalization of public and private property to


ensure the continuation of Mill Creek as a safe, clean and well maintained community.


Goal Overview
From a policy perspective:1) Why is this goal important to you? 2) What do you envision achieving


forthe City through this goal?


Council Priorities


Strategic Objectives Purpose


1. 1


2. 2


3 3.


4. 4


M.illCreekCitywideVision|Projectldentification - o o o o - - o - o - - - - - - o - o - o - - - - o - - - o - - 4


AGENDA ITEM #B.


Long Term Strategic Planning Economic Prosperity Leadership Page 8 of 131







Goal 3: Civic Pride
To achieve stron communi s irit b romotin active civic artici ation, 1iblic- rivate8 P YP P P P P
partnershps and transparency in government.


Goal Overview
From a policy perspective: 1) Why is this goal important to you? 2) What do you envision achieving
forthe City through this goal?


Council Priorities


Strategic Objectives Purpose


1. 1


2. 2


3 3


4. 4


MilICreekCitywideVision I Projectldenti?cation - - a - ~ - - - ~ - - - - - - o o - o o o - - - a - o - o o o o 5


AGENDA ITEM #B.


Long Term Strategic Planning Economic Prosperity Leadership Page 9 of 131







Goal 4: Customer Service
To provide excellent service to all who interact with the City by recruiting, training and retaining
a skilled, innovative and dynamic workforce.


Goal Overview
From a policy perspective: 1) Why is this goal important to you? 2) What do you envision achieving
for the City through this goal?


Council Priorities
Strategic Objectives Purpose


1. 1


2 2.


3 3.


4 4


lVlillCreel<CitywideVision|ProjectIdemit'icationonce. -- .o. .. ...... ... .... ..... . . 6


AGENDA ITEM #B.


Long Term Strategic Planning Economic Prosperity Leadership Page 10 of 131







Goal 5: Recreational Opportunities
To facilitate diverse recreational opportunities for people of all ages.


Goal Overview
From a policy perspective: 1) Why is this goal important to you? 2) What do you envision achieving
for the City through this goal?


Council Priorities
Strategic Objectives Purpose


1. 1


2. 2


3. 3


4. 4


M1'llCreel<CitywideVision|Projectldent-i?cation ----- -o-o- - -- o-o- - - co - an o --o o o o o 7


AGENDA ITEM #B.


Long Term Strategic Planning Economic Prosperity Leadership Page 11 of 131







Goal 6: Public Safety
To protect the life, health and property of residents, visitors and businesses through the delivery
of community focused public safety services.


Goal Overview ,


From a policy perspective: 1) Why is this goal important to you? 2) What do you envision achieving
forthe City through this goal?


Council Priorities


Strategic Objectives Purpose


1 1.


2. 2


3 3.


4. 4


MillCreel<CitywideVision|Projectldentificationnoonso-....-...................- 8


AGENDA ITEM #B.


Long Term Strategic Planning Economic Prosperity Leadership Page 12 of 131







Goal 7: Economic Prosperity
To engage in proactive economic development efforts that result in a robust local economy and
position the City as a destination of choice.


Goal Overview
From a policy perspective: 1) Why is this goal important to you? 2) What do you envision achieving


forthe City through this goal?


Council Priorities


Strategic Objectives Purpose


1. 1


2. 2


3. 3


4 4


IVLi.llCreekCitywideVision I Projectldenti?cation - o - - o o o o o - - - o - o - o o - - - - o o - - - - o - o o 9


AGENDA ITEM #B.


Long Term Strategic Planning Economic Prosperity Leadership Page 13 of 131







Goal 8: Leadership
To in?uence regional, state and national matters impacting our community through the
engagement of staff and elected officials.


Goal Overview
From a policy perspective: 1) Why is this goal important to you? 2) What do you envision achieving
forthe City through this goal?


Council Priorities


Strategic Objectives Purpose


1 1


2. 2


3 3.


4. 4


MillCreel<CitywideVision|Pr0jectIdent'i?cation --- on - -oo o -o- ----oo-- -- -- - - no -- - 10


AGENDA ITEM #B.


Long Term Strategic Planning Economic Prosperity Leadership Page 14 of 131







Goal 9: Long Term Planning
To maintain the City's special community character by carefully evaluating future opportunities
for short and long term benefits in order to protect land use, infrastmcture, economic
development and service delivery standards.


Goal Overview
From a policy perspective: 1) Why is this goal important to you? 2) What do you envision achieving
forthe City through this goal?


Council Priorities
Strategic Objectives Purpose


1. 1


2 2


3 3


4. 4


MillCreel<CitywideVision|Projectldenti_?cation - o o c - o - on - - - - o o - - ~ - - - - - - o - - o - - - - 11


AGENDA ITEM #B.


Long Term Strategic Planning Economic Prosperity Leadership Page 15 of 131







CITY or


M111Creek Agenda Item #44
w A S H IN G T O N Meeting Date: March 27, 2018


CITY COUNCIL AGENDA SUMMARY
City of Mill Creek, Washington


AGENDA ITEM: PUBLIC RECORDS ACCESS; NEW MANAGEMENT RULES AND
POLICIES; NEW MCMC CHAPTER ESTABLISHING
ADMINISTRATIVE AUTHORITY AND REGULATIONS;
AMENDED MCMC CHAPTER AMENDING FEES AND OTHER
ASSESSMENTS.


PROPOSED MOTION:


0 Motion to adopt Ordinance 2018 — , establishing regulations and policies
implementing the public records act, RCW Ch. 42.56, adopting new Mill Creek
Municipal Code Ch. 2.06, approving a new PRA policy, issuing an order relating to


maintenance of a public records index and establishing an effective date.


0 Motion to adopt Ordinance 2018 - , amending Mill Creek Municipal Code Ch.
3.42, fees and other assessments, for the purpose of adding and adopting fees, costs,


charges and other assessments applicable to actions taken in conformance with the state


public records act, RCW Ch. 42.56, and the Mill Creek Public Records Management
Regulations, MCMC Ch. 2.06; and establishing an effective date.


KEY FACTS AND INFORMATION SUMMARY:
In accordance with the City's ongoing effort to implement new legal requirements; update,
modernize and adopt important operational policies and municipal code provisions; and create


reliable and ef?cient internal processes for recurrent actions, staff has prepared the following
documents:


Proposed Policy: Public Records Act Rules
Proposed Ordinance: Adopting MCMC Ch. 2.06 (Public Records Management)
Proposed Ordinance: Amending MCMC Ch. 3.42 (Fees and Other Assessments)


At its January 9. 2018 study session, the Council reviewed the proposed policy and proposed
ordinance adopting MCMC 2.06. Based upon the Council’s feedback, and additional staff work,
the aforementioned documents have been revised. An additional proposed ordinance has been
drafted amending MCMC 3.42 in order to fully effectuate the fee schedule set forth in the
proposed policy.


Public Records Act Rules
The proposed Public Records Act Rules (Rules) will be adopted pursuant to the PRA, RCW Ch.
42.56, and new MCMC Ch. 2.06, to establish ef?cient and uniform procedures Citywide that
will facilitate compliance with PRA requirements for responding to requests for public records.
These requirements include timely access to public records for inspection and copying;


AGENDA ITEM #C.


Public Records Access; New Management Rules and Policies; New MCMC Chapt... Page 16 of 131







City Council Agenda Summary
Page 2


protection of City records from damage, alteration, and disorganization;prevention of excessive
interferencewith other essential City functions; and proper determination of the status and
disclosabilityof public records. The Rules also provide information to the public on how to
request access to records, establishmechanisms to track records requests from start to ?nish, and
provide various standard forms for staff use to minimize errors and reduce liability and costs
related to PRA compliance.


MCMC Chapter 2.06
The proposed ordinance will adopt a new chapter into the MCMC directing the adoption and
maintenance of PRA policies and rules by the City Manager,with directives to meet records
access and security standards; observe third-party legal rights and protect the City's interests;
identify and implementappropriatefees and costs related to PRA records activities;provide an
internal management structure for public records activities; establish an administrative review
process for denials of records requests; and delineatejudicial review requirements.


In accordance with the ?exibility allowed under the PRA, both the Rules and MCMC Ch. 2.06
make ?ndings in support of a decision that the City need not maintain a comprehensive index of
public records because of the burdensome nature and expense of doing so. Notwithstanding that,
the City's departments now and will continue to maintain other formats and systems for indexing
records.


MCMC Chapter 3.42
Because of the fee schedule contained in the proposed policy, it is necessary to amend MCMC
3.42. Accordingly, the requisite amendment has been drafted and included for consideration.


CITY MANAGER RECOMMENDATION: The proposed policy meets the City’s Fiscal
Responsibilitygoal by providing for rules and regulations governing the processing of public
records requests thereby reducing the City’s ?nancial risk under the PRA. Further, the proposed
policy, and accompanying changes to the MCMC, promotes transparency in government thereby
contributing to ful?llment of the City’s Civic Pride goal. The City Manager recommends
adoption of the proposed policy and correspondingordinances.


ATTACHMENTS:
0 Proposed Public Records Act Rules
0 Proposed Ordinance adopting new MCMC Ch. 2.06 (Public Records Management)
0 Proposed Ordinance amending MCMC Ch. 3.42 (Fees and Other Assessments)


Respectfully Submitted:


Rebecca C. Polizzotto %
City Manager


AGENDA ITEM #C.


Public Records Access; New Management Rules and Policies; New MCMC Chapt... Page 17 of 131







FINAL DRAFT
3.27.2018 COUNCIL MEETING


ORDINANCE NO. 2018-


AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OI7 MILL CREEK, WASHINGTON,
ESTABLISHING REGULATIONS AND POLICIES IMPLEMENTING
THE PUBLIC RECORDS ACT, RCW CHAPTER 42.56, ADOPTING NEW
MILL CREEK MUNICIPAL CODE CHAPTER 2.06, A
APPROVING A NEW _I:R_A_Gl-'I"—\4POLICY-NG.—##, ISSUING AN ORDER
RELATING TO MAINTENANCE OF A PUBLIC RECORDS INDEX, AND
ESTABLISHING A.\' EFFECTIVE DATE


WHEREAS, the Public Records Act. RCW Chapter 42.56 (Act). requires all cities and
public agencies to maintain and make publicly available access to public records; and


WHEREAS, the City Council desires to formalize its procedures for doing so through
adoption of new Mill Creek Municipal Code (MCMC) Chapter 2.06, entitled Public Records
Management, attached and incorporated into this Ordinance as Exhibit 1, and so better enable
the Council to oversee and the City to manage and implement its public records responsibilities
in compliance with the Act; and


WHEREAS, the City Council further desires to approve a_new City Policy No.—##=
entitled Public Records Rules, attached and incorporated into this Ordinance as Exhibit 2 11
Policv). to implement MCMC Ch. 2.06 and provide more uniform and reliable guidance to City
staff in the course of responding to requests for public records under the Act, while
simultaneously providing guidance to the public wishing to make such requests; and


WHEREAS, RCW 4256.070 of the Act requires the City to maintain a current index of
various public records containing certain identifying information, unless maintaining such an
index would be unduly burdensome, in which case the City need not maintain such an index; and


WHEREAS, the City is comprised of numerous departments, divisions and subdivisions,
which maintain separate databases and/or record keeping systems for the indexing of records and
information; and


WHEREAS, the City has and maintains records which are diverse. complex, stored in
multiple locations and in multiple computer systems and databases, and which utilize different
indexing procedures and systems. all of which are available in conformance with the Act; and


WHEREAS. the City produces and/or receives an uncountable number of records each
day, and maintains an uncountable number of records in numerous City tiles; and


WHEREAS. the City's operations do not allow for the addition. revision, or reassignment
of duties of existing personnel so that a current records index as described under the Act may be
developed and maintained.and anticipated City revenues do not allow additional staffing for the
purpose ofcrcating and maintaining such an index: and


WHEREAS. the development and maintenance of a current records index would be
extremely costly. and would provide little bene?t to the public compared to the expense of
maintaining such index; and


ORD. ADOPTING 2018 PR.-\


REGULATIONS -- Page 1 M39
816730 5/014455 00063


AGENDA ITEM #C.


Public Records Access; New Management Rules and Policies; New MCMC Chapt... Page 18 of 131







FINAL DRAFT
3.27.2018 COUNCIL MEETING


WHEREAS, the City Council therefore finds and determines in accordance with the Act
that maintaining such index would be unduly burdensome and ?scally irresponsible. and would
materially and substantially interfere with City operations to the detriment of the City and the
public; and


WHEREAS. the City Council further dctennines that the City quali?es for the Act's
provisions allowing the City to declare that such an index is not required under the circumstances
ofthe City, and that the City thus will not maintain such an index; and


WHEREAS, the City Council has reviewed MCMC Ch. 206 and the PRA Policy No:and
concurs in the statements and ?ndings made therein, and adopts those as further ?ndings of the
Council in the adoption ofthis Ordinance; and


WHEREAS, the City Council has reviewed MCMC Ch. 2.06 and the PRA PoIicy—Ne.—##
and ?nds that they conform with and implement the Act. and will bene?t the City and the public
in carrying out the requirements of the Act; and


WHEREAS, this Ordinance shall constitute a formal order in accordance with RCW
42.56.070(4); and


WHEREAS, MCMC Ch. 2.06 and the PRA l’0licy—Ne.—#-#-shall be made available on the
City's website and published in the usual manner ofthe City;


NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MILL CREEK,
WASHINGTON, ORDAINS AS FOLLOWS:


Section 1. The City Council adopts the foregoing recitals as its ?ndings and conclusions
in the adoption of this Ordinance and the following actions.


Section 2. The City Council adopts new Mill Creek Municipal Code Chapter 2.06,
entitled Public Records Management, attached and incorporatedherein as Exhibit 1.


Section 3. The City Council approves the PR/\ PolicyN&
#43,entitled Public Records Rules, attached to and incorporated herein as Exhibit 2. together
with amendments made lrom time to time as provided therein.


Section 4. The City Council declares this Ordinance to comprise}a formal order as
required by RCW 42.S6.070(4) coneeming the maintenance ofa current index of public records
within the City.


Section 5. The City Clerk is directed to take steps as required to implement and
effectuate the terms of this Ordinance. including publication and dissemination ofExhibits 1 and
2 in the City's of?cial compilations of ordinances and policies. The Clerk is authorized to
correct and/or approve correction ol‘scrivener's errors. intemal references.and the like.


Section 6. This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect ?ve days after publication ofa
summary hereofcensisting of the title ofthis Ordinance, in accordance with RCW 35A.13.200.


///


///


ORD. ADOPTING 2018 PRA
REGULATIONS —— Page2 or39
2167305/01445500053


AGENDA ITEM #C.


Public Records Access; New Management Rules and Policies; New MCMC Chapt... Page 19 of 131







Adopted this
against, and


day of
abstaining.


ATTEST/AUTHENTICATED:


CITY CLERK


APPROVED AS TO FORM:


OFFICE OF THE CITY ATTORNEY
SCOTT Mi MISSALL. CITY ATTORNEY


FILED WITH THE CITY CLERK:


PASSED BY THE CITY COUNCIL:


PUBLISHED:


EFFECTIVE DATE:


ORDINANCE NO.:


ORD. ADOPTING 2018 PRA
REGULATIONS —- Page3 of39
Bl6730.5/014455110063


FINAL DRAFT
3.27.20l8 COUNCIL MEETING


, 2018, by a vote of for.


APPROVED:


MAYOR PAMELA PRUITT


AGENDA ITEM #C.


Public Records Access; New Management Rules and Policies; New MCMC Chapt... Page 20 of 131







FINAL DRAFT
3.27.2018 COUNCIL MEETING


EXHIBIT 1


MCMC Chapter 2.06
Public Records Management


Sections:


2.06.010 Purpose and intent
2.06.020 De?nitions
2.06.030 Public records index not required — Findings & order
2.06.040 Public records rules authorized
2.06.050 Public records officer
2.06.060 Public records steering committee+IlRS9
2.06.070 Public disclosure coordinating team+P-BGT—)
2.06.080 Security ofpubiic records
2.06.090 Access to public records
2.06.100 Legal rights and interests of the city
2.06.110 Fees and costs
2.06.120 Administrative review ofrecords denials
2.06.130 Judicial review


2.06.010 Purpose and intent
A. The Public Records Act, RCW Chapter 42.56, requires all cities and public


agencies to maintain and make publicly available access to and copies of public records. The
city has adopted this chapter 206 pursuant to the Act, and maintains a public records policy as
authorized herein. to implement and provide the specific means and mechanisms for public
access to the city's records in conformance with the Act. The city will conform with the Act and
the city's public records policy to implement and manage access to its records.


B. Pursuant to the Act, the city shall disclose all public records and any indexes of
public records maintained by the city to the extent such records are not exempt, in whole or in
part, from disclosure under the Act or other applicable state and local laws.


C. The Act requires the city to maintain a current index of various public records,
unless maintaining such an index would be unduly burdensome or would interfere with city
operations. in which case the city need not maintain such an index. The city has determined at
section 2.06.030 that maintaining such index would be unduly burdensome and substantially
interfere with city operations, and thus the city thus does not maintain such an index as permitted
by the Act.


2.06.020 De?nitions
A. The following terms have the indicated meanings unless the context clearly


requires otherwise. Other de?nitions may be found in the text of this chapter or the city's public
records rules:


"City" means the City of Mill Creek, including its elected and appointed officials
and employees.


ORD. ADOPTING 2018 PRA
REGULATIONS -- Page 4 M39
816730 5/014455 00053


AGENDA ITEM #C.


Public Records Access; New Management Rules and Policies; New MCMC Chapt... Page 21 of 131







FINAL DRAFT
3.27.2018 COUNCIL MEETING


"City Manager" means the Citv Manager as appointed bv the Citv Council. and
includes the Citv Managers dcsignee.


"MCMC" or "Code" means the Mill Creek Municipal Code.
"Public:DisclosureCoordinating Team" or "PDCT" means the team charged with


managing the city's responses to records requests and other actions pursuant to section
2.06.070 and the Rules.


"Public Record" has the same meaning as in the Act. Without limiting the
foregoing, a public record means any writing containing information relating to the
conduct of government or the perfonnancc of any governmental or proprietary ?inction
prepared, owned. used, or retained by the city regardless of physical form or
characteristics.


"Public Records Act" or "Act" means RCW Ch. 42.56, as now or hereafter
amended.


"Public Records Officer" or "PRO" means the city's public records
officer designated pursuant to section 2.06.050 and the Rules,


"Public Records Rules" or "Rules" or "Rule" means the city's Public Records
Rules Policy4\le.—##=as authorizcdredepted and amended pursuant to this chapter.


"Public Records Steering Committee" or "PRSC" means the committee charged
with advising on changes to the Rules and other actions pursuant to section 2.06.060 and
the Rules. ..an , ", ' publ} d ft‘. . t..." "rt,"


"Record" or "Records" generally means the city's public records.
"Request" or "records request" means a request made in accordance with these


Rules for disclosure of public records under the Act.
"Reguest Management Svstcm" or "RMS" means the public records management


system designated by the citv manager for use in connection with the Rules.
"Rcquestor" means a person who has made a public records request in accordance


with the Rules.
“Writing" has the same meaning as in the Act.


2.06.030 Public records index not required — Findings & order
A. Findings. Pursuant to RCW 42.56.070(4), the city makes the following ?ndings:


l. The city is comprised of numerous departments, divisions and
subdivisions, which maintain separate databases and/or record keeping systems for the indexing
of records and information.


2. The city has and maintains records which are diverse, complex, stored in
multiple locations and in multiple computer systems and databases, and which utilize different
indexing procedures and systems.


3. The city produces and/or receives an uncountable number of records each
day. and maintains an uncountable number of records in numerous city ?les.


4. The development and maintenance of a current records index would be
extremely costly, and would provide little bene?t to the public compared to the expense of
maintaining such index.


3. The city's operations do not allow for the addition, revision. or
reassignment of duties of existing personnel so that a current records index may be developed


ORD. ADOPTING 2018 PRA
REGULATIONS —- Pagt.-5 of39
sumo 5/014-ass D0063


AGENDA ITEM #C.


Public Records Access; New Management Rules and Policies; New MCMC Chapt... Page 22 of 131







FINAL DRAFT
3.27.2018COUNCIL MEETING


and maintained, and anticipated city revenues do not allow additional staf?ng for the purpose of
creating and maintaining such an index.


6. For the foregoing reasons, maintaining such index would be unduly
burdensome and ?scally irresponsible, and would materially and substantially interfere with city
operations, all to the detriment ofthe city and the public


B. Olen Pursuant to RCW 42.56.070(4) and the foregoing ?ndings, the city
council makes the following order:


I. The city is not required to maintain a current index of public records as
required by the Act because that requirement is unduly burdensome for the city, would
materially and substantially interfere with city operations, and there is insuliticient funding for
such work.


2.06.040 Public records rules authorized
The city manager shall promulgate and maintain Public Records Rules for the city that


implement this chapter and the Act, as they may be amended. In doing so. the citv manager shall
designate a public records management system for use in connection with the Rules. and shall
consulting as necessary with the Public Records Steering Committee. The Rules shall be made
available on the city's website and published in conjunction with the MCMC.


2.06.050 Public records of?cer
The city manager shall designate a city employee or employees to serve as the city's


Public Records Officer. The PRO shall perform the functions set forth herein and in the Rules.


2.06.060 Public records steering committee
A Public Records Steering Committee (PRSC) is established composed of the city


manager, city clerk. PRO, deputy police chief and city attorney. or their designces. The PRSC
shall provide guidance to the Public Disclosure Coordinating Team, review denials of public
records requests, recommend and/or review changes to the Rules and this chapter, and perfomi
other tasks as assigned by the city manager.


2.06.070 Public disclosure coordinating team
A Public Disclosure Coordinating Team (PDCT) is established, to be chaired by the PRO


and composed of departmental representatives approved by the city manager. The PDCT shall
be responsible for managing records requests and responses as set forth in the Rules under the
direction ofthe PRO.


2.06.080 Security of public records
The Rules shall provide appropriate methods to maintain the security of the city's records


and records systems; to prevent loss, damage, removal and/or alternation of records; to prevent
other detrimental actions inconsistent with the Act; and to maintain appropriate retention of
records responses for the city's bene?t. Public records shall be maintained in a_manner
consistent with state and city requirements for record retention.


2.06.090 Access to public records


ORD. ADOPTING 2018 PRA
REGULATIONS -- Pnge? of39
8167305/0l4455 00063


AGENDA ITEM #C.


Public Records Access; New Management Rules and Policies; New MCMC Chapt... Page 23 of 131







FINAL DRAFT
3.27.2018COUNCIL MEETING


A. The Rules shall provide for access, inspection and dissemination olirceords in a
manner that is consistent with the Act; consistent with the city's duties and obligations to perform
all of its other municipal, governmental, and public service functions:and consistent with the
city's ?scal capabilities.


B. The Rules shall provide reasonable and eliicient mechanisms for the public to
make records requests and t-ime.-ly—obtainrecords from the city. and for the city to verify,
categorize, track, manage and provide timely responses to records requests.


C. The Rules shall provide mechanisms and guidance to assure legally proper and
sufficient redaction and exemption ofrecords consistent with the Act.


2.06.100 Legal rights and interests of the city
Without limiting the scope of the city's legal authority, for the purpose of protecting the


city's interests and/or records under or in connection with the Act. the city manager may initiate
or respond to anv 'udicial action; andler may respond to or ‘oin in any judicial action
commenced by a—t«hi-rd-any person or entitv unafliliated with the citvgand .—t=e«le
may seek to enjoin the release. inspection or copying of
any nenexempepublic records sought by persons sewing criminal or other gualifving sentences
in state. local, or privately operated correctional facilities as provided by the Act.


2.06.110 Fees and costs
The Rules shall provide for the recovery of charges, fees and costs as perrnitlcd under the


Act, including statutory charges, customized charges when appropriate, waiver of de minimis
charges, and ef?cient payment methods. To the extent necessary. such charges, fees and costs
shall be included in and/or coordinated with the city's fee schedule at MCMC ch. 3.42.


206.120 Administrative review of records denials
In the interest ol‘ensuring proper public access to records and timely resolution of issues


regarding the denial, in \vhole or in part, of a public records request, the Rules shall provide
aggrieved persons with an efficient internal administrative review process to be handled by the
PRO and PRSC. Such administrative review shall be limited solely to the denial by the city ofa
public records request. whether in whole or in part. and solely to the records so denied. The
availability and use ofthis administrative review process is provided as a convenience to records
requestors, and it shall not in any manner alter or affect the requirements. scopc. provisions or
time limits ofjudicial review applicable to any city action taken under the Act.


2.06.130 Judicial review
A. Any requestor aggrieved by a qualifying action or decision ol‘the city taken under


this chapter or the Rules may obtain judicial review thereof ill as. and to the extent allowed
under RCW 4256550.


B. If any appeal under this section concerns the city's denial of a record for which
administrative review was available under MCMC 2.06.120, and the appellant fails to tirst avail
herself or himselfof such administrative review, such failure to exhaust remedies shall preclude
appeal of such issue or issues in anyjudicial appeal.


******************ENDCHApTER>H<>u<>u-4:>H==i<>i<>o=>H<=r>H<=i<>k>k>k


ORD. ADOPTING 2018 PRA
REGULATIONS -- Page 7 M39
sumo 5/omss 00053


AGENDA ITEM #C.


Public Records Access; New Management Rules and Policies; New MCMC Chapt... Page 24 of 131







081). ADGPIING 1918BRA
REGIIILATIDNS —, Page}?13:39
§l,5731?~§/UL44$5-,°.9>?,¢3


‘


AGENDA ITEM #C.


Public Records Access; New Management Rules and Policies; New MCMC Chapt... Page 25 of 131







FINAL DRAI-T
3.27.2018COUNCIL MEETING


Exhibit 2


City of Mill Creek
PUBLIC RECORDS RULES


Public Records Rules


1.0 De?nitions
2.0 Authority, Scope, Purpose and Adoption of Rules
3.0 City Operations; Access to Public Records and Information
4.0 Records Management and Protection
5.0 Making a Request for Public Records
6.0 Processing Records Requests
7.0 Managing Records Requests
8.0 Inspection of Records
9.0 Protected Records; Non~Rcc0rds; Redactions and Exemptions
10.0 Providing Records
11.0 Electronic and Digital Records
12.0 Costs of Providing and Payment for Records
13.0 Review of Denials of Public Records Requests
14.0 Judicial Review
15.0 Appendices and Forms


1.0 DEFINITIONS


l.l General


The de?nitions in this Section shall have the meanings ascribed unless the context clearly
requires otherwise. The de?nitions set forth in the state Public Records Act and the Mill Creek
Public Record chapter. MCMC ch. 2.06, are incorporatedherein by reference. Personnel labels
used herein e.g.. Records Clerk) are for convenience ol’ these Rules and do not re?ect


manaaement functions under the City's pav and classi?cation system.


1.2 De?nitions
"City" means the City of Mill Creek, including its elected and appointed officials and


employees.


.'TC.i.tv.=1-.1aa¢r.‘f..m¢ans Ihe,.Ci!\',,Manazereasllavnointssl.bv.Ah;,.Cia',,C9un9i1:,,e1r4d.,..»--*
includes the Citv Managers desianee.


"Counter records" means records easily available at the City's customer service
counters under Rule 5.4.


"Email" means a computer-based informational transfer system for sending and
receiving messages. "Text messages" are less formal. phone-based equivalents to emails. Email
and text messages are public records when they are prepared. owned, used. or retained by the
City and relate to the conduct ofgovcrnmcnt or performance ofany governmental or proprietary
function.


ORD. ADOPTING Z018 PRA
REGULATIONS —— P:Ige9 of39
816730 srumss oooss


AGENDA ITEM #C.


Public Records Access; New Management Rules and Policies; New MCMC Chapt... Page 26 of 131







FINAL DRAFT
3.27.2018 COUNCIL MEETING


"Exemption Log" means an exemption log that identi?es exempt records as described in
Rule 9.1.


"MCMC" or "Code" means the Mill Creek Municipal Code.
"Mill Creek Public Records Chapter" or "MCMC ch. 2.06" means MCMC ch. 2.06


as now or hereafter amended.


9$
"Public Disclosure Coordinating Team" or "PDCT" means the team charged with


managing the City's responses to records requests. See Rule 7.
"Public Record" has the same meaning as in the Act. Without limiting the foregoing, a


public record means any writing containing information relating to the conduct of government or
the performance of any govemmental or proprietary function prepared, owned. used. or retained
by the City regardless ofphysical form or characteristics.


"Public Records Act" or "Act" means RCW Chapter 42.56, as now or hereafter
amended.


"Public Records Officer" or "PRO" means the designated Public Records Officer.
See Rule 3.


“Public Records Rules“ or "Rules" or "Rule" means these Public Records Rules as
initially aggrovedadepted and amended from time to time as provided herein.


"Public Records Steering Committee" or “PRSC" means the eommitteeteam
composed of the City Manager, City Clerk. Public Records Officer, Deputy Police Chief and
City Attorney, or their designees. See Rule 2.


"Record" or "Records" generally means the City's public records.
"Records CIerkManagers" means the staff person designated for each City department


who is responsible for earging out these Rules and processing records requests
affecting that department under direction ofthe PRO.


"Records Log" means the log maintained by the PRO tracking records requests
submitted to and processed by the City. See Rule 7.


"Request" or "records request" means a request made in accordance \vith these Rules
for disclosure of public records under the Act.


"Request Management System" or "RMS" means the public records management
System designated by the City Manager for use in connection with these Rules.


"Requester" means a person who has made a public records request in accordance with
these Rules.


"Text messages" [see "Email"]
“Writing" has the same meaning as in the Act. Without limiting the foregoing, a writing


includes handwriting. typewriting, printing, photocopying, photographing, and every other
means of recording any form of communication or representation, including letters. words.
pictures. sounds. or symbols, or combination thereof. and all papers, maps, magnetic or paper
tapes, photographic ?lms and prints, motion picture, ?lm and video recordings, magnetic or
punched cards, discs, drums, diskettes, sound recordings, and other documents including existing
data compilations from which information may be obtained or translated.


2.0 AUTHORITY, SCOPE, PURPOSE AND ADOPTION OF RULES


2.1 Authority


ORD. ADOPTING 20l8 PRA
REGULATIONS —- Page 10 M39
816730 5/ON-155 00063


AGENDA ITEM #C.


Public Records Access; New Management Rules and Policies; New MCMC Chapt... Page 27 of 131







2.2


2.3


3.0


3.1


3.2


FINAL DRAFT
3.27.2018 COUNCIL MEETING


These Rules are adopted pursuant to the Act, RCW ch. 42.56, and the MCMC Chapter
2.06. RCW 42.56.0700) requires the City to make available for inspectionand copying
nonexempt public records in accordance with published rules. RCW 42.56.070(2)
requires the City to set forth "for informational purposes" every law. in addition to the
Act, that exempts or prohibits the productionof public records held by that agency.


Scope and Purpose of Rules
2.2.1 These Rules govem all records in the City and the application of the Act to the
City's records.


'


_.9??,RHl?§_iS,!9.¢§1%lZl.i§ll.t.h.6._t>.r.<>,c,ssi.t1_r_e_$_.'=1r,1,<1,r,e,,uir,e,ms=.n.t$the
p rtments. will employ and follow to comply with the Ac


9 LI‘ A /<I ' c c I 0 Ayuun x .
\:(I . . u x \'I«u‘r\‘u


.... .,..
xv , urn .


.1
' ’ _.' . . ' . These Rules provide information to


persons wishing to request access to public records of the City and establish procedures
for requestors and City staff to meet the purpose ofthe Act and these Rules.


.2.:,2,-,3,,,,ff!1¢,s,e,.!¥.t41.e_s.2r9te9t.ths,§itx's. .r.e,C,9r,<1.s_.fr9n1,s!arnee9,=,2lt¢ra
‘


alias disorganization; prevent excessive interference with other essential functions 0


City; and properly determine the status and disclosability ofpublic records.


Adoption and Amendment of Rules
The City Manager is authorized to adopt and amend these Rules pursuant to MCMC ch.
124 and MCMC ch. 2.06 as needed to remain in compliance with evolving law
governing the handling of public records requests and to update related procedures. The
Manager may consult with the Public Records Steering Committee as needed to perfonn
that responsibility.


CITY OPERATIONS; ACCESS TO PUBLIC RECORDS AND INFORMATION


City Operations
3.1.1 The City is an "agency" under the Act and provides services as a nonchartcr code
city and Washington municipal corporation organized under RCW Title 35A. The City's
central office is located at City Hall South, 15728 Main Street, Mill Creek, WA 98012.


3.1.2 The general course and method by which the City's operations are channeled and
determined is through laws adopted and direction given by the City Council and other
competent authority in confonnity with all applicable city, state and federal law, which
are implemented by the City Manager, Department Directors and their designees. The
City's ordinances of general applicability are contained in the Mill Creek Municipal
Code. The City's general policies and procedures are contained in the Mill Creek Policies
and Procedures.


3.1.3 Reporting. Pursuant to RCW 40.14.0266), agencies that incur actual staff and
legal costs associated with ful?lling public records requests in excess of $l00.000
annually must report such activity to the State. Reporting is optional ifthe costs incurred
fall under that threshold.


Access to Records, Forms and General Information


ORD. ADOPTING 2018 PRA
REGULATIONS -» Page II of39
B16730 5/014455 00053


Formatted: Font: Bold


Formatted: Font: Bold


AGENDA ITEM #C.


Public Records Access; New Management Rules and Policies; New MCMC Chapt... Page 28 of 131







4.0


4.1


FINAL DRAFT
3.27.2018COUNCIL MEETING


A requester or any person wishing to request access to public records of the City, or
seeking assistance in making such a request, should follow the procedures in these Rules.
Requestors are encouraged to view and/or obtain documents available on the website
prior to submitting a records request. The City may make information. forms. and
methods for requesting records. along with other assistance, available through one or
more of the following:


3.2.1 The City's website: ww\\'.citV0fmi|lcreek.com.


3.2.2 The City's online RMS, which may be accessed through the City's website.


3.2.3 The City's sell‘-helponline kiosk located in the lobbies of City Hall North and/or
South.


3.2.4 At the City's customer service counters located in the lobbies of City Hall North
and/or South.


In addition, Rcquestors may seek assistance by submitting a letter or fax addressed to the
PRO as speci?ed in Rule 3.3.


Public Records Officer


s ofthe PRO set foith in
these Rules, including chair ofthe PDCT and supervising Records ClerksMaaagei=5.The
PRO shall coordinate activities. records requests and responses with the City's Qi-reeter—e4‘
Public Information Oflicer when such matters are made by credentialed press
representatives or organizations, or concern issues of known public significance. The
PRO or Citv Manager may designate an acting PRO as needed.


3
‘relelordsmanagement and PRA operations through t c Washington Association of Public
Records Officers 1WAl’RO) or other similarly quali?ed organizations. The PRO shall
ensure Records C|crksManeger5 receive timely and appropriate PRA training.


.3.-.3.-.3....C..9!1.!'sI.c..t.
PRQ.—The PRO can be contacted at:


Public Records Otlicer
City ol‘Mill Creek
15728 Main Street, Mill Creek, WA 98012
Phone : 425-745-1891
Fax: 425-745-9650


RECORDS MANAGEMENT Al\'D PROTECTION


General
Public records are available for inspection and to obtain copies during normal business
hours of the City, Monday through Friday, 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 pm., excluding legal
holidays. Inspection of records shall occur at the central offices of the City unless
another location is approved by the PRO. A variety ofrecords are available on the City's
website at www.cityofmil|creek.com. and may be downloaded at the viewer's


ORD. AI)OI’TING 20l8 PRA
REGULATIONS -- Page 12 M39
816730 5/OM-15500063


she1.1.1..b.e..ds.s.ig.n.==!i9.d.!2>',Kw...


2.....Tra.inin.g- '.T.h9PB9..$hal| Qbiain.and..mai.n'ei.n.§.9urr9n!..¢srIi?CaIi9n..iri.pHb1is:..


Formatted: Font: Bald


Formatted: Font: Bold


Formatted: Font: Bold


Formatted: Font: Bold


AGENDA ITEM #C.


Public Records Access; New Management Rules and Policies; New MCMC Chapt... Page 29 of 131







4.2


4.3


4.4


UI.'..


FINAL DRAFT
3.27.2018 COUNCIL MEETING


convenience. Requestors are encouraged to view the documents available on the website
prior to submitting a records request.


Records Index Not Maintained
Pumuant to MCMC Chapter 2.06, the
City Council issued a formal order ?nding that the maintenance ofa records index was
unduly burdensome. This ?nding was based in part on the fact that the City is comprised
ol‘ several departments, divisions, subdivisions and boards, and serves approximately
20,000 citizens. The different departments and divisions currently maintain. and may
continue to maintain, separate databases and/or record keeping and/or working systems
containing records, each of which may have different systems or protocols for indexing
records and information. Because these records and systems are diverse, complex and
located in multiple places and/or in or on multiple computer systems and databases, it is
unduly burdensome to maintain a central index ofrecords.


Organization of Records
The City will maintain its records in a reasonably organized manner.


Physical-Protection of Records and Records Securitv
44-1 Whi1.¢.9.<?n1in.iltC.cl,!999rI!i21i,an9,e..with.th¢.A9t.an4.ths:se,Ru!es~..th9.Ci1x,m,ust,als9. ..- - --


take reasonable and/or necessary actions to protect its records from damage. loss and
disorganization, and to prevent interference with the essential functions of the City. See
below and Rules ;._8, 9, I0 and ll for specific ethersecurity requirements‘


.‘.‘,-.5.-3....,4\..E¢Fll1§§P9f.$.l1€%l.l..[‘9l_l€{l$9.Cl9(,!?}?9§‘?§,f!9‘F3.QM._9.W9¢§.%‘“d$ha,1l,,r1<>_t.!i.1z4.
modify or alter any record. A requestor may be required to view records in the presence
of a City representative and to account for all such records at the end of a viewing
session. Photographing City records may only be allowed upon advance request. and
may be prohibited by the PRO.


5.4.3 Recordsrthata
altered or dcstro .


'


"?'fE1‘?F5.???F,Fl19F%¥PE!'!‘%¢F!!?H‘1‘ €.?$?FFl§.§hE*.1_'.l?9,r9Yi9!Y§<l,l?V'.!h?,,l?l§Q.l9F.
»appriipriateaction. The PRO shall consult th the Police Department's Records Clerk


and Citv Attomey as needed and consider the Citv's records retention reguirements in
taking action.


_4.4.5 Any subpoena. subpoena duces tecum. or 'udicial discove' re ucstsent to or
served on the City 1 1 applies to or regu records from the City sl-iallbereviewed by


the PRO for appropriate action‘ The PRO shall consult with the Citv Manager and/or
City Attorney as needed.


MAKING A REQUEST FOR PUBLIC RECORDS


General
5.1.1 A request for public records should be in writing but may be made orally. A
requestor must provide the PRO with reasonable notice that the request is for disclosure
ofpublic records under the Act and must provide the information in this Rule 5.


ORD. ADOPTING 2018 I)R:\


REGULATIONS —- Page 13 of39
816730 54714455 00063


Vfngrrecordsrequest may not be


Formatted: Font: Bold


Formatted: Font: Bold


__
Formatted: Font: Bold


Ta


- Formatted: Font: Bold


AGENDA ITEM #C.


Public Records Access; New Management Rules and Policies; New MCMC Chapt... Page 30 of 131







5.2


5.3


FINAL DRAFT
3.27.2018 COUNCIL MEETING


5.1.2 Record requests may only encompass existing records. The ending search date
for every request shall be the date the request is submitted to the City. unless an earlier
date is stated in the request. A request cannot be used to inspect or obtain copies of
records not yet in existence, and the PRO is authorized not-to refuse to accept or to reject
such a request.


Written and Oral Requests for Records
5.2.1 Written requests to obtain or inspect public records may be made using the
methods listed in Rule 3.2.


5.2.2 Oral requests to obtain or copy public records may be made to the PRO by direct
telephone or in person. An oral request cannot be made via voice
message or answering system. The PRO may accept oral requests if the requestor
provides the required information set forth in this Rule. If the PRO accepts an oral
request, the PRO will enter and contirm receipt of the inforrnalion.the substance of the
request, and the requestor‘ contact information in the RMS and by writing or emailing to
the requestor if possible. The con?rmation will be deemed the correct statement of the
request unless the requestor responds in writing or orally as set forth herein with a
different statement of the scope of the request.


5.23 Each written or oral records request must contain the following information:
5.2.3.1 Date and time of the request
5.2.3.2 Name and full contact infonnation provided by the requestor
5.2.3.3 Description of the records sufficient for the PRO to reasonably identify
and locate the requested records.
5.2.3.4 Whether the requestor seeks to obtain or inspect records. ll‘the requestor
wishes to receive copies or digital scans ofrecords. she/he should so indicate and
make arrangements with the PRO to pay for such copies or scans as provided in
these Rules. lfthe requestor seeks to inspect records.she/he should so indicate
and make arrangements with the PRO.
5.2.3.5 Whether the requestor seeks to obtain or inspect records for commercial
purposes.


Automated Records Requests
The City has no duty to accept automated or robotic request for records ("bot request").
A bot request means a request for records that the City reasonably believes was
automatically generated by a CO1”|’1pLll8I‘:-9Ftelephone program:—et= script or other means.
The City may deny a bot request that is one ofmultiple requests from the requestor to the
City within a twenty-four hour period, or over a period of days. if responding to such
multiple requests would cause interference with other essential City functions.


Counter Records
Certain records may be provided quickly and easily at the City's customer service
counters located at City facilities.such as City information sheets.schedules or handouts;
certain commonly maintained or requested items like reports, agendas. and data
compilations; and forms, booklets or other pre-printed materials. A request for such
"counter records" does not comprise a records request subject to these Rules if it can be
immediately ful?lled by City staff working at the customer service counter. In such


ORD. ADOPTING 2018 PRA
REGULATIONS —— Page 14 of39
316730 5/014455 D0063


AGENDA ITEM #C.


Public Records Access; New Management Rules and Policies; New MCMC Chapt... Page 31 of 131







6.0


6.1


6.2


6.3


6.4


FINAL DRAFT
3.27.2018 COUNCIL MEETING


situations, the requester need not make a formal request as described in these Rules, and
City stat? need not treat the request as :1 records request subject to these Rules.


PROCESSING RECORDS REQUESTS


Priority of Requests
Mindful ofthe requirements ol‘RCW 4256.100. and as reasonably feasible. the PRO will
process requests in the order allowing the most requests to be processed in the most
efficient manner. See generally Rule 7.


Clari?cation of Requests
To better understand a request and provide responsive records. the PRO may inquire
about the purpose for the request and any other matters related to more precisely
determining the nature ofthe request and how it might best be ful?lled. However, the
requestor is not required to answer except to establish whether inspection and copying
would violate RCW 42.56.070(9) or a statute which exempts, limits, or prohibits
productionof speci?c informationor records to certain persons.


Acknowledging Receipt of Requests
6.3.1 Timely Acknowledgement. To meet the requirements ofthe Act, the PRO must
take one or more of the actions described in this Rule within ?ve business days of
receiving a records request, excluding the day the request was received (RCW l.lZ.040).


6.3.2 5-Day Letter. When a Hnlessrt-hercqucst cann_()t be immediately ful?lled within
5 business days. the PRO ??must prepare
and send a written response to each requestor and every sygrequest using the 5-Day
Response Form attached at Appendix 1. livery 5-Day Response will:


6.3.2.1 Acknowledge the date ofrcccipt of the request.
6.3.2.2 Restate the request.
6.3.2.3 Enclose a portion of the requested records iffeasible and available.
6.3.2.4 Seek clari?cation for any part ol‘the request that is then unclear.
6.3.2.5 Provide a reasonable estimate ol‘additional time needed to respond to the
request per Rule 65, including the anticipated date by which the records will be
produced in whole; or it‘the records will be produced in part or in installments,
the ?rst and anticipated follow-on dates of such installments.
6.2.2.6 Note the applicability and status ot‘ inspection, copying and payment
arrangements for the records.and state the deposit required therefor.


As records are searched and produced, and/or the search is re?ned, subsequent written
communication with the requester will occur using the RMS to keep the response
moving, advise of changes in workload. Search impediments or anticipated production
dates. and ?nalize the request. If the PRO does not respond to a requester in writing
within ?ve business days of receipt of a records request, the requester should consider
contacting the PRO to determine the reason for the delay.


Response and Follow Up Options
Typical options and follow up steps for responding to a records request are listed below.
Any response can be combined with another response to better address and complete the
records production.


ORD. ADOPTING 2018 PRA
REGULATIONS -- Page15af39
sumo 5/014145500063


AGENDA ITEM #C.


Public Records Access; New Management Rules and Policies; New MCMC Chapt... Page 32 of 131







6.5


FINAL DRAFT
3.27.2018 COUNCIL MEETING


6.4.1 Make the requested records available for inspection or provide copies as
applicable.


6.4.2 Identify to the requestor onlinc or intemet locations where all or a portion of the
records can be obtained or accessed. Requcstors who cannot access the internet may be
provided copies of the requested records and/or advised of the availability of the City's
lobby kiosk(s).


6.4.3 Stay in touch \vith the requester as appropriate following delivery of the 5-day
letter. Acknowledge receipt of subsequent contacts, ask the requestor to provide
clari?cation or refine the search as appropriate. consult with the PRC as needed. and
provide a reasonable estimate of the time required to respond to the request per Rule 6.5.


6.4.4 Ifa request changes signi?cantly into a new request for different records, the PRO
should consider requiring a new formal request to be ?led for the new documents or
purpose. This will keep each request focused and identi?able for purposes of completing
requests, and enable City staff to go forward with other requests previously ?led, on hold
or in process and awaiting their turn to be processed.


6.4.5 If the requestor fails to respond to at least two written requests for clari?cation
and the entire request is thus unclear, the PRO should advise the requester of that fact and
the City's consequent determination that the request will be considered terminated or
abandoned in accordance with Rule 7. However, even ifthe requestor fails to respond to
requests for clari?cation. if portions of the request are suf?ciently clear to provide
responsive records.then such records will be provided.


6.4.6 If full or partial payment or payment ofa deposit is necessary and arranged as
provided in the Rules, or if other terms of payment are agreed upon and made by the
requester, send the requested records to the requester or make them available for pick up.


6.4.7 Deny or reject the request, specifying the reasons therefor.


Determination of Additional Time for Response
The PRO must make a reasonable inquiry into the nature of the records requested and
make a reasonable estimate of the time needed to respond to each request. Factors used
to estimate the additional time must be based upon criteria that can be articulated, and
may be presented in a response letter. Allowable factors necessitating additional
response time include the following:


6.5.1 To request clarification from the requestor if the request is unclear or does not
sufficiently identify the requested records. Such clari?cation may be requested and
provided by telephone. lfthe clarification is made by telephone, the PRO will con?rm
the scope of the clari?cation in writing. The con?rmation will be deemed the correct


statement of the scope of the request unless the requester responds with a different
statement of the scope.


6.5.2 To locate and assemble the requested records.


6.5.3 To determine whether information in the requested records is exempt from
disclosure or production. and if so. the time needed to prepare redactions and a privilege
log.


ORD. ADOPTING 2018 PRA
REGULATIONS —— Page 16 M39
E15730 5/Ol-1455 00063


AGENDA ITEM #C.


Public Records Access; New Management Rules and Policies; New MCMC Chapt... Page 33 of 131







FINAL DRAFT
3.27.2018 COUNCIL MEETING


6.5.4 To determine whether a denial should be made as to all or part ofthe request.


6.5.5 To notify third persons or agencies pursuant to Rule 6.6 in the event the requested
records contain or may contain infonnation that may affect rights of others and may be
exempt from disclosure.


6.6 Notice ofa Records Reguest to Third Parties
If requested records contain or may contain information that may affect rights of third
persons ?ler agencies not a ated with the City (Third Parties), the PRO @may
consult with the Citv Manager or City Attomey to determine the need for issuance of a
Third Party Notice. lfthe PRO and consulted persons detemine such
a Third Party Notice is appropriate. the PRO» shall prepare the Notice using the Third
Party Notice Form attached at Appendix g-(1Net-ieel). The Third Pam‘ Notice shall
advise Ihird Bartiesof the City's detennination that their rights may be affected by the
requested disclosure. shall include a copy of the request and the contact information of
the requestor, and shall be copied to the requester. The Third Party Notice shall be issued
prior to providing the requested records to enable the Ihird ?arties to contact the
requestor to seek revision ofthe request. seek a court order to prevent or limit disclosure.
or seek other remedies available to the Ihird?arties.


6.7 Notice of :1 Records Reguest Affecting City Employees or Officials
77777777777777777777777 M


- Formatted: Font: Bold


If reguested records contain or may contain infonnation that may directly affect or ‘implicate rights of Citv emplovees or officials (City Personnel 1.the PRO shall consult
with the Citv Manager to detennine the appropriate course of action. Such action shall be
taken prior to providing the requested records to enable the City Personnel to contact the
reguestor to seek revision of the reguest. seek a court order to prevent or limit disclosure.
or take or seek other actions or remedies available to them.


6.§ Participation by City in Judicial Action Related to Records Requests
6.§.1 Pursuant to the Act, the City may seek to enjoin the inspectionor copying of any
nonexempt public records by persons sewing criminal sentences in state, local, or
privately operated correctional facilities.


6.§.2 Pursuant to the Act. and for the purpose of protecting the City's interests as they
may apply, the City may initiate judicial action. and/or may join in any judicial action
commenced by a third person, related to a records request submitted to the City.


7.0 MANAGING RECORDS REQUESTS


7.1 Public Disclosure Coordinating Team; Records Clerksl\4a-n-tigers
The Public Disclosure Coordinating Team shall be comprised of the Public Records
Officer and the Records Clerkslwenagers designated for each City department. The PRO
shall be the chair of the PDCT. The PDCT is responsible for managing and processing
records requests in accordance with these Rules.


7.2 Records Log
The PDCT shall maintain a current log of records requests submitted to and processed by
the City using the RMS. RMS entries must be kept current and shall include the identity
and contact information ofthe requestor; the date the City received the request; the text


ORD. ADOPTING 2018 PRA
REGULATIONS -- Pag-,c17 of39
315730 5/014455 00063


AGENDA ITEM #C.


Public Records Access; New Management Rules and Policies; New MCMC Chapt... Page 34 of 131







7.3


7.4


FINAL DRAFT
3.27.2018 COUNCIL MEETING


of the original request and any significant clari?cations; the classi?cation of request
made under this Rule; the date and a general description of the records produced in
response to the request, including whether records were redacted or withheld and the
reasons therefor; the status of the request; and the date of ?nal disposition of the request.
The records log must be retained in accordance with the applicable City and state record
retention schedule, and is itselfa public record subject to disclosure under the Act.


Records Management Criteria
The PDCT will manage, classify, and process pending records requests based on the
following criteria:


7.3.1 The number ofrecords responsive to a given request.


7.3.2 The number and size ofother pending requests.


7.3.3 The amount ofprocessing required for each pending request.


7.3.4 The status of a particular request that is waiting for or undergoing internal
processing. document review and/or analysis; follow up action by a requestor. and/or
third party review.response or action.


7.3.5 The current volume of other workload demands in the City as they may affect the
amount ofavailable staff time that can be devoted to compliance with the Act and records
requests.


Categories of Records Requests
The PRO will categorize each record request using the following
criteria generally following issuance ofa 5—DavResponse. Record requests should be re-
categorized as appropriate a?er initial categorization in response to new circumstances
and/or additional information.


7.4.1 Category 1 requests require immediate response in the interest of public safety
and/or imminent danger. These requests take priority over all other requests. Generally.
the PRO will respond to Category I requests immediately or the next business day alter
the request is received.


7.4.2 Category 2 requests are routine or readily ?lled requests for easily identilied and
immediately accessible records requiring little or no coordination between departments.
Generally, the PRO will respond to Category 2 requests within five business days.


7.4.3 Category 3 requests are routine requests that involve a large number of records;
records not easily identified, located or accessible, and/or records that require some
coordination between departments. Generally. the PRO will respond to Category 3
requests within 5 to 30 business days.


7.4.4 Category 4 requests are complex requests meeting any of the following criteria:
(i) broad or vague requests which involve a large number of records that are not easily
identified. located or accessible; (ii) requests requiring signi?cant coordination between
multiple departments or research by City staff who are not primarily responsible for
public disclosure; (iii) requests requiring detailed review to determine whether such
records are exempt from disclosure or production in whole or in part; (iv) requests


ORD. ADOPTING 2018 PRA
REGULATIONS —— Page 18 M39
B16730 5/01-‘M55D0063


AGENDA ITEM #C.


Public Records Access; New Management Rules and Policies; New MCMC Chapt... Page 35 of 131







7.5


7.6


FINAL DRAFT
3.27.2018 COUNCIL MEETING


requiring legal review and/or creation of an exemption log; (v) requests that may require
noti?cation of third parties. The PRO will respond to Category 4 requests as soon as
possible, but may need or take extended time due to the complexity of ful?lling the
request.


7.4.5 Category 5 requests are those requests that are on hold or pending further action
for any of the following reasons: (i) waiting for records to be retrieved from storage, or
from persons or entities that hold them on behalf of the City (e.g. employees,
consultants); (ii) waiting for the requestor to respond to a request for clarification; (iii)
waiting for a response after notifying a third party named in a record; (iv) waiting for
expiration of the time allowed a third party to obtain an order from a court enjoining
release of records; (v) waiting for resolution ofa legal action affecting the records; (vi)
waiting for consideration of a petition to review denial of access; (vii) waiting for the
requestor to pay for the records or pay a deposit; (viii) waiting for external vendor
reproduction of records and related invoicing; and/or (ix) waiting for the requestor to
claim an installment or to physically inspect records.


Closing Records Requests
The PRO will close a records request and so inform or confirm that action to the
requestor in writing in the following circumstances:


7.5.1 Completed. The request is completed. This notice is typically sent or delivered
with the ?nal installment ofthe records provided to the requestor.


7.5.2 Withdrawn. The requestor withdraws the request.


7.5.3 Abandoned. The requestor fails to pcrfonn any of the following after receiving
or sending written confirmation of such obligation: fails to inspect or pick up records;
fails to ful?ll an obligation to pay for the records, including any deposit, partial or final
payment, or third-party vendor cost; fails to complete a task as previously agreed with the
PRO; or fails to respond to a request for claritication by the PRO. See Rule 7.6.


7.5.4 Rejected or Denied. The request is rejected or denied by action of the PRO
under these Rules. See, e.g., Rules 5.1.2; 5.3; 6.4.5; 6.4.7; 9.2; 9.3; and 9.4.


Abandoned Records Requests
The PROGH-_vwill deem a request abandoned in the following circumstances:


7.6.1 The requester fails to respond to City requests for clari?cation issued pursuant to
Rule 6.4.5 and 30 days has passed since the last such request.


7.6.2 The requester has elected to inspect records and (i) the requester fails to contact
the PRO to arrange for the review of the records or Q54-i-Estinstallment thercof within 30
days of being notified that the records are available for inspection: or (ii) the requester
misses an appointment to inspect the records or any installment thereof and fails to
contact the PRO to arrange another appointment to inspect within 30 days ofthe missed
appointment.


7.6.3 The requester has elected to receive copies of records and (i) the requester fails
\vithin 30 days to open and download copies of responsive records or any installment of


ORD. ADOPTING 2018 PR4
REGULATIONS - Page 19 of39
816730 5/014455 00063


AGENDA ITEM #C.


Public Records Access; New Management Rules and Policies; New MCMC Chapt... Page 36 of 131







FINAL DRAIT
3.27.2018COUNCIL MEETING


records provided to the requester electronically; or (ii) the requester fails within 30 days
to pick up records of being notified thereof.


7.6.4 The requester fails to pay within 30 days of receiving a notice of payment or
invoice for copies of any records or any installment, any third party vendor costs. or any
required deposit(s).


7.6.5 If a reauestor fails to respond to any PRO notice issued for the reasons set tbnh
above within I0 davs of the date ofthe notice. the PRO mav suspend furtheraction on the
request so that other pending requests can be sooner addressed.


8.0 INSPECTION OF RECORDS


8.1 Time and Location
The PRO shall provide space and coordinate a time with the requestor to inspect records
consistent with other City demands.


8.2 Security
8.2.] The PRO shall ensure the security olireeords as provided in these Rules.


8.2.2 To ensure the integrity of the City's records, no rcqucstor may remove a record
from the viewing area, disassemble any record. alter or mark on any record. or
photograph any record. When necessary the PRO will assign the Records Clerklwenager
or another City staff person to monitor the inspectionactivity to ensure compliance with
the foregoing.


8.2.3 Following the viewing session and before leaving the premises. the requestor shall
account to the PRO or monitor's satisfaction for each record viewed or inspected. and the
PRO or monitor shall verify the status of each such record. See Rules 9, 10 and I 1
for other security requirements.


.8-2,-;4._. . A.1,1_,r,€,<,=9rd§p.r.0_v_i.d..e,d,i_r,1,.r_<2$r>.<_>_rz$.Li,t9,21r!,in,Sr2.6.C!i,°,n=*r_e..sul?i9°.t.te>.Rule10-
8.3 Copies and Payment


The requester may list or indicate which records or portions thereotishc/hewishes to have
copied or scanned, and provide the required payment therefor in accordance with these
Rules.


8.4 Inspection of Voluminous Records
When a request is made to inspect a large number of records. the PRO may provide--
access for inspection and copying in installments if the PRO reasonably determines that it
would be practical or efficient to provide the records in that manner.


9.0 PROTECTED RECORDS; NON-RECORDS; REDACTIONS AND
EXEMPTIONS


9.1 Exemptions Under the Act and Other Statutes
9.1.1
records are exempt in whole or in part from public inspection and copying.


The Act and other state statutes provide that certain
For


Scope of Exemptions.


ORD. ADOPTING 2018 PRA
REGULATIONS -- Page 20 M39
815730 5/014455 00053


Formatted: Font: Bold


' Formatted: Indent: Left: 0.5"


AGENDA ITEM #C.


Public Records Access; New Management Rules and Policies; New MCMC Chapt... Page 37 of 131







9.2


9.3


FINAL DRAFT
3.27.2018 COUNCIL MEETING


information and convenience, a partial, non-exhaustive list of such records and
authorizing statutes is attached at Appendix Q, along with identi?cation ofother, similar
lists. Requestors should be aware of these and other exemptions which may restrict the
disclosure of some records held by the City and/or can delay disclosure ofthe records for
completion ofa detailed review thereof and preparation ofa privilege log. In performing
this review, the PRO will be alert to potential legal risks and issues in determining the
application of such exemptions and scope of rcdactions '


pungement. 51-he


9.1.2 Consultation with City Manager and City Attorney. The PRO will consult
with the City Manager and City Attomey as necessary to con?nn determinations of
exempt records or redactions thereof, or to obtain advice regarding exemptions and
redactions that may not be obvious. No record that is exempt, in whole or in part, under
the Act or other applicable statutes or authority may be produced in response to a records
request without prior approval of the PRO or City Manager, who will consult with the
City Attomey as needed.


9.1.3 Redaction and Withholding of Records. Records that are exempt from
disclosure in their entirety should be withheld. If only a portion ofa record is exempt but
the remainder is not exempt, the PRO redact the exempt portions in consultation
with the City Manager or City Attomey as man‘ he necessag and disclose the nonexempt
portions.


9.1.4 Exemption/Redaction Log. If a record is wholly exempt from disclosure and
should be withheld.or is partially exempt and should be redacted. the PRO will create an
exemption/redaction log that
identities each exempt or redacted record, states the specific exemption(s) that applies.
and provides a brief explanation of how the exemption applies to the record being
withheld or redacted. The explanation should be sufficient to enable the requestor or a
third party 1e.a.. 'ud2e) to make a threshold determination of whether the claimed
exemption is appropriate. A form Exemption/Redaction Log is attached at Appendix 5.
Lists Requested for Commercial Purposes
The City is prohibited by the Act from producing lists of individuals or businesses for
commercial purposes. %+%w


If a records request is ‘notclear about this. reeei-=ed—end—the
the PRO mustwill inquire with the requestor to ascertain the
requestor's intent. lfthe PRO determines the request includesa list that is to be used for
commercial purposes, the list mavwil-lnot be produced and the request will be denied.


Identi?able Records Required
A requester must request an "identiliable record" or "class of records" before the City
must comply with the request. Failure to do so may result in a request being denied. An
identi?able record is one that the PRO can reasonably locate. The Act does not allow a
requestor to search through the City's tiles for records which cannot be reasonably
identified or described. A request for all or substantially all records prepared. owned,


ORD. ADOPTING 2018 PRA
REGULATIONS -- Page 21 0139
B|6710 5/014455 00063


AGENDA ITEM #C.


Public Records Access; New Management Rules and Policies; New MCMC Chapt... Page 38 of 131







9.4


10.0


10.1


10.2


10.3


10.4


10.5


FINAL DRAFT
3.27.2018COUNCIL MEETING


used. or retained by the City is not a valid request for identitiable records. A request for
all records regarding a particular topic or containing a particular key word or name is not
considered a request for all ofthe City's records.


Requests for Information or Noncxistent Records
Requests for infomiation do‘not constitute a records request under the Act and may be
denied. The City is not required to conduct research for a requester, nor to create records
in response to a request. Notwithstanding that. if the PRO in his/her discretion
determines in clarifying a request that the request can be more easily fulfilled in such a
manner, the PRO may be authorized to do so upon approval of the City Manager,
provided that no such response will be considered to create a course of action, course of
dealing, or precedent for any reason.


PROVIDING RECORDS


Payment for Records
No records may be inspected. sent or delivered to, obtained by, or claimed by a requestor
prior to full payment ofthe charges therefor in accordance with these Rules.


Delivery of Records
Records delivered by email or other electronic fonn (e.g., drop box) are deemed received
by the requestor upon transmittal of the records to the requestor’s designated email or
agreed drop box address. Records delivered by U.S. Mail or overnight delivery service
will be deemed received upon placement of the records in the custody of the carrier or
delivery service, postage or delivery prepaid, to the requestor's designated physical
address.


Secure Identi?cation and Retention of Records Provided
All records provided under these Rules, except Counter Records. regardless of the format
in which provided, shall be numbered, Bates stamped, or identi?ed in a manner, means
and format that will enable accurate comparison of such records with the City's original
records. The City shall make and retain an accurate electronic or digital copy of every
record or set of records provided to a requestor under these Rules, and shall retain such
copies in accordance with the state or City records retention schedule.


Pickup or Review of Records
The PRO will notify the requester in writing when requested records are ready for
retrieval or inspection at the City. The noti?cation will inform the requester that s/he
should Contact the PRO to make arrangements to claim or review the records. A
requestor must claim or review assembled records within 30 days of the PRO's
noti?cation that the records are available. If the requestor or a representative of the
requestor fails to claim or review the records within the 30-day period or make other
arrangements. the PRO may stop searching for any remaining records. close the request
as abandoned. and dispose of the records.


Installments
When a request is made for a large number of records, the PRO may copy and provide
access in installments (also known as a rolling disclosure) in accordance with the
foregoing subsections. If. within 30 days of notice. the requester fails to pay for and


ORD. ADOPTING Z018 PRA
REGULATIONS -— Page 22 M39
E16730 5/014455 00063


AGENDA ITEM #C.


Public Records Access; New Management Rules and Policies; New MCMC Chapt... Page 39 of 131







10.6


11.0


11.1


11.2


11.3


11.4


12.0


12.1


12.2


12.3


FINAL DRAFT
3.27.2018 COUNCIL MEETING


retrieve any installment, the PRO may stop searching for any remaining records, close the
request and dispose ofthe records.


Later Discovered Records
If. alter the PRO has informed a requestor that all responsive records have been provided,
the PRO becomes aware of additional responsive documents existing at the time of the
request that had not been provided previously, the PRO will inform the requestor of such
additional documents and provide them as soon as reasonably feasible. The City has no
obligation to provide records created or occurring after the end date of the records
request. whether responsive or not. See Rule 5.12.


ELECTRONIC AND DIGITAL RECORDS


General
An electronic or digital record is any record that exists in any form or fashion other than
as an original paper or other physical record, and includes computerized records, audio
records. and Visual/video/pictographic records. In addition to the other requirements of
these Rules. electronic and digital records shall comply with the following.


Providing Electronic and Digital Records
If records are requested in an electronic format. the PRO will provide such records as are
reasonably locatable in an electronic format that is used by the City and is generally
commercially available, or in a format that is reasonably translatable from the format in
which the City keeps the records.


Customized Access to Databases
With the consent of the requestor and if ef?cient for the City, the PRO may provide
customized electronic access to records in accordance with the Act if the records are not
reasonably locatable or not reasonably translatable into the format requested. The City
may charge a fee consistent with the Act for such customized access, The PRO shall not
allow direct access by any requestor to the City's computer or records systems.


Retaining Electronic Copies
See Rule I0.


COSTS OF PROVIDING AND PAYMENT FOR RECORDS


Payment for Records
No records may be inspected, sent or delivered to. or claimed by. a requcstor prior to full
payment of the charges therefor in accordance with these Rules.


Cost Schedule
Because the City finds that calculating the actual costs incurred for each record request
submitted to the City would be unduly burdensome, the City has detcnnined it is most
time and cost ef?cicnt to utilize the standard costs authorized by RCW 4256.120, as now
or hereafter amended. Such standard costs shall applv to actions under these Rules even
if the Rules or MCMC ch. 3.42 are not timely amended to conform with state law
changes regarding such costs.


Statutory Costs for Copies and Scans of Records


ORD. AD0l’Tlt\'G 2018 PRA
REGULATIONS —— Page 23 of39
816730 5/014455 00063


AGENDA ITEM #C.


Public Records Access; New Management Rules and Policies; New MCMC Chapt... Page 40 of 131







FINAL DRAFT
3.27.2018 COUNCIL MEETING


A requestor may obtain copies or scans or records as provided by RCW 42.56.l20(2)(b)1
and WAC 44-l4-07003. The City will charge for such copies or scans according to the
fee schedule in Table 12.3.1 below. For records in other forms, the City will charge the
actual cost it pays for the medium used to reproduce the records provided.


'I_’able123.1
Statute ~ Costsfor-1_1eeogtl“.s


Form of Record Reproduction and/or Transmission Cast


Photocopiesof public records, printed copies ofelectronic public records
when requested by the requester, or use of agency equipment to
photocopy public records


$0.15 per page


Public records scanned into electronic format, or use of agency
equipment to scan the records


$0.10 per page


For every four (4) electronic ?les or attachments uploaded to email,
cloud-baseddata storage service.or other means ofelectronic deliver '


$0.05 per page


Transmission of public record in electronic fonnat or for use ofageney
equipment to send the records electronically (the City will take
reasonable means to provide records in most efficient manner available
to City in its normal operations)


$0.10 per gigabyte


Digital storage media or device provided by City (cg. tapes, ?oppy
disks, CDs, DVDs. flash storage devices); container or envelope used to
mail copies to requestor; actual postage or delivery charge


Actual cost


12.4


12.5


12.6


Combined Charges
The charges in Table l2.3.l may be combined to the extent more than one type ofcharge
applies to copies produced in response to a particular request. The statements providing
actual costs to the City for digital storage media, containers or envelopes, and postage or
delivery are the invoices paid to obtain them and are available for public inspection and
copying.


Estimated Charges
If requested by the requester, the City will provide a summary ol‘ applicable charges
before any copies or scans are made and the requestor may revise the request to reduce
the number of copies and/or request production in alternative form to reduce applicable
charges.


Deposits and lnstallments
Before starting to make copies, the PRO may require a deposit ofup to ten percent of the
estimated costs of copying, scanning, and/or reproduction of the records requested by the
requester, including a customized sen/ice charge if applicable. The PRO will require full
payment of the remainder of the copying/scanning costs before providing all of the


'SeeRCW 42.56 120.as amended, EHB 1595, 2017 Regular Session, ch. 304, at § 3 (2017)


0RD. ADOPTING 2018 PRA
REGULATIONS ~ Page 24 M39
816730 5/014455 D0063


AGENDA ITEM #C.


Public Records Access; New Management Rules and Policies; New MCMC Chapt... Page 41 of 131







FINAL DRAFT
3.27.2018COUNCIL MEETING


records, or the payment of the costs of copying/scanning a future installment before
providing that installment.


12.7 Sales Tax; Outside Vendors
The City will not charge sales tax for copies or scans of records in house. However, if
records are sent to a third party or outside vendor for copying or scanning, that third party
may charge sales tax and the requestor will be responsible for payment ofthe tax as well
as the third party‘s actual charges for copies or scans.


12.8 Mailing and Delivery Costs
The City may charge actual costs of mailing or delivery, including the cost of the
shipping container.


12.9 Certi?cation or Notary Costs
The City shall impose the charge established under MCMC 3.42 per record for
certification or notarization.


12.10 Other Applicable Copying Charges
The Act generally governs copying charges for public records, but several statutes govern
charges for particular kinds of records. As to such records, the City will charge the
amount authorized pursuant to such other statutes rather than as provided under the Act.
The following non-exhaustive list provides some examples of those records: RCW
4652.085 (charges for traftic accident reports); RCW 10.97.lO0 (copies of criminal
histories).


12.11 Use ofOutside Vendor
The City is not required to copy or scan records at its own facilities, and copies may be
outsourced as appropriate. The City may send records requests to commercial copying
and scanning businesses and bill the requestor for the amount charged by the outside
vendor. At its discretion, the City may agree to allow the requestor to pay the vendor
directly. The City cannot charge the default per page copying or scanning charge when
its actual cost at an outside vendor is less.


12.12 Customized Service Charge
12.12.] In addition to charges imposed for providing copies and for the use of City
equipment for copying. the City may include a customized service charge. A customized
service charge may only be imposed if the City estimates that the request would require
use of information technology expertise to prepare data compilations. or provide
customized electronic access services when such compilations require customized access
services and are not generally used by the City for other City purposes.


12.122 The City may require reimbursement by the requestor up to the actual cost of
providing the customized service. The City may only assess a customized service charge
a?er notifying the requestor of the customized service charge to be applied to the request.
an explanation of \vhy the charge applies, a description ofthe specilic expertise. and a
reasonable estimated cost of the charge.


12.l2.3 The requester will be afforded the opportunity to amend the request to avoid or
reduce the cost ofa customized service charge.


ORD. ADOPTING 2018 PR-\


REGULATIONS —— Page 25 M39
816730 51014455 00063


AGENDA ITEM #C.


Public Records Access; New Management Rules and Policies; New MCMC Chapt... Page 42 of 131







12.13


12.14


12.15


13.0


13.1


13.2


13.3


FINAL DRAFT
3.27.2018COUNCIL MEETING


De Minimis Charges
- 12.13.] The City will waive de minimis charges for providing public records when all of
the following apply to a request: The total amount ofthe charge is $5.00 or less; the total
number of pages produced is 25 pages or less; no outside vendor costs are incurred by the
City; no redaction or exemption determination is required; and the request comprises a
Category 1 or Category 2 request under Rule 7.4.


12.13.2 The City may enter into any contract or other agreement with a requcstor that
provides an alternative fee arrangement to the charges authorized in these Rules, or in
response to a voluminous or frequently occurring request.


Copying Charges for Documents Routinely Posted on City Website
The City will not impose charges for the requestor's access to or downloading of records
that are routinely available on the City's website. However. ifthe requested records are
routinely posted on the City's website prior to receipt of a request and the requestor
specifically asks the City to provide the requestor with hard or electronic copies thereof,
then the charges speci?ed in this Rule will apply.


Payment
Payment shall be made by cash. debit card, or credit card. Payment by money order or
check must be preapproved by the PRO, and ifallowed shall be made payable to the City
of Mill Creek. The City reserves the right to charge a convenience fee for credit card
charges exceeding $|00.00.


REVIEW OF DENIALS OF PUBLIC RECORDS REQUESTS
Administrative Review of Denial of Records Request
Any person who objects to the initial denial or partial denial of a records request may
petition in writing (including email, but not text message) to the PRO for an internal
administrative review of that decision. The petition shall include a copy of the written
statement by the PRO denying the request. shall be ?led within ten (10) business days of
the date of the denial, and shall contain a short and plain statement of the requestor's
reasons for the petition and remedy desired.


Consideration of Petition
The PRO shall promptly provide the petition and any other relevant information to the
Public Records Steering Committee for its review. The PRSC, without participation by
the PRO, will consider and decide the petition within thirty days following the PRSC's
receipt ofthe petition, or within such other time as the City and the requestor agree. The
PRSC may consult with the requester or other persons for that pur'p0se as deemed
appropriate. The PRSC shall either uphold, reverse or modify the PRO's decision in
whole or in part, and state its decision in the form provided at Appendix §. The PRSC
decision shall be distributed to the requester, PRO and other persons as appropriate. The
PRO shall be responsible to implementthe PRSC decision.


The availability or use ofthis administrative review process is provided as a convenience
to requestors, and it shall not in any manner alter or affect the requirements. provisions or
time limits ofjudicial review applicable to any City action taken under these Rules.


ORD. ADOPTING 2018 PRA
REGULATIONS —— Page 26 ol‘39
816730 5101-34550006)


AGENDA ITEM #C.


Public Records Access; New Management Rules and Policies; New MCMC Chapt... Page 43 of 131







FINAL DRAFI‘
3.27.2018 COUNCIL MEETING


14.0 JUDICIAL REVIEW


14.1 Any requester aggrieved by a qualifying action or decision of the City taken under these
Rules may obtain judicial review thereof if, as, and to the extent allowed under RCW
42.56.550.


15.0 APPENDICES AND FORMS


Appendix 1: 5-Day Response Form [Rule 6.32]
Appendix ;: Third Party Notice Form [Rule 6.6]
Appendix §: Partial Listing oflixemption Statutes [Rule 9.l.l]
Appendix 5: Exemption/Redaction Log Form [Rule 9.1.4]
Appendix §: PRSC Administrative Review Decision Form [Rule 13.2]


ORD. AI)OI”I‘ING 2018 I’RA
REGULATIONS -- Page 27 M39
3167305/014455 00063


AGENDA ITEM #C.


Public Records Access; New Management Rules and Policies; New MCMC Chapt... Page 44 of 131







FINAL DRAFT
3.27.2018 COUNCIL MEETING


APPENDIX 1


5-Dav Response Form
[Rule 6.3.2]


[Date]


[Requestor Name]
[Requester Contact Information]


Re: Public Records Request Number /insertapplicable request number]


Dear [Requestor Name]:


Per the Public Records Act, we are hereby responding to your [date request submitted] request
for the following records:


Insert descriptionof requested records


Insert one or more ofthe following, as applicable:


The City has completed a review ofits records in response to your request. The documents you
requested may be reviewed at City Hall, Monday through Friday, 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m.,
excluding legal holidays. We will hold these records for your review until [30 days from date of
this letter]. after which the City will deem your records request abandoned.


OR


The records you requested are available online at the City's website. Please infonn me if you
have any difticulty accessing the records online and we can make alternative arrangements. The
records may be found at the following link: Insert


OR


We need additional time to respond to your request in order to locate and assemble the
information requested, notify third parties affected by the request if necessary, to determine
whether any ofthe information contained in the requested records is exempt from disclosure, and
to determine whether the request should be denied under applicable rules and law. We plan to
respond to your request on or before [date] and apologize for any inconvenience this may cause.


OR


The City is unclear as to what records you are seeking pursuant to the following portion of the
request: [quote portion of request that is unclear]. We believe you may be seeking records that
[insert City’: interpretation of what records Requestor may be seeking]. Please confirm that we
understand your request correctly and we will tllproceed processing the request. lfthis is not
what you intended. please respond in writing and clarify the nature of records being sought.


OR


We have detcnnined that your request should be denied for the following reasons. List


ORD. ADOPTING 2018 PRA
REGULATIONS -- Page 28 M39
816730 5/014-155 00063


AGENDA ITEM #C.


Public Records Access; New Management Rules and Policies; New MCMC Chapt... Page 45 of 131







DRD,ADOPTING-2018BRA
— rug: 2» ans


nmq.szp:«:5.oooga


AGENDA ITEM #C.


Public Records Access; New Management Rules and Policies; New MCMC Chapt... Page 46 of 131







FINAL DRAFT
3.27.2018COUNCIL MEETING


APPENDIX 2


Third Partv Notice Form
[Rule 646]


[Date]


[Name of Third Party]


[Third Party Contact Information]


Re.‘ Public Records‘Request Number [irnrerlapplicable request number]


Dear [Third Party Name]:


On [date request received], the City of Mill Creek ("City") received a request from [name of
requestorl for disclosure ofpublie records pursuant to the Public Records Act. The request seeks
disclosure ofthc following records:


Insert descriptionof requested records


The City has determined that some records responsive to the foregoing!-h-isrequest may pertain to
you. and Jihe-Git-y—reasonablybelieves that some or all ofgt-he records may
be exempt from disclosure. However, the City is not taking any position as to whether these
records can legally be withheld from disclosure. This City is providing this notice to vou so that
you me—y—havethe opportunity to consult with an attomcv should you desire. and so you may


seek to obtain an order trom a court enjoining release ofthe records, ifyou so choose.


The City anticipates that it will release these records to the records requestor en—[-10days from
date of this letter] unless you obtain 21court order enjoining release. The requester has an interest
in any legal action to prevent disclosure ofthe records he or she has requested. Accordingly, you
should name the rcquestor as a party to any action to enjoin disclosure.


Please feel—free-Kreontaclme if you have w-it-h—anyquestion .


Sincerely.


name
Public Records Officer
City ofMil| Creek
l5728 Main Street
Mill Creek. WA 98012
Phone r425-745—l89l
Fax: 25-745-9650


ORD. ADOPTING 2018 PRA
REGULATIONS ~- Page 30 M3‘)


E16730 5/014455 00063


AGENDA ITEM #C.


Public Records Access; New Management Rules and Policies; New MCMC Chapt... Page 47 of 131







APPENDIX 3


Partial Listing of ExemptionStatutes
[Rule 9.1.1]


[To Be Updated in Augustof Each Year]


The following partial, non-exclusive list identities public records disclosure exemptions and
prohibitions contained in other statutes than the PublicRecords Act.


Another list of statutes and regulations providing exemptions or prohibitions from disclosure
under the PRA can be found in the Appendix C to the Municipal Research Service Center's
publication entitled Public Records Act for Washington Cities, Counties, and Special [’m'pr2se
Districts, which can be found at the following link: http://mrsc.org/getmedia/796a2402-9ad4-
4bde-a22 l-0d6814ef6edc/publicrecordpdilaspx.


A third list of such exemptions may be found on the State of Washington, Office ofthe Attorney
General's Sunshine Committee website: http://uwvu'.atg.wa.gov/sunshine-committee.


Washington State Con?dentiality Statutes and Rules


Statute Disclosure Exemption And / Or Prohibition
RCW 2.64.111 Judicial conduct commission investigations ofjudges and


initial proceedings
RCW 4.24.550 Infon-nation on sex offenders
RCW 4.24.601 and .61 1 Trade secrets and con?dential research, development or


commercial information re products or business methods
RCW 5.60.060 Privileged communications
RCW 5.60.070:RCW Mediation records
7.07.070
RCW 7.68.140 Victims’ compensationclaims
RCW 7.69/\.030(4) Name.address and photograph ofchild victim or child


witness
RCW 7.69A.050 Child victims and witnesses ofcertain crimes — protection


of address
RCW 7.75.050 Records of Dispute Resolution Centers
RCW 9.02.100 Reproductiveprivacy
RCW 9.4l.097(2) Mental health information re persons buying pistols or


applyingfor CPLs
RCW 9.41.129 Concealed pistol license applications
RCW 9.73.230 Name ofconiidential infonnants in written report on wire


tapping
RCW 9.51.050 Disclosing transaction ofgrandjury
RCW 9.51.060 Disclosure ofgrandjury deposition
RCW 9.73.090(1)(c) Prohibition on disclosure oflaw enforcement dash cam


AGENDA ITEM #C.


Public Records Access; New Management Rules and Policies; New MCMC Chapt... Page 48 of 131







FINAL DRAFT
3.27.2018 COUNCIL MEETING


Washington State Con?dentiality Statutes and Rules


Statute Disclosure Exemption And / Or Prohibition


videos until ?nal disposition oflitigation
RCW 9A.44.l38 Offender registration information given to high school or


institution ofhigher education re an employee or student
RCW 9A.82.l70 Financial institution records re criminal profitcering acl


RCW l0.27.090 Grand jury testimony/evidence
RCW 10.27. 160 Grand jury reports — release to public only by judicial order
RCW 1052.100 Records identifying child victims ofsexual assault
RCW 10.77.205 Information re victims, next ofkin, or witnesses requesting


notice ofrelease ofperson found not guilty ofa sex,
violent, or felony harassment offense by reason ofcriminal
insanity and the notice itself


RCW l0.SZ.I00 Records identifying child victim of sexual assault
RCW10.77.210 Records of persons committed for criminal insanity
RCW l0.97.040 Criminal history information released must include


disposition,with some exceptions
RCW l0.97.050 Conviction and criminal history information
RCW 1097.060 Deletion ofcertain criminal history record information.


conditions
RCW I0/97.070 Disclosure of identity of suspect to victim
RCW 10.97080 Inspectionof criminal record by subject
RCW10.97.130 Information about victims of sexual assault under age


eighteen
ncw l0.101.020(3) Information given by an accused regarding detcn-nination


for indigent defense
RCW 1334.115 Court dependency proceedings
RCW13.40.2l7 Juveniles adjudicated ofsex offenses — release of


information
RCW 1350.010 Maintenance of and access to juvenile records
RCW 1350.050 Juvenile offender records
RCW 13,50,100 Juvenile/children records not relating to offenses
RCW 1360.020 Missingchildrcnor endangered person information
RCW 1804.405 Confidentiality ofinformation gained by CPA
RCW18.19.060 Notification to clients by counselors
RCW l8.l9.l80 Con?dential communications with counselors
RCW I9.2l5.020 Destruction ofgrsonal health and ?nancial information
RCW l9.34.240(3) Private digitalsignaturekeys
RCW 19.215030 Compliance with federal rules
RCW 26.04.175 Name and address ofdomestic violence victim in marriage


ORD. ADOPTING 2018 PRA
REGULATIONS —- Page 32 M39
816730 5/01-I455 D0063


AGENDA ITEM #C.


Public Records Access; New Management Rules and Policies; New MCMC Chapt... Page 49 of 131







FINAL DRAFT
3.27.2018 COUNCIL MEETING


Washington State Con?dentiality Statutes and Rules


Statute Disclosure Exemption And /Or Prohibition
records


RCW 26.l2.l70 Reports ofchild abuse/neglect with courts
RCW 2623.050 Child support orders
RCW 26.21120 Child support records
RCW 2626.041 Uniform Parentaoe Act — protection ofparticipants
RCW 26.26.450 Con?dentiality ofgenetic testing
RCW 26.33.330 Sealed court adoption records
RCW 26.33.340 Agency adoption records
RCW 26.33.343 Access to adoption records by con?dential intermediary
RCW 26.33.380 Adoption — identity ofbirth parents con?dential
RCW 26.44010 Privacy ofreports on child abuse and neglect
RCW 26.44.03l Information related to reports of child abuse or neglect
RCW 26.44.125 Reports, reviews and hearings related to a review of abuse


?nding
RCW 2753.070 Records identifying the location ofarchaeological sites
RCW 29A.08.720 Voter registration records — place of registration and any


decision
not to register to vote con?dential


RCW 29A.08.7l0 Voter registration records — certain information exempt
RCW 35.l02.145 Municipalbusiness and occupation tax — local ordinance


can protect retum or tax information
RCW 36.28A.060(S) Tactical and intelligence informationprovided to WASPC
RCW 39.lO.470(2) Alternative public works - trade secrets or other proprietary


information submitted by bidder in connection with an
alternative public works transaction ifdata identi?ed and
reasons stated in Writing


RCW 39.l0.470(3) Altemativc public works — proposals submitted by design-
build ?nalists until noti?cation ofhighest scoring ?nalist is
made


RCW 42.23.070(4) Municipal officer disclosure ofconfidenlial information
prohibited


RCW 42.4l.030(7) Identity oflocal government whistleblower
RCW 42.4 1.045 Non—disclosureof protected information(whistleblower)
RCW 43.43.762 Contents of statewide criminal street gang database
RCW 4652.065 State toxicologist records relating to analyses of blood


samples
RCW 46.52.080 Traffic accident reports — confidentiality
RCW 46.52.083 Traffic accident reports — available to interested parties


ORD. ADOPTING 2018 PR.-\
REGULATIONS —— Page 33 ol'39
816730 5/OI4-15500063


AGENDA ITEM #C.


Public Records Access; New Management Rules and Policies; New MCMC Chapt... Page 50 of 131







FINAL DRAFT
3.27.2018 COUNCIL MEETING


Washington State Con?dentiality Statutes and Rules


Statute Disclosure Exemption And / Or Prohibition
RCW 46.52120 Traf?c crimes and infractions — con?dential use by police


and courts
RCW 46.52.130(2) Abstract ofdriving record — limited disclosure
RCW 48.62.10] Local government insurance/riskmanagement liability


reserve
fundsestablished to settle claims


RCW 50.l3.060 Access to employment security records by local
government agencies


RCW 50.l3. 100 Disclosure of con?dential employment security records
allowed if identifying information deleted or with consent


RCW 5128.070 Workers compensation records con?dential — limited
disclosure


RCW 5 l36.060 Physician information on injured workers
RCW 60.70.040 No duty to disclose record of common law lien
RCW 6850.105 Autgnsy reports — con?dential ~ limited disclosure
RCW 68.50.320 Dental identi?cation records — available to law


enforcement agencies
Ch. 70.02 RCW Medical records — access and disclosure — entire chapter


(information from HC providers)
RCW 7005.170 Child mortality reviews by local health departments


RCW 70.24.022 Public health agency information regarding sexually
transmitted disease investigations - confidential


RCW 70.24.024 Transcripts and records of hearings regarding sexually
transmitted diseases


RCW 70.28.020 Local health department TB records — con?dential
RCW 70.41200 Hospital quality improvement committee records and


accreditation reports
RCW 70.48.l00 Jail records and booking photos
RCW 7058.055 Birth certi?cates — certain informationcon?dential
RCW 7058.104 Vital records, research con?dentiality safeguards
RCW 70.94.205 Washington Clean Air Act — confidentiality of data.
RCW 70.96A. 150 Registration and other records ofalcohol and drug abuse


treatment programs
RCW 70.l23.075 Client records ofdomestic violence programs
RCW 70.l25.065 Records ofcommunity sexual assault program and


underserved populations provider in discovery
RCW 71.05.425 Notice of release or transfer ofcommitted person a?er


offense dismissal


ORD. ADOPTING 2018 PRA
REGULATIONS — Page 34 of39
B16730 5/0|-1-155 00063


AGENDA ITEM #C.


Public Records Access; New Management Rules and Policies; New MCMC Chapt... Page 51 of 131







FINAL DRAFT
3.27.ZOI8 COUNCIL MEETING


Washington State Con?dentiality Statutes and Rules


Statute Disclosure Exemption And / Or Prohibition


RCW 7l.05.445 Release of mental health information to Dept. of
Corrections


RCW 7 1.05.620 Access to court records related to mental health cases
under chapter 7l.05 RCW


RCW 7l.24.035(5)(g) Mental health information system — state, county and
regional support networks — confidentiality ofclient
records


RCW 7l.34.335 Mental health treatment ofminors — records con?dential
RCW 7lA.l4.07O Records regarding developmental disability —


con?dentiality
RCW 72.09.345 Notice to public about sex offenders — department of


corrections access to information
RCW 72.09585 Disclosure ofinmate records to local agencies —


con?dentiality
RCW 73.04.030 Veterans discharge papers exemption (see related RCW


42.56.440)
RCW 74.04.060 Applicants and recipients of public assistance
RCW 74.04520 Food stamp program con?dentiality
RCW 74.l3.075(5) .luvenile’s status as a sexually aggressive youth and related


info
RCW 74.13280 Children in out—of—homeplacements — con?dentiality
RCW 74.20.280 Child support enforcement 4 local agency cooperation,


information
RCW 74.34.095 Abuse ofvulnerable adults — con?dentiality of


investigations and reports
RCW 82.32.330 Disclosure oftax information
RCW 84.36.389 Con?dential income data in propeny tax records held by


BSSCSSOI


RCW 84.40.020 Con?dential income data supplied to assessor regarding
real property


ORD. ADOPTING 2018 PRA
REGULATIONS -— Page 35 M39
sumo 5/014455 coon:


AGENDA ITEM #C.


Public Records Access; New Management Rules and Policies; New MCMC Chapt... Page 52 of 131







FINAL DRAFT
3.27.2018 COUNCIL MEETING


Selected Federal Con?dentiality Statutes and Rules


Statute Disclosure Exemption And /Or Prohibition
18 USC § 2721 - 2725 Driver and License Plate Information
20 use § l232g Family Education Rights and Privacy Act
23 USC § 409 Evidence ofcertain accident reports


42 USC 290dd-2 Con?dentiality ofsubstancc Abuse Records
42 USC § 405(c)(2)(C)(viii)
(I)


Limits on Use and Disclosure of Social Security Numbers


42 USC 654(26) State Plans for Child Support
42 USC 671(a)(8) State Plans for Foster Care and Adgation Assistance
42 USC l396a(7) State Plans for Medical Assistance
7 CFR 272.l(c) Food Stamp Applicantsand Recipients
34 CFR 361.38 State Vocational Rehabilitation Services Programs
42 CFR Part 2 (2.1 - 2.67) Con?dentiality ofA|eoho| and Drug Abuse Patient


Records
42 CFR 431.300 - 307 Safeguarding Information on Applicants and Recipients of


Medical Assistance
42 CFR 483.420 Client Protections for Intermediate Care Facilities for the


Mentally Retarded
42 CFR 5106a Grants to States for Child Abuse and Neglect Prevention


and Treatment Programs
45 CFR 160-164 HIPAA Privacy Rule
46 CFR 40.321 USCG revulations regardingcon?dentiality


ORD. ADOPTING 2018 PRA
REGULATIONS —- Page 36 M39
816730 5/(H4455 00063


AGENDA ITEM #C.


Public Records Access; New Management Rules and Policies; New MCMC Chapt... Page 53 of 131







APPENDIX 4


FINAL DRAFT
3.27.2018 COUNCIL MEETING


Exemption/Redaction Log Form
[Rule 9.1.4]


PRIVILEGE/EXEMPTION LOG
City of Mill Creek


Public Records Request Number , Dated ,
Document Type Date Author Recipient ExemptionlExpIanation Pages
/ Description (including


CC's)
Draft of 5/1/17 Patty Johnson, Joe Smith, I-IR Attorney/Client RCW 560.060; 3
termination City Attorney Director RCW 42.56280
reason letter
Memo rc Alice 4/28/17 Bob Thompson, Joe Smith Work Product 4256.290; RCW 2
Adams Finance 42.56280 Prepared in


Director anticipation oflegal claims to be
?led by Alice Adams


Email 4/26/l7 Jane Jones Patty Johnson. Atlomey/Client RCW 5.60.060: 1
City Attorney RCW 4256.280


REDACTION LOG
City of Mill Creek


Public Records Request Number , Dated ,
Document Type Date Author Recipient Exemption/Explanation Pages
/ Description (including


CC's)
Email. 4/27/17 Janc Jones Patty Johnson. Attomey/Client RCW 5.60.060; 1
"Employee City Attorney RCW 42.56280
Harassment"


ORD. ADOPTING 2018 PRA
REGULATIONS — Page 37 M39
816730 5/014455 oooes


AGENDA ITEM #C.


Public Records Access; New Management Rules and Policies; New MCMC Chapt... Page 54 of 131







FINAL DRAFT
3.27.2018COUNCIL MEETING


APPENDIX 5


PRSC Administrative Review Decision Form
[Rule 132]


City of Mill Creek
Public Records Steering Committee


Administrative Review Decision


1. Records Request Number:


2. Date Records Request Received:


3. Rcquestor:


4. Description of Records Reguest:


[insert]


’JI


Date PRO Denied Records Request:


6. Reasongsg PRO Denied Records Reguest:


[insert]


7. Date Reguestor Petitioned PRSC
for Administrative Review of Denial:


8. PRSC Findings and Decision on Petition:


Check applicable box.


- Denial ofrecords request aftinncd [ ]


- Denial ofrccords request aftirmcd in pan. and reversed in pan I ]


I Denial of records request overtumed | ]


9. Reasons for PRSC Decision on Petition:


[insert]


10. Date of PRSC Decision on Petition:


ORD *\DO|)TlNG Z018 PR4
REG ,l.ATl0t\'S -- Page 38 M39
M6730 ii0l-1-X5500063


AGENDA ITEM #C.


Public Records Access; New Management Rules and Policies; New MCMC Chapt... Page 55 of 131







FINAL DRAFT
3.27.2018COUNCIL MEETING


Mill Creek Public Records Steering Committee


Signature:
Name:
Title: City Manager (or designee
Date:


Signature:
Name:
Title: City Clerk or designee
Date:


Signature:
Name:
Title: Public Records Officer or designee)
Date:


Signature:
Name:
Title: Deputy Police Chief or designee)
Date:


Signature: .
Name:
Title: City Attorney (or designee


Date:


ORI). ADOPTING 2018 PRA
REGULATIONS -— Page 39 M39
8l573D 5/OI-‘I45500063


AGENDA ITEM #C.


Public Records Access; New Management Rules and Policies; New MCMC Chapt... Page 56 of 131







ORDINANCE NO. 2018-


AN ORDINANCE ‘OF THE CITY OF MILL CREEK, WASHINGTON,
AMENDING MILL CREEK MUNICIPAL CODE CHAPTER 3.42,FEES AND
OTHER ASSESSMENTS, FOR THE PURPOSE OF ADDING AND
ADOPTING FEES, COSTS, CHARGES AND OTHER ASSESSMENTS
APPLICABLE TO ACTIONS TAKEN IN CONFORMANCE WITH THE
STATE PUBLIC RECORDS ACT, RCW CH. 42.56,ANDTHE MILL CREEK
PUBLIC RECORDS MANAGEMENT REGULATIONS, MCMC CH. 2.06;
AND ESTABLISHING AN EFFECTIVE DATE


WHEREAS, Mill Creek Municipal Code (MCMC)Chapter 3.42 establishes and sets forth
various charges, fees and other assessments applicable to City actions; and


WHEREAS, new MCMC Chapter 2.06 was adopted by the City Council to implementnew
regulations, policies and procedures for the City relating to the state Public Records Act, RCW
Chapter 42.56, including fees and charges applicable thereto; and


WHEREAS, MCMC section 2.06.110 provides as follows:


2.06.110 Fees and costs
The Rules shall provide for the recovery of charges, fees and costs as


pennitted under the Act, including statutory charges, customized charges when
appropriate, waiver of de minimis charges, and ef?cient payment methods. To the
extent necessary, such charges,fees and costs shall be included in and/or coordinated
with the city's fee schedule at MCMC ch. 3.42; and


WHEREAS, the City Council desires to implementMCMC section2.06.110 and ?nds such
action to be consistent with state law and in the public interest;


NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MILL CREEK,
WASHINGTON, ORDAINS AS FOLLOWS:


Section 1. MCMC Chapter 3.42 (Fees and Other Assessments) is hereby amended as set
forth below.


Section 2. MCMC section 3.42.020 (De?nitions) is amended to read as follows:


A. In addition to the de?nitions provided in the particular code sectionto which a fee
refers or relates, when used in this chapter the following terms shall have the
following meanings, unless the context clearly indicates otherwise:


ADOPTION OF PRA FEES AND ASSESSMENTS -- 1
829212.:/o144s5.ooo72


AGENDA ITEM #C.


Public Records Access; New Management Rules and Policies; New MCMC Chapt... Page 57 of 131







1. "Fee" means and includes any fee, assessment, cost. charge, penalty, payment,
reimbursement, monetary sum or the like, which is payable to the city as required
under the Mill Creek Municipal Code.


Section 3. Existing Article IA (MCMC Title 4 Fees) ofMCMC Chapter 3.42 and MCMC
section 3.42.047 (Fees under Chapter 4.34 MCMC — Office of Hearing Examiner) are amended to
read as follows:


Article IEA.MCMC Title 4 Fees


3.42.04§~7 Fees under Chapter 4.34 MCMC — Office of Hearing Examiner
A. The fee to the applicant, proponent or appellant for utilization of the examiner
shall be the actual cost of the examiner's services, including the examiner's time,
outside costs (e.g., court reporter services, etc.) and other direct costs incurred in
handling the matter.


B. Invoices for additional costs may be issued periodicallyby the city clerkduring the
course of any pending matter or at the conclusion thereof.


C. In the event an appellant in an appeal to the hearing examiner of an administrative
decision ?ally prevails on the issues presented in the appeal, the appellant shall not be
required to pay the costs for the examiner’s services.


Section 4. A new Article IA (MCMC Title 2 Fees) and new MCMC section 3.42.047 (Fees
under Chapter 2.06 MCMC — Public Records Management) are added to MCMC Chapter 3.42 to
read as follows:


Article IA. MCMC Title 2 Fees


3.42.047 Fees under Chapter 2.06 MCMC — Public Records Management
A. The fee to any person requesting records fromthe city pursuant to MCMC Chapter
2.06 shall be as set forth and applied in the Rules adopted under said Chapter2.06, as
now or hereafter amended.


Section 5. The City Clerk is directed to take steps as required to implement and effectuate
this Ordinance. The Clerk is authorized to correct or have corrected scrivener's errors, internal
references, and the like.


Section 6. This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect ?ve days after publication of a
summary hereof consisting ofthe title of this Ordinance, in accordance with RCW 35A.l3.200.


Adopted this day of , 2018, by a vote of for,
against, and abstaining.


ADOPTION OF PRA FEES AND ASSESSMENTS -- 2
329212.!/01445100072


AGENDA ITEM #C.


Public Records Access; New Management Rules and Policies; New MCMC Chapt... Page 58 of 131







APPROVED:


MAYOR PAMELA PRUITT


ATTEST/AUTHENTICATED:


CITY CLERK


APPROVED AS TO FORM:


OFFICE OF THE CITY ATTORNEY
SCOTT M. MISSALL, CITY ATTORNEY


FILED WITH THE CITY CLERK:


PASSED BY THE CITY COUNCIL:


PUBLISHED:


EFFECTIVE DATE:


ORDINANCE NO.:


ADOPTION OF PRA FEES AND ASSESSMENTS -- 3
329212.1/01445100072


AGENDA ITEM #C.


Public Records Access; New Management Rules and Policies; New MCMC Chapt... Page 59 of 131







CITY or


Agenda Item #L
W A S H I N G T O N Meeting Date: March 27, 2018


CITY COUNCIL AGENDA SUMMARY
City of Mill Creek, Washington


AGENDA ITEM: ADOPTION OF ORDINANCE NUMBER 2018- APPROVING
A NEW CITY POLICY REGARDING REIMBURSEMENT OF
BUSINESS EXPENSES.


PROPOSED MOTION:


0 Motion to adopt ordinance number 2018- amending Mill Creek“Municipal Code
Chapter 2.08, rescinding prior code provisions, policies and procedures concerning
expense reimbursements, approving a new City policy regarding reimbursement of
expenses and establishing an effective date.


0 Motion to repeal City of Mill Creek Policy 97-006 (Employee Computer Lease/Purchase
Program) effective July 8, 1997.


0 Motion to repeal City of Mill Creek Policy 04-01 (Police Officer Firearms Purchase
Program) effective September 28, 2004.


KEY FACTS AND INFORMATION SUMMARY: In accordance with the City’s ongoing
effort to implement new legal requirements; address audit recommendations; update, modernize
and adopt important operational policies and municipal code provisions; and create reliable and
ef?cient internal processes for recurrent actions, the City Manager and Director of Finance &
Administration have prepared for Council consideration a proposed Business Expense Policy.


The first draft of the proposed Policy was presented to Council on February 13, 2018, for review
and comment. Staff has since updated the draft policy to incorporate Council comments from
the February 13 meeting.


At the conclusion of the audit for the 2015 ?scal year, the State auditors recommended the City
'


strengthen its internal controls by updating and/or developing formal written policies that govern


the use of City funds to purchase items for employee appreciation and recognition, meals with
meetings and volunteer compensation. The use of City funds for normal and ordinary business
expenses such as meals with meetings. employee appreciation, volunteer recognition, etc... is
not at issue. Rather, it is the fact that the City does not have an updated policy to support such
expenditures that is problematic.


Because of the ?scal nature of this policy, it is designed to apply to all City elected and
appointed officials.employees and members of boards and commissions.


The City’s Business Expense Policy has not been updated for nearly 30 years. The last update
was in 1991.


AGENDA ITEM #D.


Adoption of Ordinance Approving a New City Policy Regarding Reimbursemen... Page 60 of 131







CITY MANAGER RECOMMENDATION: Sta?‘has spent several months researching
applicable law, IRS regulations and other government jurisdictions to identify appropriate and
necessary provisions that should be incorporatedinto an updated Business Expense Policy. The
proposedpolicy promotes the City’s Fiscal Responsibility goal by responsiblymanaging
business expenses. Further, the proposedpolicy promotes the City’s Civic Pride goal by
authorizing expendituresthat promote communityspirit, civic participation and public-private
partnerships(e.g., business meals, volunteer recognition). Finally, the proposed policy supports
the City’s Leadership Goal by supportingexpenditures that allow staff and elected of?cials to
participate in meetings and events that in?uence regional, state and national matters (travel
expense reimbursement, dues and subscriptions).


ATTACHMENTS:
0 Draft Ordinance
0 Draft Business Expense Policy
0 CCP 97-006
0 CCP 04-01


Respectfully Submitted:


Rebecca C. Polizzotto EE
City Manager


AGENDA ITEM #D.


Adoption of Ordinance Approving a New City Policy Regarding Reimbursemen... Page 61 of 131







ORDINANCE NO. 2018-


AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF MILL CREEK, WASHINGTON,
AMENDING MILL CREEK MUNICIPAL CODE CHAPTER 2.08
CONCERNING REIMBURSEMENT OF EXPENSES; RESCINDING PRIOR
CODE PROVISIONS, POLICIES AND PROCEDURES CONCERNING
EXPENSE REIMBURSEMENTS; APPROVING A NEW CITY POLICY
REGARDING REIMBURSEMENT OF EXPENSES; AND ESTABLISHING
AN EFFECTIVE DATE


WHEREAS, RCW Chapter 42.24 sets forth state law requirements applicable to municipal
corporations concerning job—relatedexpenses and expense reimbursement, and enables the City
Council to prescribe regulations and policies governing expenditures and reimbursementof expenses
in connection with officially assigned duties and travel for approved public purposes; and


WHEREAS, the City's current expense reimbursement regulations, policies and procedures
are in need of revision; and


WHEREAS, a new comprehensive Business Expense Policy has been prepared by the
Finance Department and is attached hereto and incorporatedherein at Exhibit 1 (Business Expense
Policy). The Business Expense Policy is designed to replace and supersede outdated policies and
procedures of the City that address or concern similar matters; and


WHEREAS, the City Council has reviewed the Business Expense Policy and finds that it
appropriately addresses the expenditure of public funds for City purposes and reimbursement
thereof; and


WHEREAS, the City Council wishes to amend Mill Creek Municipal Code (MCMC)
Chapter 2.08 to update and better re?ect the application of the Business Expense Policy within the
City to all officers and employees, consistent with RCW Chapter 42.24; and


WHEREAS, this Ordinance is adopted pursuant to MCMC Chapter 1.24, which sets forth the
requirements for adoption, maintenance and publication of City policies and procedures.


NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MILL CREEK,
WASHINGTON, ORDAINS AS FOLLOWS:


Section 1. The Business Expense Policy prepared by the Finance Department, attached and
incorporated herein at Exhibit 1, is approved by the City Council. All prior City policies and
procedures related to the matters addressed in the Business Expense Policy are hereby repealed.


Section 2. MCMC Chapter 2.08, currently entitled "CityOfficers", is hereby retitled as "City
Officers and Employees".


ORD. REGARDING MCMC 2.06 AND BUSINESS EXPENSE POLICY —— 1
829239. 1/014455.000“


AGENDA ITEM #D.


Adoption of Ordinance Approving a New City Policy Regarding Reimbursemen... Page 62 of 131







Section 3. MCMC section 2.08.030 (Reimbursement of Expenses) is hereby repealed and
replaced with a new section 2.08.030 to read as follows:


2.08.030 Expenditures for and reimbursement of expenses in connection with
officially assigned duties and travel


A. All officers and employees of the City, including the members of the City
Council,members of the boardsandcommissionsof the City, appointees,employees,
and volunteers of the City, are eligible to make expenditures and receive
reimbursementfor expenses incurred in the performance of their official duties for
the City, provided such persons complywith applicable state laws, City ordinances
and regulations, and City policies.


B. The BusinessExpensePolicy issuedas PolicyNo. XXX bythe City Manager
has been approved by the City Council. The City Manager shall maintain said
Business Expense Policy pursuant to the City's Policy No. 100-01 and in accordance
with the City's needs and state law changes.


C. All claims for expenses paid or reimbursementthereof under the Business
Expense Policy shall be regularly audited by the City Council as a whole or such
other auditingcommittee or other auditing process as shall be establishedby the City
Council.


Section 4. If any section, sentence, clause, phrase or application of this Ordinance shall be
held to be invalid or unconstitutional by a court of competent jurisdiction, such invalidity or
unconstitutionality shall not affect the validity or constitutionalityof any other section, sentence,
clause, phrase or application of this ordinance.


Section 5. The City Clerk is directed to take steps as required to implementandleffectuate
this Ordinance. The Clerk is authorized to correct or have corrected scrivener's errors, internal
references, and the like.


Section 6. This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect five days after publication of a
summary hereof consisting of the title of this Ordinance,in accordance with RCW 35A.13.200.


Adopted this day of , 2018, by a vote of for,
against, and abstaining.


APPROVED:


MAYOR PAMELA PRUITT


ORD. REGARDING MCMC 2.06 AND BUSINESS EXPENSE POLICY -- 2
829239.l/01445500068


AGENDA ITEM #D.


Adoption of Ordinance Approving a New City Policy Regarding Reimbursemen... Page 63 of 131







ATTEST/AUTHENTICATED:


CITY CLERK


APPROVED AS TO FORM:


OFFICE OF THE CITY ATTORNEY
SCOTT M. MISSALL, CITY ATTORNEY


FILED WITH THE CITY CLERK:


PASSED BY THE CITY COUNCIL:


PUBLISHED:


EFFECTIVE DATE:


ORDINANCE NO.:


Attachment


Exhibit 1: Business Expense Policy


ORD. REGARDING MCMC 2.06 AND BUSINESS EXPENSE POLICY - 3
829239.1/01445500068


AGENDA ITEM #D.


Adoption of Ordinance Approving a New City Policy Regarding Reimbursemen... Page 64 of 131







\?
FINANCE &ADMINISTRATION


Miiicieek
Index: Department


Business Expense Policy Number;


Effective Date: Supersedes: Staff Contact: Clerk ID Number: Approved By
and Date:


April 1, 2018 All prior Director of
conflicting Finance and City Manager
ordinances, Administration
resolutions and City Council via
policies ordinance


' number 2018 —


(3/27/2018)


1.0 PURPOSE:


To establish a policy and procedure or the City of MillCreek for the authorization
and/or Reimbursement of business expenses including travel, subsistence and
related expenses, and certain non—travel related expenses incurred by authorized
persons while conducting City business or providing a service for the City.


2.0 ORGANIZATIONS AFFECTED:


City Council
AllDepartments
Boards & Commissions
Volunteers


3.0 REFERENCE:


- RCW Chapter 42.24
- IRS Regulations


4.0 POLICY:


It is the policy of the City of MillCreek to reimburse City Council members,
Appointees, Employees and Volunteers for reasonable expenses incurred in the
conduct of their business for the City. To qualify for Reimbursement, expenses must
be reasonable and prudent under the circumstances.


AGENDA ITEM #D.


Adoption of Ordinance Approving a New City Policy Regarding Reimbursemen... Page 65 of 131







P 9.91.?IE


5.0 DEFINITIONS:


5.1 Appointees: Means individuals appointed by the City Council to City boards
and commissions.


5.2 City: The City of MillCreek, including any of?ce, department, division, board,
committee or other entity therein.


5.3 City Council: Means the MillCreek City Council collectively or individuals
thereof.


5.4 City Manager: Means the City Manager of the City of MillCreek.


5.5 Conference: Examples may include, but are not limitedto, a symposium,
seminar, forum, or convention associated witha league, association, alliance, etc.
“Conference” can be interpreted to include any formal training sessiontypically ‘


attended by an audience from a wide geographicarea and organ;i;edby a regionally
,


or nationally known entity.


5.6 Employee: Means both fulletimeand part-time Employees of theCity of Mill
Creek, and with City Manager approval,includes contractedemployees.


5.7 Per Diem: The ,P.erDiemallowance is adaily payment instead of
Reimbursement fo,rract.ual.expensesfor lodging,mealsandincidental expenses. It
is separate from trjansportation:andothermiscellaneous:expenses.


5.8 Reimbursement:Includesexpensespaid for by the City. Eligible expenses
need be Reimbursementsto the individual, they can be expenses
paid City”direct|ygtoavendor.


I


5.9 Tax]-.lome:The IRS.identifi.esthis as your regular place of business
regardless?fwhere you maintainyourfamily home. It includes the entire City or
general area ’infwhichyour businessor work is located.


5.10 Traveler: Travelerusually means a City Council member or Employee. At
times, the City Manageirsmayauthorize Appointees or Volunteers to travel on City
business. The City willapply this policy for non-employees, except when travel
Reimbursement terms under a professional services contract differ.


5.11 Travel Status: The IRS defines this as a time when your duties require you to
be away from the general area of your “Tax Home” substantially longer than an
ordinary day's work, and you need to sleep or rest to meet the demands of your
work while away from home. Generally, this means an overnight stay is involved.


AGENDA ITEM #D.


Adoption of Ordinance Approving a New City Policy Regarding Reimbursemen... Page 66 of 131







Page|3


5.12 Volunteer: Volunteer means an individualwho donates time, without
compensation, towards the achievement of City objectives under one of the City's
recognized volunteer programs or committees.


6.0 OVERNIGHT TRAVEL EXPENSES:


This section covers expenses related to travel that requires an overnight stay.
Section 7.0 covers guidelines for expenses related to local (non-overnight) activities.


The City willfollow the US General Services Administration (GSA) schedules that
provide for maximum Reimbursement rates for lodging,., rn;ea|sand incidental
expenses for authorized Travelers on officialbusiness*‘A’mountsexceeding those
rates, except as otherwise noted herein, may be d ed from Reimbursement
claims or repaid by the Traveler. These rates arefédjuii annually by the General
Services Administration. ’ 7


A


Any travel time in excess of one day each §?way,which is broughtaboutby the
Employee's choice of transportation or willbecharged...to;theEmployee as
vacation time. When travel is required of Em?lpyeesr%rc§veredby FLSAstandards,
travel time may be considered workedicl ing on the timeand day of
travel. Paid time for travel resolve


2‘


accordance with FLSA
guidelines in advance of authorizing,tra\(él;;,_


it


“


6.1 Prior Approv_al:_Priorapproval. fgroverijgiiiii'ht3travel‘iisgrequiredfor all
Travelers except for}thei’CityfCounci|and Trave|fT raining
Authorization Form mustbe completedafnd?apiprovediiibythe Department Director
and City Manager. The approved form shouldbe forwarded to the Department of
Finance andAdministrationprior to travel.


V


6.2 Documentation: No claimfor Reimbursementshall be paid unless it is
accompanied by a Business Expense Report Form, a copy of the Travel/T raining
AuthorizationForm and bona ?de vendorreceipts, except for meal Per Diem
claims. Such receipts should detail the following information when applicable:
date, description of purchase, vendor identi?cation and amount paid. Expense
reports shall include;name(s).of individua|(s) incurring the expense and how the
expense relates to City business(i.e., the public purpose).


6.2.1 A Declaration of Lost Receipt or Declaration of Lost Itemized Receipt
is acceptable only after all reasonable attempts to locate or obtain a copy
have been exhausted. The declaration must set forth the date of purchase,
a description of the purchase, the vendor, the amount paid and an
explanation for the lack of a receipt.


6.2.2 Credits such as gift cards, airfare credits and frequent flyer miles,
whether earned on personal or business travel, are not reimbursable as
there is no cash outlay for such a transaction.


AGENDA ITEM #D.


Adoption of Ordinance Approving a New City Policy Regarding Reimbursemen... Page 67 of 131







6.3


Page |4


6.2.3 Any special approvals required by this policy shall be obtained by
Travelers priorto applicable travel and shall accompany the Business
Expense Report when submitted to the Department of Finance and
Administration. Such special approvals shall be by separate memo, which
identifies the policy exception being authorized and explains the reasons
therefor.


6.2.4 Travel Reimbursement requests must be returned to the Finance
Department within ten (10) days of returning to the City. The Department
Director and/or Finance Director have the authority to deny claims for
expenses that were incurred more than six months before submittal.


6.2.5 Claim for Reimbursement of any charge which could reasonably raise
question should be accompanied by an explanation. Failure to provide
adequate documentation (receipts) or explanation for all expenses claimed
for Reimbursement could result in the Traveler being personally responsible
for the charges.


Registration Fees: Subject to the provisions of Section 6.1, the actual cost
of registration, tuition and fees at a meeting, Conference, training or convention
are reimbursable underthis policy.


6.4 Per Diem Reimbursable Meal Costs: All City Travelers shall be entitled to
Reimbursement for meals consumed while traveling overnight on City business.
Reimbursement willbe based on the current Per Diem rate of the final destination
of travel. The Meal and Incidental Expense rates are established by the GSA and
are adjusted annually.


6.4.1 Per Diem rates differ based on locations defined by the GSA; tax and
tip are included. Current rates can be found at www.gsa.gov/perdiem or by
calling Accounts Payable.


6.4.2 Per Diem rates may be claimed for the first through the last day of
travel provided the person is in Travel Status at the following times:


o 6:00 a.m. for breakfast
o 12:00 p.m. for lunch
0 6:00 p.m. for dinner


6.4.3 Travel status begins at the time the Traveler would have left City Hall
and ends at the time they would return to City Hall.


6.4.4 Receipts are not required for Per Diem Reimbursement.


AGENDA ITEM #D.


Adoption of Ordinance Approving a New City Policy Regarding Reimbursemen... Page 68 of 131







P.,9 .9.615..


6.4.5 Any planned meals, the cost of which is included in a City-paid
registration fee, whether or not the Traveler actually partakes of the meal,
willnot be reimbursable or eligible for Per Diem. Planned meals include box
lunches and banquets but exclude continental breakfasts. Receptions at


6


which hors d‘ oeuvres are the primary offering are not considered meals.


6.4.6 When a meal is included in a meeting and the costs cannot be
segregated, the actual cost of the event is reimbursable. A vendor receipt or
copy ‘ofthe meeting agenda is required as documentation.


6.5 Reimbursable Actual Meal Costs: It is understoodthat while conducting
City business, and in the course of their officialduties, there are times when the
City Council, the City Manager or Department,Directors,mayhost or attend
business meals with invited guests. The actualiscostof suchmeals is specifically
authorizedfor Reimbursementonly for Council, the City Manager and
Department Directors.


6.6


6.5.1 Travelers willbe responsibleforlkeepingltheircost asclose as
possible to the Per Diemgrate;however,?any,reasonableexcess willbe paid
by the City. Cost of invitedsa§g,s,i,nessguestswill be borne by the City.


6.5.2 An itemized receipt isvreg'uiired.‘.yMealticketstubs alone are not
considered adequategdocuméntattion for?Reimbursement. Reimbursement
willnot be providedforliquor, irfcluding,..beer,andwine.


6.5.3 Payment for tablejserviceatfariiestaurant,commonly referred to as a
tip, nottoexceed 20%,of*the,[estaurant,priceof the meal, is reimbursable
as a lreasonableanq...necessa:ry.;ggstrorgsucnservice and as a reasonable
and necessarypart of.tl1ecost”‘ofiiltl§j;e;amesa|.


6.5.4To avoid the‘::appearajngeof a conflict of interest, Employees and City
Councilmembersshouldnoti'ia:l_lowconsultants, vendors or others with
official‘businesswith‘2t_ljieCity to pay for or furnish meals or beverages.


Vehicle Expe,,:I_1,§:es.§.,.»:lyr_i§'
6.6.1 City Vehicle


r T


(a) Costs of transportation and vehicle operation are acceptable, such as
gas, oil, tires, tolls, ferry charges, parking and necessary repairs.


6.6.2 Personal Vehicle


(a) Mileage expenses shall be reimbursed for vehicular travel within a
300 mile radius of City Hall at the current maximum rate allowed by
the United States internal Revenue Service for Reimbursement of


AGENDA ITEM #D.


Adoption of Ordinance Approving a New City Policy Regarding Reimbursemen... Page 69 of 131







P 3.9..‘3,,J.§


such expenses for purposes of business travel expense deductions.
Trips beyond this limitwillbe reimbursed in an amount equal to the
lowest appropriate round trip air fare to the destination offered by a
regularly scheduled commercial air carrier, plus an allowance for
ground transportation based on the circumstances.


(b) Mileage Reimbursement willbe calculated based on the round trip
distance between City Hall and the Traveler's destination or actual
mileage, whichever is less.


(c) When travel is scheduled by public conveyance(bus, train, air, etc.)
outside a 300 mile radius, surface transportationto and from the
conveyance depot/airport willbe reim,bursed%.


(cl)Parking at SeaTac (Port of Seattlie)parking lots is limited to a
maximum of twelve (12) hqu,I?sj;s:?::?‘Longterm parking expenses willbe
reimbursed when “off-airp<5rt¥’{§(;rionPort of Seattle) parking lots and
shuttle services are used (e.gZ;t;.;Budget).{


d


(e) City Employees whoitsfeceivean automobile allowance in lieu of City
provided transportati sliai,l.,,notbe entitledto further Reimbursement
for surface transportationc6§t_s;.j.withina 300mile radius of the City.
Travel outsideofa 300i?:r: rji,leradiuswillbe calculated as described
above, exceptthatno miléage,Reimbursement for surface
transportation shallbe allowed..fortravel to and from any Seattle area
airport. C


i


T 3


‘ il(a)The costoflvehicleirentalconsideredan exception to this policy
and its justi?cation be clearly stated on the Travel/T raining


:Authorization::§.,Eorm. 357*”


(b)Any,Ci,tyEmployees,City Council members, Appointees or
Volunteersoperating a rented vehicle for City business, with
permissioirfromthe City, willbe covered under the WCIA liability
policy, pursuant to any coverage exclusions or limitations. Rental
vehicles are also covered for 15‘party property damage. However, if
the rental willexceed 9 days, the rental vehicle must be added to the
City’s auto schedule. The City willnot be responsible for the loss of
personal items taken from a rental vehicle.


AGENDA ITEM #D.


Adoption of Ordinance Approving a New City Policy Regarding Reimbursemen... Page 70 of 131







Page |7


6.7 Air Travel


6.7.1 Allair travel shall be on a common carrier. Air travel should be
booked that provides for the lowest ticket class fare for the most direct route
unless one or more of the following specific exemptions are met:


0 The lowest ticket class accommodation is not available;


0 Waiting for the lowest ticket class accommodation would cause a
delay harmfulto the City; or


o The City Manager determines that travelbylowest ticket class
accommodation is not in the best interestof the City, and authorizes
other accommodation.


6.7.2 Travelers and approvers arerequired to documentreasonsfor
declining savings where the Iowestavailable airfare is not purchased.


~ 6.7.3 First or business classisallowed if it is atno cost to the City.


6.7.4 When personal traveliscombinedwith business—related travel, the
Traveler shall be responsible forpayingthe increasein airfare necessary to
accommodate_the.personal part ofthe flight.The Cityshallpay for the
lowest reasyonyablieVandiavailableiagirfareforthe roundtrip between a Seattle
area airportsjairgidthe business-relateddestination.


6.7.5,,Whenpersonal traveliscombinedwith business-related travel, the
Tra;ve.ler'.Sha_.l,l.providegdocumentationshowing the cost of airfare for travel


a;.nif§iCitybusinessonly (atthe timethereservation is made) as well as the
riefcegiptfor the factualcostwhich includes personal travel. Ifthe addition of
per$,On,a|travel makesthe cost higher, the Traveler should use their own
fundsitopay the faregand request Reimbursement of the lesser amount. If
the additionof personaltravel makes the cost lower, the Traveler may use a
City travelit card.)i3


6.7.6 When changes in travel plans occur that are the result of City
business requirements, (i.e. delays in departure, cancellations, extended
stays, or revised itinerary) any associated costs shall be paid by the City.
However, all increases in cost of travel due to changes for personal
convenience will be borne by the Traveler.


AGENDA ITEM #D.


Adoption of Ordinance Approving a New City Policy Regarding Reimbursemen... Page 71 of 131







Page |8


6.8 Accommodations:


6.8.1 Directors may authorize lodging within the Puget Sound Metropolitan
Region for multi—dayfunctions but should use discretion when doing so.
Factors that should be considered are length of travel from the Traveler's
regular work place, length of meeting and budget.


6.8.2 Reasonable hotel/motel accommodations for Travelers are
acceptable and willbe reimbursed or paid at a rate not to exceed the GSA
maximum lodging rate for the area of travel. Rates may be obtained from
the GSA website at www.gsa.gov/perdiem or by calling Accounts Payable.
Note that rates listed by the GSA are for the base room rate only and do not
include taxes or surcharges. These rates are adjusted annually by the GSA.


6.8.3 A vendor's itemized receipt for this category is required for all claims.


6.8.4 In the following situations, the maximum allowable lodging amounts
may not be adequate and the Department Director and City Manager may
approve payment of lodging expenses that exceed the allowable amount.
Justification for exceeding the Per Diem lodging rate must be stated on the
Travel/Training Authorization Form.


c When lodging accommodations in the area of travel are not available
at or below the maximum lodging amount and the savings achieved
from occupying less expensive lodging at a more distant site are
consumed by an increase in transportation and other costs.


o The Traveler attends a meeting, Conference, convention, or training
session where local hotels offer Conference rates. For purposes of
this policy, it is presumed that maximum benefit will be achieved by
authorizing the Traveler to stay at the lodging facilities where the
meeting, Conference, convention or training session is held.


- To comply with provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, or
when the health and safety of the Traveler is at risk.


6.9 Incidental Expenses: Incidental expenses allowed as part of the daily Per
Diem rates include fees and tips given to porters, baggage carriers, bellhops and
hotel maids. A vendor's receipt is not required; however, the daily total may not
exceed $5.00.


6.10 Miscellaneous Expenses: This category includes all reasonable and
necessary miscellaneous expenses and includes, but is not limited to, the
following:


AGENDA ITEM #D.


Adoption of Ordinance Approving a New City Policy Regarding Reimbursemen... Page 72 of 131







9E9 §,-.|.....9.


6.10.1 Allowable Miscellaneous Expenses


o Bus, taxi, shuttle, bridge or other tolls.


0 Parking fees.


o Ferry costs.


0 Laundry expenses ifaway from home six (6) or more working days.


o Baggage check fees. .


0 Business telephone, internet and postagelgexpenses.


6.10.2 Non-Allowable Misce|laneous.Exptenses
o Personal entertainment.


It A


o Theft, loss or damageto personalproperty.


o Expenses of a or other; persons not authorizedto
receive Reimbursementu?dierthispolicy.


0 Barber...or;beaiutyparlorAi.fV‘Vg‘.,‘
0 Airlineandothertripinsuran_c€’e:.iT


q_Personal
A


postaggcreading.material.
; Persona|_toiletry/ié?gples.


A


of
A


Finesor penalties, parking or traffic violations.


7.0 LOCAL TRAVELEXEENSES(No Overnight Stay)


This section covers‘expensesrelated to meals and transportation for trips not
requiring an overnight stay. See Section 6.0 for guidelines on overnight travel
expenses.


The City willfollow the US General Services Administration (GSA) schedules that
provide for maximum Reimbursement rates for meals and incidental expenses for
authorized staff while on of?cial business. Amounts exceeding those rates may
be deducted from Reimbursement claims or repaid by the Traveler. These rates
are adjusted annually by the General Services Administration.


AGENDA ITEM #D.


Adoption of Ordinance Approving a New City Policy Regarding Reimbursemen... Page 73 of 131







P? 9..°._|.,19.


7.1. Prior Approval: Prior approval for local travel is required for all Travelers
except for the City Council, City Manager and Department Directors. A
Travel/T raining Authorization Form must be completed and approved by the
Department Director. The approved form should be forwarded to the Department
of Finance and Administration prior to travel.


7.2 Documentation: No claim for Reimbursement shall be paid unless it is
accompanied by a Business Expense Report Form, a copy of the Travel/T raining
Authorization Form and bona ?de vendor receipts, except for meal Per Diem
claims. Such receipts should detail the following informationwhen applicable:
date, description of purchase, vendor identi?cation andamountpaid. Expense
reports shall include name(s) of individual(s) incurringitheexpense and how the
expense relates to City business (i.e. the publiclgprurppse).


7.2.1 A Declaration of Lost Receiptor,Declaration‘offilsostItemized Receipt
is acceptable only after all reasonable-attempts to locat§j.,g,robtain a copy
have been exhausted. The declarationmust set forth of purchase,
a description of the purchase, the vendor,thearmount
explanation for the lack of receipt. ‘


‘


7.2.2 No claim shall be paid..for1the,,valuesuch as coupons used in
lieu of cash. *


7.2.3 Any special approvals required shall be obtained by
Travelers priforljtoapplicabletravel.s‘and~s‘hallaiccémpany the Business
Expense Reipiiortwhensubmitted totheDepartment of Finance and
Adminis?tration.Such special approvals. shall be by separate memo, which
identifilesjthepolicyexception_b_e,i,ngauthorizedand explains the reasons


gthgefrefoir.


7.2.4.7TravelReimbursem"ent_requestsmust be returned to the Finance
Department within ten,(10) days of returning to the City. The Department
Director and/or Finance Director have the authority to deny claims for
expenses thatwere incurredmore than six months before submittal.


7.2.5 Claim for‘Reimbursement of any charge which could reasonably raise
question should be accompanied by an explanation. Failure to provide
adequate documentation (receipts) or explanation for all expenses claimed
for Reimbursement could result in the Traveler being personally responsible
for the charges.


7.3 Registration Fees: Subject to the provisions of Section 7.1, the actual cost
of registration, tuition and fees at a meeting, Conference, training or convention
are reimbursable under this policy.


AGENDA ITEM #D.


Adoption of Ordinance Approving a New City Policy Regarding Reimbursemen... Page 74 of 131







Page |11


7.4 Reimbursable Meal Costs: All City Travelers shall be entitled to
Reimbursement for meals consumed while on City business. Reimbursement will
be based on the current Per Diem rate of the final destination of travel. The Meal
and incidental Expense rates are established by the GSA and are adjusted
annually.


7.4.1 Per Diem rates differ based on locations defined by the GSA; tax and
tip are included. Current rates can be found at www.gsa.gov/gerdiem or by
calling Accounts Payable.


7.4.2 Per Diem rates may be claimed provided the person is in Travel
Status at the following times:


- 6:00 a.m. for breakfast
o 12:00 p.m. for lunch
0 6:00 p.m. for dinner


7.4.3. Travel Status begins at the time the Traveler would have left City Hall
and ends at the time they would return to City Hall.


7.4.4 Receipts are not required for Per Diem Reimbursement.


7.4.5 Any planned meals, the cost of which is included in a City—paid
registration fee, whether or not the Traveler actually partakes of the meal,
will not be reimbursable or eligible for Per Diem. Planned meals include
box lunches and banquets but exclude continental breakfasts. Receptions
at which hors d’oeuvres are the primary offering are not considered meals.


7.4.6 When a meal is included in a meeting and the costs cannot be
segregated, the actual cost of the event is reimbursable. A vendor receipt
or copy of the meeting agenda is required as documentation.


7.5 Reimbursable Actual Meal Costs: It is understood that while conducting
formal City business, and in the course of their official duties, there are times when
the City Council, the City Manager or Department Directors may host or attend
business meals with invited guests. The actual cost of such meals is specifically
authorized for Reimbursement for the City Council, the City Manager and
Department Directors.


7.5.1 Travelers will be responsible for keeping their cost as close as
possible to the Per Diem rate; however, any reasonable excess will be paid
by the City. Cost of invited business guests will be borne by the City.


7.5.2. An itemized restaurant receipt is required. Meal ticket stubs alone are
not considered adequate documentation for Reimbursement.
Reimbursement will not be provided for liquor, including beer and wine.


AGENDA ITEM #D.


Adoption of Ordinance Approving a New City Policy Regarding Reimbursemen... Page 75 of 131







- - -


P..?.9. .11?


7.5.3 Payment for table service at a restaurant, commonly referred to as a
tip, not to exceed 20% of the restaurant price of the meal, is reimbursable
as a reasonable and necessary cost for such service and as a reasonable
and necessary part of the cost of the meal.


7.5.4. To avoid the appearance of a con?ict of interest, Employees and City
Council members should not allow consultants, vendors or others with
of?cial business with the City to pay for or furnish meals or beverages.


7.6 Vehicle Expenses


7.6.1 City Vehicle


(a) Costs of transportation and vehicleoperationarjegacceptable, such as
gas, oil, tires, tolls, ferry chargfesi,parking and n’e§essary repairs.


7.6.2 Personal Vehicle


(a) Mileage expenses shallbereimbursedzforvehicular travelwithin a
300 mile radius of City..,_Halli§;at,thecurireétejggmaximumrate allowed by
the United States Internal‘RevenueServi"c;;:e,.:.forReimbursement of
such expenses for purposesof tr‘aT\{jejV%l.,,E,expensedeductions.


(b) Mileage7Reimbursement on the round trip
distancebetween‘CityHall anidgftheTraveler's destination or actual
mileage,’whichev,%efr;iisless.6


'


,f(¢) "CityEmployeeswhoreceivejanautomobileallowance in lieu of City
provided transportation shall not be entitled to further Reimbursement
for surface transportation costs within a 300 mile radius of the City.


7.7 MiscellaneousExpenses: Thiscategory includes all reasonable and
necessary miscellaneous expenses and includes, but is not limited to the
following:


7.7.1 Allowable Miscellaneous Expenses


o Bus, taxi, shuttle, bridge or other tolls.


o Parking fees.


a Ferry costs.


a Business telephone and postage expenses.


AGENDA ITEM #D.


Adoption of Ordinance Approving a New City Policy Regarding Reimbursemen... Page 76 of 131







.
P .‘i9.,¢-...J..13.


7.7.2 Non-Allowable Miscellaneous Expenses


0 Personal entertainment.


0 Theft, loss or damage to personal property.


0 Expenses of a spouse, family or other persons not authorized to
receive Reimbursement under this policy.


- Personal postage, reading material.


0 Fines or penalties, including parkinggyigorltrafficviolations.


3.0 FOOD AND BEVERAGES AT CITYTSEETINGS,EVENTSAND
EMERGENCIES


C -


To further the business of the City, promoteiicivgicengagement and promotequality
employee relations, it is approp,ria, to incur certainexpenditures formealsor
refreshments. The purpose of ti _tionis to providethe City Council,
Employees, Appointees and Vol guidance on the appropriate and
allowable use of City funds to purchasefocildtandbeverages while n_otin Travel
Status. —


‘ ‘
C


The expenditure forfoodand7g[):7i§;,beverag:je;s[?fEfrfriustbe related to the active conduct
of City business (i.e;,5publicpurpose),meafrjignga substantial and bona fide
business discussion.lEx_§:epC rwiseisfetgiforthin this Section 8, expenditures
exceed,irIQA$20Orequire valof lllllfanageror his or her designee.
Reimbursementwillinotbe for”liéfuQr,:iincludingbeer and wine.


Paymentformeals orlldlelyiyeredmay include a tip of 10-20% of the price
of the meal,“dep_ending circuiir?stances;for instance, dif?culty of delivery.


8.1 Documentation:Al,lm),§pendituresunder this Section 8.0 submitted for
Reimbursement orl‘plurcha"Sfefd"witha City issued credit card must be accompanied
by: E


o A bona fide vendor’s receipt that shows line item descriptions of what
was purchased.


0 The identi?cation of individuals (by name, title or group) consuming the
food and/or beverage.


o A description of the City business (i.e., public purpose) served during the
occasion.


AGENDA ITEM #D.


Adoption of Ordinance Approving a New City Policy Regarding Reimbursemen... Page 77 of 131







P.3.9..F°wl.1fl.


(a)A Declaration of Lost Receipt or Declaration of Lost Itemized Receipt is
acceptable only after all reasonable attempts to locate or obtain a copy
have been exhausted. The declaration must set forth the date of purchase,
a description of the purchase, the vendor, the amount paid and an
explanation for the lack of a receipt.


(b) Claim for Reimbursement ofany charge which could reasonably raise
question should be accompanied by an explanation. Failure to provide
adequate documentation (receipts) or explanation for all expenses claimed
for Reimbursement could result in the Traveler being personally responsible
for the charges.


. T,E


(c) Claims expenses must be submitted no latejéthiatnten days after return. The
Department Director and/or Finance oireeetarhave theauthority to deny
claims for expenses that were incurregfdlijmorethan six.months before
submittal. i i


8.2 City Council Meetings: For specialiorgespeciallylengthy meetings
conducted during meal times, fogdggandbevera'gfes.,maybe provided for Council
members, the City Manager, ot staff, and invitieidigiuestsdirectly involved in the
business discussed at the meet ‘


V


8


8.3 Council and Staff-Retreatsi:Egod andbeveragesmaybe provided at both
Council and staff retvreatsiaridshouldbgbudgeted forandprovided as part of the
retreat process


8 C


t


i R
‘


A


’


8.4 City Sponsored .fgj_ngslEvents:The City may expend funds for
food andgbeveragesat City. ubliczmeetingsto encourage attendance
and interactio.


8.5 WorkigngLuncheslginnergfood and beverages may be provided when it
is necessaryfora group ofiffeggnployiéeistowork through lunch or dinner to
accomplish a task.


i


8.6 City ManaigerAtMeeti,ngs:While meeting with City Council members,
Employees, Appointe‘e§§.or:;Volunteers, the City Manager may expend funds for
food and beverages. -


8.7 City Business Meal: The City Council, City Manager or Department
Directors may expend funds for food and beverages to discuss with non-City
employees. To avoid the appearance of a con?ict of interest, Employees and City
Council members should not allow consultants, vendors or others with of?cial
business with the City to pay for or furnish meals or beverages.


AGENDA ITEM #D.


Adoption of Ordinance Approving a New City Policy Regarding Reimbursemen... Page 78 of 131







P3 9 9. I15.


8.8 Training Session and Staff Meetings:


a) Food and beverages may be provided at staff meetings and training
sessions.


b) Food and beverages may be provided to Volunteers during staff
supervised work or training sessions.


c) Food and beverages may be provided during interviews with candidates
for City positions.


8.9 Workplace: Beverage of minimal value maye.be.__providedto City Employees
at the worksite during business hours. 1 " 4


8.10 Emergencies: Emergency situationsareevents whe:re,,,ltis determined that
City assets or infrastructure and/or the publicfor which it pro is at risk. In these
cases, City staff may be required to remaingon-siteoutside oft riormalwork shift.


8.10.1 Food and beverages when aniiemgergency
situation is expected to sparj,,jovera regularefggnjealperiod and Employees are
required to remain on-site o,r,~ava.ilapl,eto to an emergency.


8.11 Ceremonies and‘.Celebration‘s_
8.1 1.1 1 1 :Reasonable and beverages,
associated with commemorating a‘i’dedicationor an unveiling that is
recognizedas servinga publicpurpose,are legitimate City expenditures.,


8


'


‘Support for a ce|ebra_tio,n..ori‘localevent may not take the form
1 gratuitous contributionjvofpublicfunds to a private person, committee or
oirgainization.Expenditureof. publicfunds on a publiclysponsored event
requires (1) the existenceofarecognizablepublic or municipal purpose that
relates tojthe purpose for the City's existence, (2) proper authorization from
the City Councilfor such public sponsorship, and (3) a reasonable
relationship betweentheamount of the City's expenditure and the “public”
nature of the event.


8.12 Employee and Volunteer AppreciationlRecognition:


Employee and Volunteer appreciation/recognition is authorized in accordance with
this policy in order to promote the City’s STAR Values as set forth in the City’s
Guiding Principles. Employee and Volunteer appreciation/recognition is designed
to promote good will, support Employee wellness, celebrate milestones, foster a
sense of pride in one’s af?liation with the City, and promote safety, productivity,
reliability, ef?ciency, cost savings, dedication, and commitment to the community.


AGENDA ITEM #D.


Adoption of Ordinance Approving a New City Policy Regarding Reimbursemen... Page 79 of 131







P 3 9.3 U5


a) Food and beverages may be served at Employee and Volunteer
appreciation/recognition events.


b) Recognition Events


a. The City Manager or designee shall be responsible for overseeing
recognition events and approving requests for recognition events in
writing in advance of the event.


b. A department wishing to hold a recognitiorgevent must submit a
written request to the City Manager or d,e,sifgnee_thatdetails: (1) the
purpose of the event, (2) when and who willbe held, (3) a brief
explanation as to how the event mjeé A .j§po|icy’s stated purpose
and scope, (4) anticipated attendaince and (4) a proposed
budget.


i
“


,


c. The budget for Employee recognitionevents mustibedeemed
reasonable by the City Managefggrdes'


d. Subject to City Managfer.,ordesigne jprioval,examplesofbudget
items that may be recogariitigonevents may include but
not be limited to flowerggrefréfsi nts, and decorations.


c) Reco nitionAwards
a. The Cityamayexpend funds"ifor; ;recognitionawards. Departments


havethe authorityto_re_cogniz’eéE,mployees,Appointees, Volunteers
,andlorCity Councilcmerribers,eitherindividually, or as a class, for


if accomplishmentsincluding;cj§utstaindingachievements, safety
performance,longevityand outstanding public service.


b. 7. Employee recognitionawards may not exceed two hundred dollars
($200) in value (peraward. Such awards may include, but not be
limitedto, itemssuchas pen and desk sets, plaques, pins, framed
certi?cates, clocksand calculators.


‘


c. A Department wishing to bestow a recognition award must submit a
written request to the City Manager or designee that details: (1) the
purpose of the award, (2) the rules or basis for eligibilityof the award,
(3) how the award promotes the City's STAR values, and (4) the
procedure to be used in determining the winner of the award.


d) City Logo Apparel


a. At the discretion of the City Manager, each new City Employee in
recognition of their hiring may receive one City logo apparel item for


AGENDA ITEM #D.


Adoption of Ordinance Approving a New City Policy Regarding Reimbursemen... Page 80 of 131







.P?9e..|l7.


business purpose related use. Examples of business purposes
include meetings, events, and programs where City representation is
desirable. This does not replace uniform clothing as required for ?eld
personnel.


b. Following the annual review of an Employee, Departments may
request one additional City logo apparel item, of the Emp|oyee’s
choosing, per year when the Employee receives a satisfactory
performance review. Requests for City logo apparel must be
submitted in writing to the City Manager ordesignee by the
Department Director on behalf of the Employee.


c. The City Manager may authorize C,ity.alogo,apparelfor City Council
members, Appointees and Volunteersas aipprpopriate.


9.0 EMPLOYEE DUES AND MEMBERSHIPS


It is the policy of the City of MillCreekto pay forthe annualdues andmemberships
for Employees in professional and civicorganizationswhich directly relate to their
specific job classification and directly‘»ben,efitthe City:andthe Employee by providing
staff with the network and informationtoifurtherdevelopjthemselvesin their
professional capacity? i


~


C


1o.o RECRUITIN:
The reasonableexpens§s.,,of,candidates forcertain management and "hard-to-fi|l"


positions a_ire_reijnbursabléiginghé?nniisuch‘candidatesare invited to visit MillCreek for a
personal interview.A;pproval.§.byg,theCityManager or designee is required for all
expenses to be reimlbujfsed. a


At the timethegjnvitationis,;made,thecandidate shall be informed of the speci?c
expenses and/or,;maximumnifairnountwhich willbe reimbursed. A Business Expense
Report willbe ?lledgggutand sfgned by the candidate and Human Resources. The
candidate willbe requirement that the expenses be documented with
itemized receipts to Human Resources, who willprepare the
Reimbursement claim. Unless othenlvise directed by the City Manager, the invitation
for interview and offer of Reimbursement willbe made by the Human Resources
Department.


A copy of the Business Expense Report, and copies of travel receipts, willbe used
as the customary vendor's statement.


The expense guidelines contained in Sections 6.0 and 7.0 of this policy willbe
applied to recruiting claims.


AGENDA ITEM #D.


Adoption of Ordinance Approving a New City Policy Regarding Reimbursemen... Page 81 of 131







P 3 9 °,,,_l,1§


11.0 MOVING EXPENSES


The reasonablemoving expenses of new employees in certain management and
"hard-to-?ll" positions are reimbursable at the discretion of the City Manager.
Moving expenses shall mean the costs of moving the new employee’s household
goods, furniture, clothing and other personal effects.


The City Manager may also approve Reimbursements for reasonable
transportation and lodging expenses. Expenses may not exceed GSA
Reimbursement rates. All moving expense Reimbursement requests will be
reviewed for taxation pursuant to IRS Publication 521. Reimbursedexpenses that
are not considered deductible under an accountable planwillbe reported as
taxable wages. For example, according to the lRS,qonly,lodging Reimbursement
for the day of arrival is considered deductible.—,Approved%lgdgingReimbursement
for additional days after arrival willbe reportedias taxableiiiiiiéiges.


12.0 RECOVERY OF DISALLOWED


Ifa City charge card is used for thepurpose of covering expensesunder this
policy, and any such charges a*r_e;s*7su"bsequent|ydeemed“disallowed" pursuant to
the terms of this policy, such disa shallbe reimbursed by the
appropriate individual as soon as p, ctiéébleafterreceiving noti?cation of the
disallowed charges. §uch Reimbursefent s1h"’ajl1l;.b,_emadelbycheck, United States
currency or salary,,c1e,c,luctio,n‘;ia C


1 R


AGENDA ITEM #D.


Adoption of Ordinance Approving a New City Policy Regarding Reimbursemen... Page 82 of 131







CITY OF MILL CREEK POLICY
FOR


EMPLOYEE COMPUTER LEASE/PURCHASE PROGRAM


I


City Policy No.: CCP 97-006


Effective: July 8, 1997


Qgpartmgnt Review:


‘


,
Executive ____,.,
CommunityDevelopment '4’
PublicWorks
Finance
Police


It is the policy-ofthe City to encourage employee development of computer literacy skillsbecause
of the signi?cantcontributionsuch skillsprovideemployees to improve their work performance and
services to the public. Therefore, the City offers to lease computer hardware and software similar
to what employeesmay use inperformingtheir duties for City businessfor employees’personaluse.
At the successful completion of the lease payments, employees shall acquire ownership of the
hardware and software. '


The City will allocate a maximumof $25,000 of reserves within the EquipmentReplacementFund
for thisprogram. Thiswillconstitutethe maximumallowableamount of outstandingleasepayments
at any one time. Requests to participatein this program willbe limitedto employeeswho have
success?illycompletedtheir trialemploymentperiodand will be funded on a ?rst-come,?rst-served
basis. Individualemployeesmay lease a single computer system, not to exceed $3,000 in cost.


Employeesmay lease additionalaccessoriesfor their system duringthe tenn of the lease,provided
that the additionalaccessoriesandthe originalitemsleaseddo not exceed$3,000. The corresponding
cost of the additionalaccessorieswill raise the lease payments for the remainingnumber of pay
periods in the lease; it may not extend the term of the lease.


Employees will be responsiblefor arranging for the purchase of their individual computer systems,
with payment being made ?om the City to the vendor, from which the computer system is to be
purchased.Employees willmake lease payments throughpayroll deductions each regular pay period,
beginning with the pay period immediatelyfollowingCity payment for the equipment. The total
numberof payments to the Citymay not exceed 24 (i.e.,the lease/purchasemust be completedwithin
two years). Employees may elect to make additionalpayments needed at any time to reduce the
amount of the monthlyleasepayment or reduce the number of payments to completethe lease. The


‘sumof the lease payments will equal the payment to the vendor for the computer hardware and
softwareplus interest on the accumulatedoutstandingbalance of the lease. The interestrate of the
leaseshallbe equalto the investmentrate offeredby the State Investment Poolplus .5 percent at the


' '


AGENDA ITEM #D.


Adoption of Ordinance Approving a New City Policy Regarding Reimbursemen... Page 83 of 131







time the leaseisapproved.Employeeswillbe responsiblefor acquiringany installationand training
servicesas needed. The leasewillnot includethe cost of such services.


The City Manager shall implementthe administrativeprocedures of the computer lease/purchase
program. Ifat any time the CityManager determinesthat this program no longer providestangible
bene?ts to the City the program may be discontinued.To participateinthe program, an employee
must agree to all tenns and conditionsset forth in the administrativeproceduresof the computer
lease/purchaseprogram.


PASSED BY THE CITY COUNCIL.OF THE CITY OF MILL CREEKWASHINGTON THIS
+2,E5 DAYOF ,1997.


. APPROVED:


MAYOR THY NIELSEN
ATTEST/AUTHENTICATED:


L46/xi
CITY CLERK D BIE T


APPROVEDAS TO FO


'\I\~v-+s=»c2-—=___—_.
0 CE OF THE CITY ATTORNEY
SHORT CRESSMAN & BURGESS


G:\DATA\EXEC\WP\POLICY\97_OO6RD.WPD


AGENDA ITEM #D.


Adoption of Ordinance Approving a New City Policy Regarding Reimbursemen... Page 84 of 131







ADNIINISTRATIVE PROCEDURE CITY OF MILLCREEK


CityPolicy Reference: P 97-006
’


E?‘ective Date: July 8, 1997


Pagelofs 5,.
Approved: .


CityManager


CITY PROCEDURE FOR COMPUTER LEASE/PURCHASE PROGRAM


Ltmosn
To establisha program of assistingemployeeswho have completedtheir trial employmentperiodin
acquiringand improvingcomputer literacyskillsby providinglow interest loans to acquirepersonal
computer hardware and softwaresimilarto what employeesmay be asked to use for Citybusiness.
Theseproceduresdetail the terms and conditionsof agreements betweenthe City and participating


. employees whereby employeesmay lease suchhardware and software from the City and acquire
ownership of the hardware and software at the terminationof the lease.


OPE
This procedureapplies to all participantsof this program.


£RQg;EDL1@§ '


1. An employee shall complete a Computer Lease/Purchase Request for Approval
(AttachmentA). In completingthisformthe employeeshouldprovidean itemizedlist of the
hardware and software intended for purchasealong with a brief explanationof how this
purchase conformswith the purpose of this program.


2. Employees shouldsubmittheirrequests to the City Manager or designee. The CityManager
will review the request to determineif the hardware and software conforms to the purpose
of the program. In addition the CityManager will determine if sufficient funds are available
to meet the request. If not, the request may be held until ?mds become available. All
requests shall be approvedor deniedby the CityManager or designeeat l1is/herdiscretion.


3. Once an employee has received approval to participate in the program, the employeeis
responsible for coordinating the purchase of the computer hardware and software with a


vendor. The employee shallprovidethe FinanceDepartment with an originalinvoicefrom
the vendor to initiate the payment process.


4. The employeeshallsigna ComputerLease/PurchaseAgreement (Attachment B). This form
must be completed and submittedto the Finance Department along with the approved
participationrequest and originalvendor invoicefor the computer hardware and software.


AGENDA ITEM #D.


Adoption of Ordinance Approving a New City Policy Regarding Reimbursemen... Page 85 of 131







ADMINISTRATIVE.PROCEDURE— Policy Reference No. CCP 97-006 ' Page 2 of 5


5. The FinanceDepartmentwilldeterminethe payrolldeductionbased on the purchaseprice
of the computer softwareand hardware, the applicableinterest rate and the term of the lease
selectedby the employee.


6. A payrolldeductionwillbe creditedagainst the employee’soutstanding lease untilthe lease
has been paidin full. At the time the lease hasbeen paid in ?ll], ownership of the computer
software and hardware shallbe transferred to the employee. -


7. Anemployeewho has alreadyleasedandpaidoff a purchasemay enter into a new leaseof
computer softwareandhardwareup to the maximum$3,000 cost, provided that such a lease
shall not be processed unless and until there are no ?rst time participants waiting to be
processed,and furthermore that an employeemay not enter into a new lease more than once


in a 24-month period.


NDI'I‘I N
1. Participating employees may not sell, loan, assign, or transfer their rights to the equipment


or the equipmentitselfduringthe term of the leasewithoutprior written approvalby the City
Manager or designee.


2. Participatingemployees are responsiblefor equipmentservicingand maintenanceand shall
maintainthe equipmentin good conditionfor the term of the lease.


3. Participatingemployeesshallrespect the terms of the softwarelicenseswhichthe Cityhas
obtained for City business. Employeesmust sign an Agreementfor UseofCizyLicensed


SoftwarePrograms prior to acquiringsoftware?'om the City.


4. A participatingemployeewho terminatesemploymentwith the City prior to the completion
of the lease shall have the remaining balance deducted?'om their ?nal paycheck. Ifthe
employee’s ?nal paycheck is not suf?cient to pay the remaining balance, the amount


remaining unpaid after the deduction shallbecome a debt to the City which shallbe paid in
?lll before the employee'slast day at work. In the event that the employeefailsto pay any
outstandingbalance,the employeeshallforfeit allmoniesthat have been paid to the City, the
computer hardware and softwareshallremain the property of the City of Mill Creek, and the
employeeshallpromptly deliver the computer hardware and software to the City Clerk.


AGENDA ITEM #D.


Adoption of Ordinance Approving a New City Policy Regarding Reimbursemen... Page 86 of 131







ADMINISTRATIVEPROCEDURE- Policy Reference No. CCP 97-006 ' Page 3 of 5


(AttachmentA)


COMPUTER LEASE/PURCHASE REQUESTFOR APPROVAL


I have read,understandandagree to the terms and conditionsof the City ComputerLease/Purchase
Policy as describedin City CouncilPolicy 97-006 and the AdministrativeProcedure describedin


_ CCP 97-006.
‘


I wish to participatein the City’s Computer Lease/PurchaseProgram. I
j_


have!
havenot (checkone) previouslypurchasedhardwareor softwareunder this program. I have


attached an itemizedlist andpricequote of the hardware and software I desire to purchaseand
estimatethat the principalleaseamount willbe $


.
I believethat this purchaseconformsto the purposeof the Computer Lease/Purchase Program by the
following:


Date:
___j___________


Employee Signature:


Date: Approved By:


AGENDA ITEM #D.


Adoption of Ordinance Approving a New City Policy Regarding Reimbursemen... Page 87 of 131







ADMINISTRATIVEPROCEDURE- Policy Reference No. CCP 97-006
'


Page 4 of 5


(AttachmentB)


CO1\/IPUTERLEASE/PURCHASEAGREEMENT


I , desireto enter intoa contract betweenthe CityofMill_Creekandmyselffor the purpose of leasingandultimatelyowning a computer system. I agree to be
boundby the terms and conditions of the program as adopted and describedin City CouncilPolicy
97-006,and AdministrativeProcedure CCP 97-006.


Thisagreement allowsme to purchasecomputer hardware and software,through payroll deduction,
?'om the CityofMillCreek over a periodnot to exceedtwenty-four(24) months, in the principalsum
of $ _:_______. I agree to pay _______ percent annual interest on any outstanding
balance. I agree to pay for this equipmentin no more than equal monthly installmentsof
$ _______ per monthby deductingthis amount through payrolldeductionwhich I authorizeby
signingbelow. These installments shallcommence on and shallbe paidin ?all
no later than


_j_____.
I understand that I may choose to pay any outstanding balance


(principleandinterest)at any timepriorto the contract deadlinewithoutincurringa ?nancial penalty.


I agree that the City shallretain ownership and title of the computer hardware and software until the
equipmenthasbeenpaidfor in ?ill, at whichtimethe ownershipof the equipmentshallbe transferred
to me. In the event of the terminationof my employmentprior to completing?lll payment, I
authorizeanddirectthe City to deduct from my ?nal pay check any outstandingbalanceI may have
remaining?om this transaction. In the event that my ?nal pay check has insufficient ?mds to cover


allof the outstandingbalance,I ?irther agree to pay the remainingoutstanding balancebefore my last
work day with the City. In the event that I fail to complywith this contract and do not pay any
outstanding balance,I will forfeit all monieswhichI may have paid to the City and the computer
hardware and software shall remain the property of the City of Mill Creek. I agree to promptly
deliverthis equipmentto the City Clerk.


I am purchasingthe followingcomputer equipment:


Make Model Serial No.


Make Model
______?_____


Serial No.


Make
A


Model SerialNo.


AGENDA ITEM #D.


Adoption of Ordinance Approving a New City Policy Regarding Reimbursemen... Page 88 of 131







ADMINISTRATIVEPROCEDURE- PolicyReference No. CCP 97-006
'


Page 5 of 5


I have received and read this agreement explainingmy responsibilitiesunder this agreement. I
understandtheseterms and conditionsand agree to be boundby them.


'


Employee Signature Date


DepartmentDirector Date


Payroll
A


Date


G:\DATA\EXEC\WP\POLICY\97_006'RD.WPD


AGENDA ITEM #D.


Adoption of Ordinance Approving a New City Policy Regarding Reimbursemen... Page 89 of 131







CITY OF MILL CREEKPOLICY
FOR C


POLICE OFFICER FIREARMS PURCHASE PROGRAM


CityPolicy No.: . CCP 04-01


Effective: .
'


September 28, 2004


Department Review:


Executive
F”“““°° ?r,Police


.


It is the policy of the Cityto address the concernsof the PoliceDepartmentcommissionedof?cers
on the issue of con?dence and safety in the use and selectionof a ?rearm. The o?'1cer’s?rearmis
the most valuable equipment he/she is issued,and the of?cers take pride in their ?rearmsand the
pro?ciency in their use thereof. With the ability to purchase their own weapon of choice, of?cers
will be likely to practice more frequently and become more pro?cient, and will be able to select a
weapon better suitedtotheir individualphysicalcharacteristics.For those reasons, this policywill
also help ameliorate the City's liabilityarising from issuanceof standardissue?rearms.


The current weapons issued by the Police Department are the Glock 22, 40 caliber handgpg, the
Beretta 96, 40 caliberhandgun, the Beretta 92F, 9mmhandg1_mand the ColtAR15 .223 caliberri?e.
Even though these are proven, excellent duty weapons, they do not ?t the needs of all the of?cers.
Size of grip, caliber, recoil, locationofsafetymechanismand magazinerelease are all functionsand
perfonnance-related issuesthat determinewhich ?rearman of?cer may choose to carry. “One size
?ts all” does not apply to ?rearms, nor does it promote safety in handling, nor con?dence in the
weapon in a use-of-forceincident.


For the above reasons, the,City Council authorizescommissionedpoliceof?cers to enterinto an


agreementwith the City to allow of?cers to purchasea personal ?rearm to be used as theiron-duty
weapon. The following guidelines shall be used in such agreements.


a) Only ?rearms and related equipment approved by the range masterand authorized by
Department policy may be purchased. This program is available only to fully-commissioned
Mill Creek of?cers.


b) Officers purchasing?rearms andrelated equipmentunder thispolicymaydo so only once in
a twenty-four month (24)timeperiodunless approved by Chiefof Police. The weapon shall
be used during all police duty assignments,off duty assignmentsand as a back-up weapon
while employedas an of?cer with the City. If the weapon purchased is found to be defective
and experiences ongoing and perpetual malfunctions, then the time?arne for purchaseof a


AGENDA ITEM #D.


Adoption of Ordinance Approving a New City Policy Regarding Reimbursemen... Page 90 of 131







<1)


D


replacementmay be reduced,but only if it‘isrecommendedbythe rangemaster and approved
by the Chief.


The City will require purchase of the weapon and other equipmentthrough departmental
resources and outside vendors in order to decreasethe cost of the purchase price. Theof?cer
will obtainand submit three vendor pricequotes inwriting. If approved by the range master
and Finance Department, the lowest bid shall be selected. The City shall purchase the
weapon and related equipmentand shall retain ownership thereof until ?illy paid by the
of?cer. -


Under this program, the of?cer will be solely responsible for the care and maintenanceof
their firearm and all related equipment,and the cost of repairs, if any.


The of?cer shall reimbursethe City through a two-year, semi-monthlypayroll deductionin
the amount of the total purchaseprice of the weapon, plus all additionalcost for the weapon
and relatedequipment,plus a six per cent.(6%) armualinterestcharge on the outstanding
balance,. '


'


I


All of?cers carrying personally—selectedweapons are subject to the same, or greater,
quali?cation standards as those carryingdepartment-issuedweapons.


This policy is of bene?t to both the of?cers and the City. Allowing the of?cers to purchase their
personal weapon of choice fosters an existingpositiverelationshipbetween the City and the police
of?cers. This policy recognizes the importance of confidence in equipment,and in assisting the
of?cer in acquiringsuch equipment. Accordingto Ordinance94-318, the Citywillhave the ability
to surplus any outdated or unusable weaponspresently owned by the City which are listed in the
Police department inventory, and have fundsfrom the sale thereof availablefor ?iture cost-related
expenses for the department.


The City Manager or his designeeis authorized to develop and maintainan administrativeprocedure
to implement this policy. ‘


' ‘


APPROVED in05inmeeting this day of , 31-662by a vote of
for, against, and abstaining.


APPROVED:


“""""?Qy_«§3(Qgnu; .
MAYOR TE Y RYAN ~


H


AGENDA ITEM #D.


Adoption of Ordinance Approving a New City Policy Regarding Reimbursemen... Page 91 of 131







ATTEST/AUTHENTICATED:


CITY C RK KELLY HENNESSEY


APPROVED AS TO FORM:


@x»M..w.,___.
OFFICE OF THE CITY ATTORNEY
SHORT CRESSMAN &BURGESS


G:\Executivc\WP\Policy\2004(3un_Ril'lcPurchDra? Policy—CAVersion Final.doc


AGENDA ITEM #D.


Adoption of Ordinance Approving a New City Policy Regarding Reimbursemen... Page 92 of 131







ADMINISTRATIVEPROCEDURE CITY .OF MILL CREEK


City Policy Reference:__0_"__i’_“_'_Q_i___EffectiveDate;


Page 1 of5
A Q/Z9/“D4


Approv
CityManager


‘


PROCEDUREFOR POLICE OFFICER FIREARMSPURCHASEPROGRAM


PURPOSE


The purpose of this program is to assistcommissionedpoliceof?cers who have completedtheir trial
employment period in acquiring a suitable, approved ?rearmof choice to be used as theiron-duty
weapon. These procedures detail the terms and conditionsof the agreement between the City and
of?cers whereby he/she may purchase such ?rearm.


SCOPE


This procedure applies to commissionedpolice officerswhen currently employedby the City and
who have completed their trialperiod.


PROCEDURES


1. An of?cer shallcompletea CooperativeFirearmsPurchase Agreement (Attachment A). In
completing this fomi the officer shouldprovidean itemizeddescriptionof theweaponand all
other related equipmentintendedfor purchase, along with a brief explanation of how this
purchase conforms with the purpose of thisprogram and the policyautliorizing;theprogram.


2. Of?cers should submit their requests to the range master or Police Chief. The range master
or other designeewill reviewthe request to detennineif theweapon and equipmentconfonn
to the program criteria. If not, the request will be denied,or may be held until all the criteria
have been met Allrequests shall be approved or denied by the range masteror designee, at
his/her discretion.


3. Once an officer has received approval to participatein the program, he/she is responsible for
obtainingthree vendor quotes for purchase of the ?rearm and relatedequipment.Theofficer
shall provide the Finance Department with the originalbids. The Finance Department shall
select the lowest bid and shall initiate the payment process by the City.


4. The officer shall sign a Cooperative Firearms Purchase Agreement(Attachment A)prior to
expenditureof City funds. This form shall be completed and submitted to the Finance


AGENDA ITEM #D.


Adoption of Ordinance Approving a New City Policy Regarding Reimbursemen... Page 93 of 131







Page 2 of 5ADMINISTRATIVEPROCEDURE- Policy Reference No. CCP pt,“ 0 I
Department alongwith the approved participationrequest and the originalvendorbids for the
?rearm purchase.


5. The Finance Department will determine the amount of the payroll deductionbased on the
purchase price of the ?rearmand equipment. The repayment periodshallnot exceed twenty-
four months. In addition,the officer shall pay a six percent (6%) annual interestcharge on
the outstanding balance.


6. The City willretainownershipof the ?rearm and related equipment,and apayroll deduction .


will be credited against the outstandingbalance,until the purchase price and interesthave
been paid in ?ill. At that time the ownership of the ?rearm andequipment shall be
transferred to theof?cer.


‘


'


7. The of?cer may pay any outstandingbalance (principaland interest) in full at any time in the
.
form of a personal check or through the payrolldeduction process prior to the contract
agreementdeadlinewithoutincurringa personal penalty. The outstandingbalance for such
final payment shall be determined by the FinanceDepartment.


8. An of?cer who has fully paidoff a ?rearmmay enter into a new agreement for a new weapon
and related equipmentpurchase, provided that such acquisitionmeets allof the requirements
of the firearms purchasepolicy and this program.


CONDITIONS


1. Participating officers may not sell, loan, assign, or transfer theirrights to or physical
possession of the weapon andthe equipmentduringtheterm of the agreement, not whilethey
are employed by the City of Mill CreekPolice Department.


2. Participating officers aresolely responsible for the care, servicingand maintenanceof the
?rearm andall related equipment,plus the cost of repairs,unlessotherwisedeterminedby the
range master or Police Chief to be a Departmental expense.


3. Participating of?cers who sign the Cooperative Firearms Purchase Agreementshall respect
the terms of the contract agreement with the City.


4. A participating of?cer who terminates employment with the Cityprior to the completion of
payment of the balanceowing shall authorize the City to deduct ?om his/her final paycheck
alloutstanding balances that they may owe from such agreement. In the event his/her?nal
paycheck has insuf?cient funds to cover any outstandingbalance,theof?cer furtheragrees to


AGENDA ITEM #D.


Adoption of Ordinance Approving a New City Policy Regarding Reimbursemen... Page 94 of 131







ADMINISTRATIVEPROCEDURE- Policy Reference No. CCP @l—f~DI Page 3 of5


have this outstandingbalancewithheld?‘omhis/herMEBTaccount balance.Furthermore,inthe event that the of?cer failsto complywiththe agreement anddoesnot pay any outstandingbalance, then he/she shall forfeitany monieswhichhe/shehaspaid to the City to such dateand the officershallpromptlyrelinguishthe ?rearmto the range master or PoliceChief. Theweapon and equipmentshall then become the property of the City.


5. When the participatingofficer has fully paid the balanceof the agreement to the City, the
a


weapon and equipmentshall becomethe property of the of?cer. Ifthe participatingof?cerhas paid off the balance of the agreement and tenninates employmentwith the ‘City, theofficer may retain the weapon and equipmentas his/her property.


6. The City shall not be held accountable,nor shall it be responsible for, any liabilityarising
from misuseor mistreatmentof the ?rearmduring employmentwith the City, nor for any
use, misuseor mistreatmentfollowingterminationof the officer's employment.


7. If at any time the range master, Police Chief or City determinesin their sole discretionthat
this program no longerprovidestangiblebene?ts to the City and/or the of?c,er(s),then the
program may be discontinuedby the City. To participatein thisprogram and the agreement,
the officer(s) must consent to all terms and conditions set forth in the administrative
procedures for the CooperativeFirearms Purchase Agreement.


AGENDA ITEM #D.


Adoption of Ordinance Approving a New City Policy Regarding Reimbursemen... Page 95 of 131







ADMINISTRATIVEPROCEDURE- Policy Reference No. CCP 0 JD! Page 4 of 5


(Attachment A)


COOPERATIVEFIREARMSPURCHASEAGREEMENT


I, desire to enter intoa contract betweenthe Cityof Mill
Creekand myself for the purpose of acquiringa ?rearmand relatedequipment.This?rearmshallbe
used as my on duty, off duty and backup weapon while employedwith the City of Mill Creek. I
understand that I may enter into this agreement only once in a twenty-four month period, unless
approved by the Chief of Police in accordance with applicable policies and procedures.


This contract agreement allows me to purchasea ri?e or handgunand related equipmentthrough a
payroll deduction from the City of Mill Creek over a period not to exceed twenty-four months. I
agree to pay six percent (6%) annual interest on any outstanding balance. I‘agree to pay for this
?rearm in equal semi-monthly payments of $ per payday. These
installmentsshall commence on


I


, and are to be paid in ?ill no later than
. I understandthat I may chooseto pay any outstandingbalance(principal-and


interest) at any time prior to the contract agreement deadlinewithout incurringa personal penalty.
This outstanding balance will be determinedby the FinanceDepartment.


I agree that the City shall retainownershipof the ?rearmand equipmentuntilit has beenpaid in full
’


at which time the ownershipof the ?rearmand equipmentshall be transferred to me. In the event of
the terminationof my employmentbefore fullpayment if made, I authorizeand directmy employer
to deduct ?'om my ?nal paycheck all outstanding balancesthat I may have ?om this transaction. In
the event that my ?nal paycheck is insuf?cient to cover all outstanding balances,I ?irther agree to
have all outstanding balances for the ?rearmand equipment be withheld from my MEBT account


balance which I may choose to receive at the time of my termination?om the City.


If in the event I fail to comply with this contract agreement, the policy and/or the program
authorizingthiscontract agreement, and/or if I do not pay any outstandingbalancewhenrowed,Iwill
forfeit any monies that I have paid to the City, and the ?rearmand equipmentshall be promptly
relinguished to the range master or Police Chief, and shall remain thereafterpropertyof the City of
Mill Creek. .


If I have paid in full the balance of the contract agreement, or my employment with the City
terminates and I have paid in full the balanceof the contract agreement, then the ?rearm and
equipment shall becomemy sole property.


TheCity shall not be held accountable, nor shall it be responsible for, any liability arising from
misuse or mistreatmentof the ?rearm during employment with the City, nor for any use, misuse or
mistreatmentfollowing terminationof my employment with the City.


AGENDA ITEM #D.


Adoption of Ordinance Approving a New City Policy Regarding Reimbursemen... Page 96 of 131







ADMINISTRATIVEPROCEDURE- Policy ReferenceNo. CCP Lfzp I 2 Page 5 of 5


In order to participatein this contract agreement, I acknowledgethat I have read, understandandagree to all the terms and conditionsset forth above, includingthe conditionsdescribedin theProcedurefor Police Officer FireannsPurchase Program.


I am purchasing the followingdescribedfireann and relatedequipment:


Make '


Make


Model Model


Serial # Serial #


Vendor . « Vendor


Brief explanation of how this ?rearmpurchase confonns with the purpose of the program:


I have read and understandthis contract agreement. By signingbelow I agree to its terms and
conditions.


_____.______._____________
EmployeeSignature Date


______..________..______._.____
Department Director


. Date


Payroll/Finance Department Date


G:\EXECUTIVE\WP\POLlCY\2004Gun_Ri?ePurch Draft Policy-CA VersionFinal.


AGENDA ITEM #D.


Adoption of Ordinance Approving a New City Policy Regarding Reimbursemen... Page 97 of 131







Date: March 27 2018


Miiifiifek
WASHINGTON


A/P Check Batches
Dated Check Numbers Amount
03/15/2018 58310-58380 $153,662.62
03/15/2018 ACH—Union76 Fleet-Feb $4,535.22


Total $158,197.84


Voided Checks
Numbers Explanation


CLAIMS APPROVAL


We, the undersigned Finance/Audit Committee of the City of Mill Creek, recommend approval of check
numbers 58310 through 58380, and ACH in the amount of$158.197.84.


We recommend approval of the above stated amount with the following exceptions:


Councilmember
law


Fin e Director


Councilmember City Manager


F \D:\TA\EXECUTIVE\\VP\FORMS\FlN\VouclIcr .-\ppro\':|lI.do:


.9‘


AGENDA ITEM #E.


Approval of Checks #58310 through #58380 and ACH Wire Transfers in the A... Page 98 of 131







RptBatchSumViewForm Page 1 of 1


ACH Cash Pro Online Report Date: 03/14/2018


City of MillCreek ReportTime: 12:41 :00 PM


Batch Summary Report by ID Number


Company Name: City of Mill 01 Effective Date:


ACH ID: 2911225895 Batch Sequence: 1 -’


Application Name: CCD Payments and Collections Database Name: 76


Batch Status: Entered Created By: SANKO‘|'|'KE


Released By:


Name Q Amount % Bank ID Account # % Trace #


r 1059153
’C 071000288 4539508 C°2°“°°" T


,» .-/


Total Amount in Batch Total Count in Batch


Debits $0.00 0


Credits $4,535.22 1


Prenotes $0.00 0


Grand Total Amount Grand Total Count


Debits $0.00 0


Credits $4535.22 1


Prenotes $0.00 0


https://cpo-ach.bankofamerica.com/wcmpr/rptbatchsumviewform.jsp?source=BATCHSU...3/14/2018


AGENDA ITEM #E.


Approval of Checks #58310 through #58380 and ACH Wire Transfers in the A... Page 99 of 131







Accounts Payable K


‘


Ki
Checks by Date - Detail by Check Date "


User: Jotlicg 5‘
Printed: 3/22/2018 10:11 AM CITY OF / 154


M' If k
W A S H I N C T O N


Check No Vendor No Vendor Name Check Date Void Checks Check Amount


Invoice No Description Reference


58310 9l1SUPI’L 911 Supply Inc 03/15/2018
IN-11630 Heavy Duly Hard Knuckle Gll)‘/C'J Mack 55.19


Total for Check Number 58310: 0.00 55.19


58311 ADPLLC ADP, LLC 03/15/2018
509862647 Payroll Processing Chg:-\Vorkforcc Now 02/15 518.80


510533365 Payroll Processing Chgs-Workforce Now 02/28 518.80


Total for Check 1’\'uinbcr58311: 0.00 1,037.60


58312 AFSCME WSCCCE, AFSCME, AFL-C10 03/15/2018
February Union Dues-AFSCME-Fol) 1,177.03


Total for Check Number 58312: 0.00 1,177.03


58313 ALEXPRCO Alexander Printing Company lnc 03/15/2018
52993 Business Cards-Ringstad,l(ams,Anirine,Horti11 285.66


Total for Check Number 58313: 0.00 285.66


58314 ALPINPRO Alpine Products, Inc. 03/15/2018
TM-174070 Median Center Lane Road Markers 131.81


Tolal for Check Number 58314: 0.00 131.81


58315 AMTESTIN Am Test, Inc 03/15/2018


103414 S-FecalCo1il‘orm Analysis 125.00


Total for Check Number 58315: 0.00 125.00


58316 BANKCRl6 Bank ofAmerica 03/15/2018
1 MC Rotary Mtg 02/07-T Rogers 1700


2 ICC Conference-R Kams 355.00


3 MC Rotary Mtg 02/14-T Rogers 17.00


4 MC Rotary Mtg 02/ll-T Rogers 17.00


5 MC Rotary Mtg 02/28-T Rogers 17.00


Total for Check Number 58316: 0.00 423.00


58317 BANKCR23 Business Card 03/15/2018
1 Working Lunch 01/21-G Elwin, S Eastman 38.03


2 Refreshmenls-Map Your Neighborhood Comm E 32.18


3 Refreshinents-Map Your Neighborhood Comm E 37.43


4 Refreshments-Map Your Neigliborliood Comm E 6.00


Total for Check Number 58317: 0.00 113.64


58318 BANKCR24 Business Card 03/15/2018


1 Lodging-Budget Analyst Training 02/05~02/09-L 809.88


2 Refreshments-All Employee Mtg 03/01 22.34


AP Checks by Dale - Detail by Check Date (3/22/2018 10:11 AM) Page I


AGENDA ITEM #E.


Approval of Checks #58310 through #58380 and ACH Wire Transfers in the A... Page 100 of 131







Check No Vendor No Vendor Name Check Date Void Checks Check Amount


Invoice No Description Reference


Total for Check Number 58318: 0.00 832.22


58319 BANKCR25 Business Card 03/15/2018
1 AirfareBookingFee 3CMA Conf09/04-09/07-J 2.66


2 3CMA Annual Conference-J Kirk 605.00


3 Airfare 3CMA Conf 09/04-J Kirk 168.30


4 Airfare 3CMA Conf 09/07-J Kirk 155.00


5 Planning Luncheon 02/ 15-1Kirk.B Davem 42.84


6 Survey-Youth BasketballLeague Evaluations 35.00


7 Dinner-YAB RecognitionEvent/SpringKick-O? 70.59


Total for Check Number 58319: 0.00 1,079.39


58320 BANKCR27 Business Card 03/15/2018
1 [APE-Video Training-J Lee 375.00


1A [APE-Video Training-S Eastman 350.00


2 GoodTo Go WSDOT Monthly Fee-S Eastman 30.00


Total for Check Number 58320: 0.00 755.00


58321 BENEAD BenefitAdministration Co, LLC 03/15/2018
1802515 Section 125 Flexible Bene?ts Plan-Feb 126.60


Total for Check Number 58321: 0.00 126.60


58322 BRAUNB Beth Braun 03/15/2018
2018-0302 Consulting Services 02/ 19-03/02 1,920.00


Total for CheckNumber 58322: 0.00 1,920.00


58323 CAVANAUG MichaelE. Cavanaugh 03/15/2018
031118-1 MCPOGArbitration Cancellation Fee $50.00


Total for Check Number 58323: 0.00 550.00


58324 CHZOINC CH20.Inc 03/15/2018
265760 HVAC Cooling Loop 183.46


265762 HVAC Cooling Loop 679.69


Total for Check Number 58324: 0.00 863.15


58325 CIEDMOND City of Edmonds 03/15/2018
RGG-180025 DomesticViolenceCoordinator - Jan-Mar 2,817.72


Total for Check Number 58325: 0.00 2,817.72


58326 CINTAS Cintas Corporation Loc. #460 03/15/2018
460326746 Floor Mat Service 04/ 10 84.97


460326746a Floor Mat Service 04/10 49.55


Total for Check Number58326: 0.00 134.52


58327 CITYEVE City of Everett 03/15/2018
118001242 Share of TrainingCosts-InterloealAgreement 20 800.00


Total for Check Number58327: 0.00 800.00


58328 COMCAST Comcast 03/15/2018
0724345 lntemet for ITS 03/14-04/13 106.40


Total for Check Number 58328: 0.00 106.40


AP Checks by Date - Detail by Check Date (3/22/2018 10:11 AM) Page 2


AGENDA ITEM #E.


Approval of Checks #58310 through #58380 and ACH Wire Transfers in the A... Page 101 of 131







Check N0 Vendor No Vendor Name Check Date Void Checks Check Amount


Invoice No Description Reference


58329 ELLITIRE PepBoys-RemittanceDept 03/15/2018
064462000639 LOF - Car #32 40.08


064462000671 4 Tires/Wheel Alignment - Car #44 835.95


064462001174 EngineDiagnostic,ReplaceSparkPlugs-Car #41 356.68


080771 Replace Lower Ball Joints/Alignment/Transfercz 1,058.60


Total for Check Number 58329: 0.00 2,291.31


58330 EVERGRM1. Evergreen Maintenance Landscaping,LLC 03/15/2018
MC012 2018 LandscapeMaintenance-Feb-HillsidePark 220.80


MC013 2018 LandscapeMaintenance-Feb-NorthCreek Sports 110.40


MC014 2018 LandscapeMaintenance-Feb-LibraryPark 110.40


MC015 2018 LandscapeMaintenance-Feb-PublicLibrary 220.80


MC016 2018 LandscapeMaintenance-Feb-HighlandsPark 110.40


MC017 2018 Landscape Maintenance-Feb-PineMeadowPark 220.80


MC018 2018 Landscape Maintenance-Feb-C1-IN 165.60


MC019 2018 LandscapeMaintenance-Feb-CHS 220.80


MC020 2018 LandscapeMaintenance-Feb-BuffaloPark 220.80


MC021 2018 LandscapeMaintenance—Feb-NickelCreek Park 110.40


MC022 2018 LandscapeMaintenance-Feb-HeronPark 110.40


Total for Check Number 58330: 0.00 1,821.60


58331 FELDMAJ Feldman& Lee, P.S. 03/15/2018
February2018 Public Defender Contract Flat Fee-Feb 9,000.00


Total for Check Number 58331: 0.00 9,000.00


58332 FOUTCHB Bart Foutch 03/15/2018
Reimb Supplies-PDBadge/Photos/Core Values Display 158.46


Total for Check Number 58332: 0.00 158.46


58333 GFOA Government Finance OfficersAssociation 03/15/2018
0162001 GFOA Annual Membership-RPolizzotto 190.00


Total forCheck Number 58333: 0.00 190.00


58334 GRYOSBRN Gray & Osborne Inc 03/15/2018
17559.01-1 2017-1380 W01-Division 1 Boiler Plate 1,261.26


17559.01-la 2017-I380 W01-Division 1 Boiler Plate 1,260.00


18410.00-2 35thAve Recon-Constructability& BidabilityR: 9,389.24


Total for Check Number 58334: 0.00 11,910.50


58335 GTENORTH Frontier 03/15/2018
0326-110804-5 Alarm System Line Chgs-Cook House 52.27


6974-081899-5 CC Line/Security System 167.32


Total for Check Number 58335: 0.00 219.59


58336 IACP-MEM IACP-Membership 03/15/2018
1001300133 IACP Membership Dues-S Conner 75.00


Total for Check Number 58336: 0.00 75.00


58337 INTEGRA Allsueam 03/15/2018
15202411 T-1 Monthly Chgs-Mar 675.54


Total for Check Number 58337: 0.00 675.54


58338 .101-INCLNRJohn's Cleaning Services Inc 03/15/2018


AP Checks by Date - Detail by CheckDate (3/22/2018 10:11 AM) Page 3


AGENDA ITEM #E.


Approval of Checks #58310 through #58380 and ACH Wire Transfers in the A... Page 102 of 131







Check No Vendor No Vendor Name Check Date Void Checks Check Amount
invoice No Description Reference


2598 UniformDry Cleaning-Feb 30.01


Total for Check Number 58338: 0.00 30.01


58339 KPFFCON KPFF Consulting Engineers 03/15/2018
180178 Bridge Load Ratings 12/0|-12/29 11,708.91


186749 Prof Serv 35th Ave Recon 01/01-01/26 6,605.47


Total for Check Number 58339: 0.00 18,314.38


58340 LESSCHW Les Schwab 03/15/2018
39500374298 New Battery-Sta?‘Car #2 150.27


Total for Check Number 58340: 0.00 150.27


58341 LEXNEXIS RELX Inc 03/15/2018
3091356382 LexisNexisMonthlyChgs 02/01-02/28 186.09


Total for Check Number 58341: 0.00 186.09


58342 MCL&EAR( Sirennet.com 03/15/2018
0225406-IN 4-Halogen Bulb-PW #9 & #10 94.73


Total for Check Number 58342: 0.00 94.73


58343 MCMAG MillCreek Living Magazine 03/15/2018
4301 20,000 Copies - 2018 Spring Rec Guide 7,425.00


Total for Check Number 58343: 0.00 7,425.00


58344 NWIMT NW WA IncidentManagement Team 03/15/2018
2018-4 2018 AnnualAssessment 998.00


Total for Check Number 58344: 0.00 998.00


58345 OREILLY O'Reilly Automotive Inc 03/15/2018
2986-148288 DifferentialFluidChange-PW #1 & #5 7.72


2986-148493 Oil & Filters—SmallEquip-OilChange 47.97


2986-149571 Edger Belt 6.12


2986-149572 Edger Belt 5.30


2986-150295 Returned & Repurchased-EdgerBelt -0.17


Total for Check Number 58345: 0.00 66.94


58346 PACAIR Paci?c Air Control, Inc. 03/15/2018
10017 HVAC Repairs-CHN 1,353.22


Total for CheckNumber 58346: 0.00 1,353.22


58347 PAKOR Pakor Inc 03/15/2018
8028452 2 Cs Media-Passport Film 625.76


Total for Check Number 58347: 0.00 625.76


58348 PAWSAFT Paws Afoot 03/15/2018
6741 Dog Obed-Basic Training (Winter I-6pm) 0l/22- 231.00


6744 Dog Obed-Basic Training (Winter 1) 01/22-03/0; 462.00


Total for Check Number 58348: 0.00 693.00


58349 PHILPUB Philips Publishing 03/15/2018
412 Passport Ad-LynnwoodParks & Rec 340.00


AP Checks by Date - Detailby CheckDate (3/22/2018 10:11 AM) Page 4


AGENDA ITEM #E.


Approval of Checks #58310 through #58380 and ACH Wire Transfers in the A... Page 103 of 131







Check No Vendor No Vendor Name Check Date Void Checks Check Amount


Invoice No Description Reference


Total for Check Number 58349: 0.00 340.00


58350
_
PITNEYB Pitney Bowes Global FinancialServices 03/15/2018
3305560923 Lease Postage Machine, Meter & Scale 12/30-03 465.73


3305560923a Credit-LeasePostage Machine, Meter & Scale 11 -107.95


Total for Check Number 58350: 0.00 357.78


58351 PKELLYS Sean Kelly 03/15/2018
MEBT RefundMEBTAug-Nov Paychecks 153.00


Total for Check Number 58351: 0.00 153.00


58352 PLATT Platt Electric Supply, Inc 03/ 15/2018
P734882 Street Lights/Lights 768.26


P7348823 Street Lights/Lights 187.19


Total for Check Number 58352: 0.00 955.45


58353 RAMERJ Jon Ramer 03/15/2018
2018-01 Consulting Services—MemorialDay Parade 2,000.00


Total for Check Number 58353: 0.00 2,000.00


58354 SDISTCRT South DistrictCourt 03/15/2018
February 2018 Filing Fees-SD Court-Feb 5,100.78


February 2018a InterpreterCosts-Feb 413.10


Total for Check Number 58354: 0.00 5,513.88


58355 SHORTCR Short Cressman & Burgess PLLC 03/15/2018
494724 Prof Legal Services-Council-Feb 2,481.56


494725 Prof Legal Services-CED-Feb 527.00


494727 Prof Legal Services-Exec-HR-Feb 310.00


494728 ProfLegal Services-Breachof WebsiteContract- 352.00


494729 Prof Legal Services-Exec-PRA-Feb 3,910.72


494730 Prof Legal Services-FireContract-Feb 1,798.00


494731 Prof Legal Services-Council-Feb 104.00


Total for Check Number 58355: 0.00 9,483.28


S8356 SHURKLEN Kramer Enterprises,LLC‘ 03/15/2013
398 Vehicle Washes - Oct 2017-Jan 2018 569.50


398a Vehicle Washes - Oct 2017-Jan 2018 49.95


Total for CheckNumber58356: 0.00 619.45


58357 SILVBRL Silverlake Water District 03/ I5/201 8


14112-27585 132nd& SR 527 Irrig 02/01-02/28 7.60


14737-19068 Silver Crest Park 02/0 I-02/28 7.60


17679-27345 15429 1/2 Bothell Everett Hwy 02/01-02/28 7.60


17684-27596 15429Bothell Way-Irrig02/01-02/28 7.60


24079-27593 Hillside lrrig 02/01-02/28 7.60


32140-27632 13903N Creek Dr-Irrig02/01-02/28 7.60


32141-27633 13903N Creek Dr 02/01-02/28 69.65


35995-27914 SR 527-lrrig 02/01-02/28 7.60


35996-27914 14600SR 527-Irrig 02/01-02/28 7.60


35997-27914 13800N SR 527-lrrig 02/01-02/28 7.60


35998-27914 1600 SR 527-lrrig 02/01-02/28 7.60


35999-27914 15200SR 527-lrrig 02/01-02/28 7.60


36000-27914 15100N SR 527-Irrig02/01-02/28 7.60


AP Checks by Date - Detail by Check Date (3/22/2018 10:11AM) Page 5


AGENDA ITEM #E.


Approval of Checks #58310 through #58380 and ACH Wire Transfers in the A... Page 104 of 131







Check No Vendor No Vendor Name Check Date Void Checks Check Amount
Invoice No Description Reference


36016-27914 SR 527 & Trillium Blvd-lrrig 02/01-02/28 7.60


36025-27914 14600SR 527-Irrig02/01-02/28 7.60


36026-27914 SR 527 & Dumas Rd-lrrig 02/01-02/28 7.60
36365-27593 Dumas 1{dIrrigation 02/01-02/28 22.30
37034-30017 14721 12thAve SE-lrrig 02/01-02/28 7.60
37680-27914 0 33rd Dr & NorthpointeCircle-lrrig 02/01-02/2 7.60


40191-27914 1331545th Ave SE-Restroom 02/01-02/28 63.50


Total for CheckNumber 58357: 0.00 284.65


58358 SMARSH Smarsh Inc 03/15/2018
INV00337444 Text Archiving Platform-VerizonMonthly02/01- 240.60
INV00337444a Use Tax, Text Archiving Platform-VerizonMont] -7.80


Total for Check Number 58358: 0.00 232.80


58359 SNDPUBIN Sound Publishing Inc 03/15/2018
EDH799541 City Notice: BindingSite Plan-CommercialDaya 55.04


Total for Check Number 58359: 0.00 55.04


58360 SNOCODEN Sno Co Departmentof Emergency Manage: 03/15/2018
1000465336 2018 Emergency Services-lst Qtr 6,089.30


Total for Check Number 58360: 0.00 6,089.30


58361 SNOCOM SnohomishCounty 911 03/15/2018
207 Dispatch Services-Mar 30,014.58


Total for Check Number 58361: 0.00 30,014.58


58362 SNOCOPW Snohomish County PublicWorks 03/ 15/2018
1000465418 RR6138-Overlay Program-Jan 203.82


Total for Check Number58362: 0.00 203.82


58363 SNOCPUD PUD No. 1 of SnohomishCounty 03/15/2018
2007-4359-9 Street Lights-190Lights-200W 02/01-02/28 1,746.10


2013-6774-5 902 164thSt SE 02/06-03/07 34.06


2016-6351-5 14600 16thAve SE 02/02-03/06 19.35


2016-6928-0 16110 1/2 29th Dr SE 01/26-02/27 57.86


2017-8113-5 2701 ISSTH St SE 01/30-02/28 125.91


2018-9805-3 1700 Mill Creek Rd 01/24-02/23 120.31


2025-2921-0 Street Lights-386 Lights-100W 02/01-02/28 1,389.60


2025-7077-6 Street Lights-87Lights-250W 02/01-02/28 942.21


2026-2439-1 Street Lights-841Lights-100W02/01-02/28 6,021.56


2027-6793-5 Street Lights-21 Lights-400W02/01-02/28 312.90


2029-0994-1 Street Lights-6 Lights-150W02/01-02/28 28.98


2029-2633-3 Hillside Park 01/27-02/27 17.28


2029-5905-2 4842 SAC 02/08-03/08 71.03


2030-2812-1 4560 SAC 02/06-03/07 58.02


2032-5163-2 15510Village Green Dr 01/30-02/28 16.20


2047-1752-4 Street Lights-8 Lights-200W 02/01-02/28 47.68


2047-1753-2 Street Lights-38 Lights-250W 02/01-02/28 285.38


2047- 1754-0 Street Lights-39 Lights-400W 02/01-02/28 441.48


2050-8723-2 Street Lights-17 Lights-100W 02/01-02/28 52.87


2054-9532-8 Street Lights-49 Lights-20 W 02/01-02/28 17.15
2203-1739-0 Street Lights-1 Light-240W 02/01-02/28 7.94


2206-1241-0 1560122nd Ct SE 01/31-02/28 21.13


2207-6351-0 13332 44th Ave SE 02/06-03/06 67.50


2212-9311-1 Street Lights-1 Light-160 W 02/01-02/28 5.18


AP Cheeks by Date - Detailby Check Date (3/22/2018 10:11AM) Page 6


AGENDA ITEM #E.


Approval of Checks #58310 through #58380 and ACH Wire Transfers in the A... Page 105 of 131







Check No Vendor No Vendor Name Check Date Void Checks Check Amount


Invoice No Description Reference


Total for Check Number 58363: 0.00 11,907.68


58364 STARDMSV Stardom Services Inc 03/15/2018
011753-IN Janitorial Services-Feb-CHN 1,184.13


011753-INa Janitorial Services-Feb-CHS 995.00


Total for CheckNumber58364: 0.00 2,179.13


58365 STERICYC Stericycle Inc 03/15/2018
3004180082 BiomedicalWaste Services-MonthlyFee 10.36


Total for CheckNumber 58365: 0.00 10.36


58366 STRATINS Strategic Insights Inc 03/15/2018
l8P1an-It-060 License Renewal-Plan-It CIP Planning Software 1,545.60


Total for Check Number 58366: 0.00 1,545.60


58367 TLOLLC TransUnionRisk andAlternative 03/15/2018
839489 Background/IdentityInvestigations-Feb 27.61


Total for Check Number58367: 0.00 27.61


58368 TRANSUN Trans Union LLC 03/15/2018
02810627 Basic Service Monthly Fee-CreditChecks 01/26- 44.16


Total for Check Number 58368: 0.00 44.16


58369 UNWAYSNC UnitedWay of Snohomish County 03/15/2018
03/09/18 United Way EE for March 2018 322.00


Total for Check Number58369: 0.00 322.00


58370 USBANK US Bank NA - Custody 03/15/2018
XXXXXXXI39 Investment Custody Charges 02/01-02/28 36.00


Total for Check Number 58370: 0.00 36.00


58371 USIC USIC Locating Services, LLC 03/15/2018
270783 142NC Locates/137 Ticket Locates 1,617.97


270783a 142NC Locates/137 TicketLocates 1,617.97


274458 119NC Locates/116Ticket Locates 1,369.96


274458a 119NC Locatesl116TicketLocates 1,369.96


Total for CheckNumber 58371: 0.00 5,975.86


58372 UULC UtilitiesUndergroundLocation Center 03/15/2018
8020166 On Call Location Service-112Locates 72.24


8020166a On Call Location Service-112 Locates 72.24


Total for Check Number 58372: 0.00 144.48


58373 VERIZON VerizonWireless 03/15/2018
471024319-00001 Access & Usage Chgs Ol/21-02/20 - City Cell P1 2,074.41


Total for Check Number 58373: 0.00 2,074.41


58374 WALTNELS Walter E. Nelson Co. 03/15/2018
638268 Credit.3-Wiper Brawny -75.92


639243 8-BathTissue Roll 530.45


AP Checks by Date - Detail by Check Date (3/22/2018 10:11AM) Page '7


AGENDA ITEM #E.


Approval of Checks #58310 through #58380 and ACH Wire Transfers in the A... Page 106 of 131







Check No Vendor No Vendor Name Check Date Void Checks Check Amount


Invoice No Description Reference


Total for Check Number 58374: 0.00 454.53


58375 WASTPAT Washington State Patrol 03/15/2018
118005956 BackgroundChecks-Feb 96.00


Total for Check Number 58375: 0.00 96.00


58376 WAVEDIV WaveDivision Holdings, LLC 03/15/2018
04684279 Fiber Lease-15728Main St-To 3000 Rockefeller 657.78


Total for CheckNumber 58376: 0.00 657.78


58377 WRIGHTJ Jere Wright 03/15/2018
Reimb 2-Dewalt ReplacementSpanner Wrench 13.09


Total for Check Number 58377: 0.00 13.09


58378 WSDA WA ST Dept of Agriculture 03/15/2018
License PesticideLicenseFee-MCombs 33.00


Test Fee PesticideLicense-Testing Fee-M Combs 25.00


Total for CheckNumber 58378: 0.00 58.00


58379 WSUVET WSU VeterinaryTeaching Hospital 03/15/2018
183493 Balance Owing-Rasko-Surgery - 609.81


Total for Check Number 58379: 0.00 609.81


58380 ZOHO ZOHO Corporation 03/15/2018
2186706 Annual Subscription Fee-ManageEngineADAuc 1,589.76


Total for CheckNumber 58380: 0.00 1,589.76


Total for 3/15/2018: 0-00 153.562-62


Report Total (71 checks): 0-00 153,662.62


AP Checksby Date - Detailby Check Date (3/22/2018 10:11AM) Page 8


AGENDA ITEM #E.


Approval of Checks #58310 through #58380 and ACH Wire Transfers in the A... Page 107 of 131







Date: March 27 2018


Mi11éT€e1<
WASHINGTON


Payroll Check Batches
Dated Check Numbers Amount
03/09/2018 ACH Automatic Deposit Checks $179,361.39
03/09/2018 ACH Wire- FWT & Medicare Taxes $32,985.78
03/08/2018 ACH Wire MEBT- Wilmington Trust $27,221.34
O3/08/2018 ACH Wire- ICMA RC- Def. Comp $1,076.51
03/08/2018 AC1-1Wire- BAC—Flex Spending Acct $1,012.05
03/O8/2018 ACH Wire- MCPD Guild Dues $2,140.00


Total $243,797.07


Voided Checks
Numbers Explanation


CLAIMS APPROVAL


We, the undersigned Finance/Audit Committee of the City ofMill Creek, recommend approval of the
ACH Automatic Deposit checks and ACH Wire Transfers in the amount of $243 797.07.


We recommend approval of the above stated amount with the following exceptions:


Councilmember


Councilmember


G:Finance\\VP\Pnyro11\PayrollVoucllcr Approval doc


Fi Director Q
City Manager


AGENDA ITEM #F.


Payroll and Benefit ACH Payments in the Amount of $243,797.07 (Audit Com... Page 108 of 131







Io
_‘m


am
a.


S
paw


n
_.N


2.23
_.N


t.t.....?~


E
m


E
E


:m
_m


o=
m


_§m


8.o
oo.o


~.E
.§.~


:4.
___nm


_.__So._.
9


m
m


. _.on.m
t.


.
R


.m
am


.~m


:9.
a.


$5
252


m
u_o>


\>
m


n_o.n=
m


.cm
E


um
:._u<


9.85
u::ooo<


._:o>
E


2".
uoznoou::oE


<
_3o._.


vm
oooom


m
E


m
<


>
_m


Foo...vo
S


ooooodz
..ou<=


3 .on
.025


8_aom
=


:n_


uoz?o
m


oxm
._._S


o._.


oo.o
xm


._..o_=
m


_n__8_tm
oo.o


x?.
m


E
ooc_


_m
oo._


oo.o
m


m
-


E
m


E
m


m
om


m
<ES


".
E


m
cm


m
.m


.9=
o>


>
oo.o


m
m


-
E


oE
m


m
m


m
m


<3:“.
E


m
cm


m
.29=


o>
>


8.o
m


m
-m


s
a___n$_o=


$§oae2:
92m


oo.o
m


m
-.__.<m


ocm
S


m
:_


a___%
m


_n29w
cod


m
m


-
m


o:m
.S


.u.:_
a___._$_asew


oo.o
m


m
-._u<oocm


._:m
:_E


m
E


>
o_aE


m
_5


29¢.


oo.o
m


m
-


oo:m
._:m


c_.cm
E


>
o_aE


m
.5


29m
oo.o


xm
h


oE
ooc_


22¢.
E


m
em


m
m coz


oo.o
xm


._.mE
8c_


23w
cod


.8...
E


m
E


>
o_Q


E
m


:D
.925".


oo.o
m


E
oE


>
w


n_m
o:2m


_m
.o.<


F
=


..__.._.._¢._n_<m
m


oo
8.o


m
m


-._u<xssw
e8_B


s_


oo.o
m


m
-xssm


98_8s_


8.o
.


m
m


-
.__o<98_B


s_


«N
am


e.»
m


m
-


m
.m


o_um
s_


8.m
8_m


m
m


-
28__8s_


oo.o
m


m
-


__u<a_s8m
_a_8m


8.o
m


m
-


€53
_m


_8w


8...
m


m
-


a_s8w
_a_8m


cod
m


m
ocm


>
u<
._um


.o
m


E
8:_


.um
E


m
m


_
.


xm
m


E
8c


S
m


m


m 3328
S


m
S


E
B


“$%
:m


.m
Q


m
E


c.
S


E


9.3
am


eE
=


m
_8_.m


_§m


_=
n_m


:o .m
w


m.=
..O


> -m
uxa._.


a___._m
_._


.550
6


azao
._§m


m
._8m


:a._._.
.850


uogaon
m


oxm
._.


S
om


zum
m


tzo
S


om
am


aoéao
m


a
S


om
aoaoém


o
F


".
S


%
_$>


>


em
asoo o_%


oa_.§m
.83


£32
osom


m 2.oo“§5o
8_aow


x$_o
___s_..o as


-
>


>
o<


§.3eoo


>
._w


=
.=


.:3W_m
o_um


_uS
m


A
G


EN
D


A ITEM
 #F.


Payroll and Benefit AC
H


 Paym
ents in the Am


ount of $243,797.07 (Audit C
om


...
Page 109 of 131







Payment Approval Confirmation


Company: City of MillCreek
Requester: Kottke, Sandy
Run Date: 03/08/2018 6:41:16 PM CST


Domestic High Value (Wire)
Payment Category:Urgent/Wire


BankofAmerica”}(
MerrillLynch


Status: Processing by Bank Template Name: MATRIXIMEBT
Transaction Number: 1838|3734AWO0E55 Template Code: VVILTRUST


Debit Account Information


Debit Bank: ‘
Debit Account: E


Debit Account Name: Treas Checking
Debit Currency: USD


Bene?ciary Details


Beneficiary Name: MATRIXTRUST COMPANY Bene?ciary Account: 3
Bene?ciary Address: NA Bene?ciary Bank ID: —


Bene?ciary City: NA
Bene?ciary Postal Code: NA


Bene?ciary Country: US - United States of America


Bene?ciary Email:


JPMORGANCHASEBANK, NA
1111 POLARIS PKWY
COLUMBUS
US - UnitedStates of America


Bene?ciary Mobile Number:


Payment Details


Credit Currency: USD Value Date: 03/09/2018
Credit Amount: 27,221.34


Optional Information


Sender's Reference Number: CITYMILLCREEK Beneficiary Information: City of MillCreek n3177e


Additional Routing


Intermediary Bank ID: Receiver Information:


Control Infonnation


Input: sankottke Input Time: 03/08/2018 6:37:45 PM CST
Approved: sankottke Time: 03/08/2018 6:41:03 PM CST


AGENDA ITEM #F.


Payroll and Benefit ACH Payments in the Amount of $243,797.07 (Audit Com... Page 110 of 131







Payment Approval Confirmation


Company: City of MillCreek
Requester: Kottke, Sandy
Run Date: 03/08/2018 6:41:16 PM CST


Domestic High Value (Wire)
Payment Categoryzurgentlwire


Status:
Transaction Number:


DebitAccount Information


Processing by Bank
1838|3325F3M1Y87


Debit Bank: «unease:
Debit Account: sum


Bank ofAmerica
MerrillLynch


Template Name: ICMA457 Plan
Template Code: ICMA


Debit Account Name: Treas Checking
Debit Currency: USD


Bene?ciary Details


Bene?ciary Name: ICMARC Bene?ciary Account: —
Beneficiary Address: P.O. Box 64553 Beneficiary Bank ID:—


Bene?ciary City: Baltimore MANUFACTURERSAND TRADERS TR C
Beneficiary Postal Code: 21264-4553 ONE MANDT PLAZA.15TH FL


Bene?ciary Country: US - United States of America BUFFALO
US - United States of America


Beneficiary Email:
Beneficiary Mobile Number:


Payment Details


Credit Currency: USD Value Date: 03/09/2018
Credit Amount: 1,076.51


Optional Information


sender's Reference Number: 302029 Beneficiary Information: City of MillCreek 302029


Additional Routing


lntennediary Bank ID: Receiver Information:


Control information


Input: sankottke Input Time: 03/08/2018 6:33:32 PM CST
Approved: sankottke Time: 03/08/2018 6:41:03 PM CST


AGENDA ITEM #F.


Payroll and Benefit ACH Payments in the Amount of $243,797.07 (Audit Com... Page 111 of 131







RptBatchSumViewFonn Page 1 of 1


ACH Cash Pro Online Report Date: 03/08/2018


City of MillCreek Report Time: 06:30:13 PM


Batch Summary Report by IDNumber


Company Name: City of Mill01 Effective Date: 03l09I2018


ACH ID: 2911225895 Batch Sequence: 1


Application Name: CCD Payments and Collections Database Name: BAC


Batch Status: Released Created By: SANKOTTKE


Released By: SANKOTTKE


@Name Q Amount _l1(_3_Bank ID Account # T 3
Trace #


BAC EENEHTADM“
$1,012.05 c ?at R c


Total Amount in Batch Total Count in Batch


Debits $0.00 0


Credits $1.012.05 1


Prenotes $0.00 0


Grand Total Amount Grand Total Count


Debits $0.00 0


Credits $1 .012.05 1


Prenotes $0.00 0


https://cpo-ach.bankofamerica.com/wcmpr/rptbatchsumviewforrn.jsp?source=BATCHSUM...3/8/2018


AGENDA ITEM #F.


Payroll and Benefit ACH Payments in the Amount of $243,797.07 (Audit Com... Page 112 of 131







:ayment(AppfrIo|l;a(lConfirmation BankofAmerica 4?
ompany. Ity o l ree errl" Lynch


Requester: Kottke, Sandy
Run Date: 03/08/2018 6:41:16 PM CST


Domestic High Value (Wire)
Payment Categoryzurgent/Wire


Status: Processing by Bank Template Name: GUILD DUES
Transaction Number: 1838l3200AT00|88 Template Code: GUILD


Debit Account information


Debit BankzaDebit Account:
Debit Account Name: Treas Checking


Debit Currency: USD


Beneficiary Details


Beneficiary Name: MillCreek Police Of?cer Guild Bene?ciary Account: aBene?ciary Address: PO Box 13261 Beneficiary Bank ID:
Beneficiary City: MillCreek BANKOF AMERICA, NA


Beneficiary Postal Code: 98082 1424 164TH ST SW
Beneficiary Country: US - United States of America LYNNWOOD


US - United States of America
Beneficiary Email:


Beneficiary Mobile Number:


Payment Details


Credit Currency: USD Value Date: 03/09/2018
Credit Amount: 2,140.00


Optional lnforrnation


Sender's Reference Number: Police Guild Beneficiary Information: Police Guild Dues DirectDeposit


Additional Routing


Intermediary Bank ID: Receiver Information:


Control Information


Input: sankottke input Time: 03/08/2018 6:32:20 PM CST
Approved: sankottke Time: 03/08/2018 6:41:03 PM CST


AGENDA ITEM #F.


Payroll and Benefit ACH Payments in the Amount of $243,797.07 (Audit Com... Page 113 of 131







February 13, 2018 REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 


 


MINUTES 


City Council Regular Meeting 


6:00 PM - Tuesday, February 13, 2018 


Council Chambers, 15728 Main Street, Mill Creek, WA 98012 


  


  Minutes are the official record of Mill Creek City Council meetings. Minutes document 
action taken at the council meeting, not what was said at the council meeting. 


 


A recording of this City Council meeting can be found here. Due to technical 
difficulties, this is only a partial recording.  


  


The agenda packet for this City Council meeting can be found here. 
 


CALL TO ORDER 
 
 Mayor Pruitt called the meeting of the Mill Creek City Council to order at 6:00 p.m. and 


led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 


PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 


ROLL CALL 
 


Councilmembers Present: 


Pam Pruitt, Mayor 


Brian Holtzclaw, Mayor Pro Tem 


Vince Cavaleri, Councilmember 


Mike Todd, Councilmember 


Mark Bond, Councilmember 


Jared Mead, Councilmember 


John Steckler, Councilmember 


Councilmembers Absent: 


  


  


  


  


  


  


  
 


AUDIENCE COMMUNICATION 
 


A. Herbie Martin, a Mill Creek resident, stated that he would like to see Black History 
Month celebrated throughout the City and would like the City to create a diversity 
committee. 


  


Rick Dewitt, a Mill Creek resident and former Washington State Democratic Party 
Committee Member, stated that he would like to see gender equality among 
councilmembers.  


  


Jeff Schumacher, who lives in unincorporated Snohomish County, addressed Council 
seeking consideration to annex areas west of the City.  


 


PRESENTATIONS 
 


B. Red Cross Chapter Impact Report  


 


Red Cross Community Outreach Co-chair Dan Limberg briefed Council on his 


AGENDA ITEM #G.


City Council Meeting Minutes of February 13, 2018 Page 114 of 131



http://cityofmillcreek.com/UserFiles/Servers/Server_9100852/File/Agendas%20and%20Minutes/Audio%20Recordings/2018/Audio%202.13.mp3

https://millcreek.civicweb.net/filepro/documents/23053?preview=23426





 


 


 


February 13, 2018 REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 


personal history and involvement with Red Cross and gave a high level overview of 
what the Red Cross does on a national level. Mr. Limberg introduced Chapter 
Executive Director Chuck Morrison who reviewed the organization's mission of 
preventing and relieving suffering locally and around the world through their key 
services. Mr. Morrison stated that the Snohomish County Chapter would like to partner 
with the City by providing education and training on "hands only" CPR at community 
events.   


C. Farmers Market Programming 


 


City Manager Rebecca Polizzotto described how the farmers market coincides with 
the Council's vision for the community and goal of civic engagement that also feeds 
into the City's tourism strategy.  


  


City Manager Polizzotto introduced Recreation & Tourism Manager Brian Davern who 
led Council through a PowerPoint presentation that reviewed the history, goals, 
details, operations and next steps for the farmers market.   


D. Long Term Strategic Planning  


 


City Manager Rebecca Polizzotto led Council through a PowerPoint presentation that 
detailed a long term strategic planning process that is integrated into the City's 
business systems and links the Council's goals and objectives. City Manager 
Polizzotto described the next steps in the process and provided each Councilmember 
with a Council Planning Workbook as "homework" to be prepared for the upcoming 
long term strategic planning study sessions.  


 


STUDY SESSION 
 


E. Audit Recommendations  


• Business Expense Policy  


• Cash Receipting Procedures  


 


City Manager Rebecca Polizzotto introduced Director of Finance Peggy Lauerman 
and together they reviewed a proposed Business Expense Policy that aligns with the 
City's ongoing effort to implement new legal requirements; address audit 
recommendations; update, modernize and adopt important operational policies and 
municipal code provisions; and create reliable and efficient internal processes for 
recurrent actions. Council engaged in discussion. The policy will be brought back for 
ratification at a later date.  


  


Director of Finance Peggy Lauerman reviewed the 2015 State Auditor's Office (SAO) 
internal control recommendation with respect to cash receipting procedures and 
subsequent analysis and recommendation of the staff to decline the recommendation. 
The staff's recommendation is consistent with best practices in municipal finance 
administration. The Council did not object to staff's recommendation.  


 


CONSENT AGENDA 
 


F. Approval of Checks #58004 through #58187 and ACH Wire Transfers in the Amount 
of $853,884.19 


(Audit Committee: Councilmember Cavaleri and Mayor Pro Tem Holtzclaw)  


AGENDA ITEM #G.


City Council Meeting Minutes of February 13, 2018 Page 115 of 131



https://millcreek.civicweb.net/document/23678/Handout%202-13-18%20-%20Council%20Workbook_Strategic%20Planning_Annual%20Goal%20Setting.pdf





 


 


 


February 13, 2018 REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 


G. Payroll and Benefit ACH Payments in the Amount of $297,933.94 


(Audit Committee: Councilmember Cavaleri and Mayor Pro Tem Holtzclaw)  
H. City Council Meeting Minutes of January 9, 2018 


 


Councilmember Cavaleri made a motion to approve the consent agenda. Mayor 
Pro Tem seconded the motion. The motion passed unanimously.   


 


REPORTS 
 


I. Mayor/Council 


  


Mayor Pruitt reported that she has been added to the Study Committee to look at 
merging SERS and Snohomish County 911. Mayor Pruitt also reported that candidate 
interviews for the agency's Executive Director are being held on February 14.  


  


Mayor Pro Tem Holtzclaw reported that the Snohomish County Tomorrow Steering 
Committee recommended against adopting the Countywide Planning Policy (CPP).  


  


Mayor Pro Tem Holtzclaw reported that Mill Creek Little League President Robert 
Allen will be working with City Manager Rebecca Polizzotto and Recreation and 
Tourism Manager Brian Davern to apply for the small capital project grant through 
Snohomish County.  


  


Mayor Pro Tem Holtzclaw reported that Canyon Creek Church is building a new 
location adjacent to Cougar Park and is interested in working with the City on future 
park planning.  


  


Councilmember Todd reported that PRSC will be holding a Vision 2050 listening 
session on February 22.   


J. City Manager 


• AWC Legislative Summary 


• Labor Management Meeting Minutes 


• City Connections  


• 2018 Community Events Calendar 


• Council Planning Schedule 


  


City Manager Polizzotto reported that the legislative tracker created weekly by staff 
will be replaced by the AWC legislative bulletin, which will be handed out at Council 
meetings as AWC publishes the bulletins on Mondays.  


  


City Manager Polizzotto reviewed the February labor management meeting minutes 
and stated that the police guild will begin monthly labor management meetings in 
March.   


  


City Manager Polizzotto introduced Director of Communications & Marketing Joni Kirk 
who reported on the City's new quarterly publication, City Connection.  


  


Director of Communications & Marketing Joni Kirk reviewed the 2018 community 


AGENDA ITEM #G.


City Council Meeting Minutes of February 13, 2018 Page 116 of 131



https://millcreek.civicweb.net/document/23679/2-13-18%20Handout%20-%20AWC%20Legislative%20Bulletin.pdf





 


 


 


February 13, 2018 REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 


events calendar that includes 17 City-produced events.  


  


City Manager Polizzotto reviewed the Council Planning Schedule.  


 
 


AUDIENCE COMMUNICATION 
 


K. Barbara Heidel, a Mill Creek resident, stated that she is looking forward to the farmers 
market, that she enjoyed the first edition of City Connection, and complimented 
Director of Communications & Marketing Director Joni Kirk for making the Senior 
Focus Group such a positive experience.  


 


RECESS TO EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 
 (Confidential Session of the Council) 
 


L. The meeting recessed to executive session at 8:25 p.m. for up to 30 minutes.  


  


• Review negotiations on the performance of a publicly bid contract per RCW 
42.30.110 (1)(d) 


  


No action was taken.  
 


RECONVENE TO REGULAR SESSION 
 


M. The meeting reconvened to regular session at 8:55 p.m.  
 


ADJOURNMENT 
 
 With no objection, Mayor Pruitt adjourned the meeting at 8:55 p.m. 


 


Pam Pruitt, Mayor 


Gina Pfister, Acting City Clerk 


 


AGENDA ITEM #G.


City Council Meeting Minutes of February 13, 2018 Page 117 of 131







To: Planning Advisory Committee members


From: Clay White, Principal Planner — LDC Inc.


Date: January 7"‘,2018


RE: January 11"‘,2018 PAC meeting - CPP amendments


At the November29"‘,2017 Snohomish County Tomorrow (SCT) Steering Committee meeting, the
Committee was briefed on the proposed amendmentsto Countywide Planning Policy DP-3 (the “swap
policy”), which the Plamiing Advisory Committee (PAC) previously recommendedfor adoption. It is
anticipated the Steering Committee will make a formal recommendation on that policy at their January
24"‘meeting.


At the November 27"‘meeting, the Steering Committee also discussedan additionalproposednew policy
“DP-2X”. The PAC discussed DP-2X during their September meeting but did not ultimately make a
recommendationother than the changes to DP-3. However, the Steering Committee formally voted on
November 27"‘to refer proposed new policy DP-2X to the PAC to provide a recommendationfor the
Steering Committee’s considerationinconjunction with the changes to DP-3.


As you may remember, policy DP-2X was ?rst drafted with the hope that any comments from the PAC
could be inserted for the Steering Comrnittee’sconsiderationand recommendation.Having discussedthis
proposed policy with many of you and listened to your comments, I have put together a revised version of
policy, which may be helpful during your discussion. The updatedversion of policy DP-2X is intended to


be a stand-alonepolicyand is now referred to as proposed policy “DP-2A.”


Below in this memo I outline three things:


0 Why the new policy DP-2A is important; -


0 Provide originally drafted language of policy DP-2X as referred by the Steering Committee to


PAC; and
0 Provide the proposedpolicy DP-2A language to address comments received from PAC members.


1) Policy overview — why this is important


The current CPPs provide no policy optionsfor the County to address real plamiing issues that arise
around Urban Growth Area (UGA) boundaries. This includes issues like either a UGA boundary that does
not have an identi?able physical boundary as requiredby policy DP-le, or an area currently outsidea


UGA where plarmedurban public facility improvements will alter the character of the areaso that it
would no longer be rural in character.


The real issue is that over the past 25 years the CPP policies have continued to make it more dif?cult for a


UGA boundary to change. While I agree it is generallygood to not make it too easy to expandUGA
boundaries, the pendulumhas swung so far that the countyand its cities have no ?exibility to address real
issues that result from growth and inhibit the county’s ability to actually manage that growth. Further,
CPP policies were previously tightened to make the ability to expand/adjust UGA boundaries even more


restrictive. This for all intents and purposes “locked in” the current UGA boundaries. However, while
the policies were made more restrictive there was no formal process identi?ed to insure current UGA


boundarieswould work in perpetuity to manage and accommodate projected growth. This has left us with
small areas where the current UGA boundaries are simply not working but the county lacks the tools in
the CPPs for how to deal with these unique circumstances.


1


AGENDA ITEM #H.


Mayor/Council Mayor Pro Tem Holtzclaw - CPP Amendments Page 118 of 131







Currently, unless it is determined that the county needsadditional populationcapacity during a


ComprehensivePlan update, it is virtually impossibleto modify a UGA boundary that adds any


population capacity. Under the current Regional Growth Strategy, that may not occur for decades.
Further, if there was a small capacity shortfall at some point in the future, any city even attempting to


make small UGA adjustments would be competing against other cities trying to do the same thing. Even


if it is just to correct a boundary that does not meet other CPP policies.Therefore, without policies that
provide options and tools to all cities and the county, there is no option to addresseven common-sense


issues. That is simply not what the GMA intended.Addressingthis issue now allows these policies to be
in place as the County approaches the next Comprehensive Plan update.


Both the original DP-2X and the revised DP-2A (see both below) were carefully constructed to only allow
UGA adjustments where there is a clear issue and problem to solve. The policy, as revised in DP-2A,
carmot be used for UGA expansions that are not warranted or speci?cally focused on resolving a UGA


boundary problem. The changesbeing proposedfor the PAC’s considerationare based upon
conversation with many of you individually and to address your comments and questions.


2) Policy as referred by the SCT Steering Committee (policy DP-2X)


PROPOSED NEW CPP DP-2X: A minor expansion of the boundary of an individual
UGA to include additional residential, commercial, or industrialland capacity, shall be
compliant with the Growth Management Act and Countywide Plarming Policy DP-la
shall not apply when:


a. The currentboundary of the UGA within the minor expansionarea does
not meet DP-le and an identi?able physical boundary is feasible; and


b. The current boundary of the UGA within the minor expansion area does
not have unique topographicaland natural features to delineate and de?ne the boundary
as described in DP-le; and


c. The proposed boundary uses topographic or natural features in order to


provide distinct edge between urban and rural land as described in DP-1h; or


d. The area within the proposedminor UGA expansion area is currently or
will be impactedby public facility improvements,such as road improvements,that
provide signi?cant access and connectivity between urban areas; and


e. The proposedpublic facility improvements will alter the character of the
neighborhood so that it is no longer rural in nature.


3) Proposed policy revisions for the PAC’s Consideration to consider (policy DP-2A)


PROPOSED NEW CPP DP-2A: Following consultationwith the affected city or cities,
the County may approve a minor expansionof the boundary of an individual UGA to


include additional residential, commercial, or industrial land capacity, as necessary to


address unique circumstances ‘regardingeither (i) UGA boundaries that do not comply
with adopted policies, or (ii) rural territory affectedby public facility improvements.
Such an expansion may be permittedwhere consistent with adopted policies and where


the County Council ?nds that:


AGENDA ITEM #H.


Mayor/Council Mayor Pro Tem Holtzclaw - CPP Amendments Page 119 of 131







a. One of the following conditions exists:


.
1.


"


The current boundary of the UGA either does not have an
identi?able physical boundary consistent with policy DP-1e or does not have unique
topographical and natural features to delineateand de?ne the boundary as described in
policy DP-1e, and in either situation the proposedminor UGA expansion includes the
minimum amount of territory necessary to result in an identi?able physical boundary
consistent with policy DP-le; or


2. (i) The territory within the proposed minor UGA expansion area
either currently or in the ?iture will be impacted by current or planned public facility
improvements (such as road improvements) that will provide signi?cant access and
connectivity between urban areas; and (ii) the proposed public facility improvements will
alter the character of the neighborhood so that it is no longer rural in nature; and


b. The proposed minor UGA expansion area is adjacent to territory already
characterizedby urban growth; and


c. The proposed minor UGA expansion is not opposed by the city or cities
whose UGA will be expandedby the minor expansion.


A minor UGA expansion pursuant to this policy need not be either the result of the most
recent buildable lands review and evaluationrequired by RCW 36.70A.215 or supported
by a land capacity analysis adoptedby the County Council pursuant to RCW 36.7OA.110.


AGENDA ITEM #H.


Mayor/Council Mayor Pro Tem Holtzclaw - CPP Amendments Page 120 of 131







\ MINUTES


E) AFSCME Labor Management Monthly Meeting


L‘|1\'Or Z—_,.
NMillffeek


WASHINGTON


Thursday, March 1st, 2018, 9:00 am.
Executive Conference Room, City Hall South


ATTENDANCE


AFSCME MANAGEMENT
Kim Mason-Hatt Rebecca Polizzotto
Jodie Gunderson Charlie Miller


ABSENT NOTE TAKER
Matt Miller Charlie Miller
Christi Amrine
Chris Risen


OLD BUSINESS


AFSCME requested an update on point 5 from the last meeting:


5. The City will be updating the job description and doing a compensation analysis
for the position currently held by Chris Risen as Property Technician.


The City Manager advised that a permanent decision regarding supervision of records staff had
not yet been made and would most likely not be made until later in the year when the budget
process was further along. However, the City is reviewing the records technician job
descriptions in conjunction with its review and update of the property technician job description.
These job descriptions will be reviewed at the next labor/management meeting.


NEW BUSINESS


No agenda items were set prior to the meeting.


1. The Union requested a bulletin board for the City Hall North building. The City Manager
approved the bulletin board idea and the Union is planning to measure the wall in an
appropriate employee area to see what size bulletin board would be needed.


The City Manager proposed the creation of an employee lounge in the City Hall North
building as a future project after the Senior Center changes locations. The Union is
supportive of this idea and it was decided that Kim, Jodie, and Charlie would take a look
at the available space and come up with a recommendation on what to include in this
lounge. The City and the Union would like to partner on more projects like this in the
future to foster a positive Union/Management relationship.


The Union brought up that they appreciated the ‘heads-up’ notice received for a recent
employee discipline issue, and that Matt Miller would be present at that meeting to help
coach Kim in her role as a Union Representative in these meetings.


AGENDA ITEM #I.


City Manager Labor Management Meeting Minutes 35th Ave SE Preliminary Co... Page 121 of 131







Page |2


4. The City Manager asked the Union if they found that these monthly meetings were
useful, and the Union agreed that they did.


5. The City Manager asked if the Union was aware of any Department Complaints or
concerns that she needed to be aware of or that needed to be discussed. The Union
said that they were not.


ADJOURNMENT


The meeting adjourned at 10:00 am.


ason-Hatt, President AFSCME


of? '


Rebecca Polizzotto, City Man


AGENDA ITEM #I.


City Manager Labor Management Meeting Minutes 35th Ave SE Preliminary Co... Page 122 of 131







 


Preliminary 35
th


 Ave Reconstruction 


Communications Plan - Spring 2018 


 
Summary 
35th Avenue SE is a three-lane minor arterial that carries approximately 15,000 vehicles per 
day. The road was widened by Snohomish County in 2003 by using lightweight fill on top of a 
large peat deposit, and has been continually settling since annexation by the City in 2005. The 
City monitors more than 100 points along the roadway on a six-month basis. The rate of 
settlement has slowed, but portions of the road have settled by over two feet in the past 14 
years.  
 
The City is undertaking a reconstruction project to fix the road between 141st Street SE and 
144th Street SE to eliminate flooding and associated road closures. Reconstruction is projected 
to begin in early spring 2018 and is expected to take eight months. 
 
Work includes driving approximately 500 pin-piles through the peat into good bearing soil, 
constructing a concrete slab on top of the pilings, and then reconstructing and elevating the 
roadway on top of lightweight concrete fill. The project will raise the road elevation up to four 
feet above the existing roadway elevation. The project also includes installing a 24-inch pipe 
above the existing Penny Creek culverts to increase water conveyance capacity under the road 
during large rainfall events.  
 
Construction may occur between 7 a.m. and 9 p.m. Monday through Friday, or between 8 a.m. 
and 9 p.m. on weekends. Equipment is anticipated to run during normal working hours of 7 
a.m. to 7 p.m. Monday through Friday for the majority of the project. 
 
The total cost is estimated at approximately $6.469 million. The State has included a $5.25 
million funding package for this project that became available in 2017. The remaining funding 
will be provided through the City’s Real Estate Excise Tax Fund. 
 


Target Audiences 
The target audiences for 35th Avenue Reconstruction project communications include: 
 


 Those Mill Creek residents who live in proximity to the construction zone and/or detour 
routes who will be most significantly impacted. 
 


 Drivers who use 35th Avenue for daily travel. 
 


 People who live or work in and immediately around Mill Creek who will be impacted by 
this project and other summer construction work. 
 


 Partners at other Snohomish County and King County agencies whose work may be 
impacted by this project. 


 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM #I.


City Manager Labor Management Meeting Minutes 35th Ave SE Preliminary Co... Page 123 of 131







P a g e  | 2 


 


Key Messages 
Key messages for the 35th Avenue Reconstruction project include: 
 


 This is a significant infrastructure project for Mill Creek that will improve the roadway 
and eliminate disruptive road closures. 
 


 The roadway will be closed for approximately eight months. Know the official detour 
routes and be respectful of our quiet, slow-traffic neighborhoods. 
 


 The project will generate noise for an extended period as more than 500 pin-piles are 
installed. Take steps now to help reduce noise in your own home. 
 


 Once the road is reconstructed, it will still be normal to experience some puddling of 
water; however, this will not require road closures. 
 


 If you have questions about the project work, there are many ways to get information. 
Start at www.cityofmillcreek.com/35thReconstruction.  


 
 


Preparatory Work 
By March 23, complete the following preparatory work. These items would continue to be 
updated throughout the project. 
 


1. Project Web Page: Update the project web page with additional details.  
 


2. Fact Sheet: Create project fact sheet to distribute at open houses and other meetings. 
 


3. Talking Points: Develop talking points about the 35th Avenue Reconstruction Project, 
and distribute to staff who would receive questions about it.  
 
Talking points would include: 


 The need for reconstruction. 
 This is a full road closure for an extended period of time. 


 Noise impacts and hours of construction. 
 Detour route and definition of “local traffic.” 


 
4. FAQs: Prepare answers to frequently asked questions. Post on the website and provide 


to staff. Also provide direction as to what to do when they get stumped. 
 


5. E-Notify Lists on Website: The e-notify lists would be opt-in, and would be used to 
distribute timely project information. 
 


6. Project Flyers: Create project flyers with key details. Post flyers in Mill Creek Town 
Center, at the Library, in the MCCA newsletter, at the YMCA, and in other key locations. 
 


7. Project Phone Line: Set up an designated project phone line that will be answered by 
Gina Hortillosa or Kamal Mahmoud during working hours. It also will have pre-recorded 
messages with current project information, and the capability for people to leave 
voicemails with questions to which the City will respond.  


AGENDA ITEM #I.


City Manager Labor Management Meeting Minutes 35th Ave SE Preliminary Co... Page 124 of 131



http://www.cityofmillcreek.com/35thReconstruction





P a g e  | 3 


 


 
8. Area Images: Gather images from the impacted area along 35th Avenue, including 


during flooding, to provide to media upon request.  
 


9. Project Area Map: Develop an updated project map to use for meetings. This would 
also showcase detour routes. 
 


10. Audio of Pile Driving: Secure an audio file of pile driving that can be used for 
community awareness.  
 


11. List of Traffic Abatement Resources: Develop a list of all traffic abatement 
resources that will be used during the project and deployment dates, including electronic 
and static signage with detour routes, “no outlet” and “local access only” signage for 
impacted neighborhoods, digital speed feedback signs, speed bumps, and police 
presence. In addition, the City is exploring opportunity to partner with Waze to “block 
off” side roads in Mill Creek to deter people from using them as detour routes.  


 
 


Outreach 
Throughout the project, staff will continuously review messages the public is receiving and 
reactions, and revise communications as needed. 
 


Communications M A M J J A S O N D J 


Council Updates 


 Provide an update to the City Council on the project 
by February 27.  


 Present bid award at the April 10 meeting.  
 Provide regular updates throughout the project 


duration. 
 


• •  •   •   •  


Partner Outreach 


 Have meetings with the City of Everett, SnoFire 7, 
Everett Public Schools, Waste Management and 
other partners by March 23 to share information 
about the project and impacts in south Everett. 


 Have a mid-season check-in with partners to 
determine if there are any changes that can impact 
either party and/or their customers. 
 


• •    •      


Impacted Neighborhood Outreach 


 By March 30, have a meeting with HOA leaders in 
the impacted neighborhoods, including North Pointe, 
Highland Trails, Webster’s Pond, Silver Glen and 
Silver Crest. The purpose would be to provide initial 
information about the project, understand questions 
they have, and discuss the City’s communications 
plans so they can help share them with their 
neighborhoods. 


• •        • • 


AGENDA ITEM #I.


City Manager Labor Management Meeting Minutes 35th Ave SE Preliminary Co... Page 125 of 131







P a g e  | 4 


 


Communications M A M J J A S O N D J 


Impacted Neighborhood Outreach (Cont.) 


 By April 12, the City should write a letter to the 
residents of the impacted neighborhoods to notify 
them that a contractor has been awarded the project 
and that neighborhood meeting will occur on April 
26. 


 Hold a meeting on April 26 to discuss the 
contractor’s timeline, provide other project 
information, and answer questions. 


 As needed, schedule neighborhood meetings to 
share current project information. 


 Following the reconstruction project’s completion, 
schedule a meeting with at least the HOA leadership 
of impacted neighborhoods to obtain their feedback 
on the process and ways the City can improve for 
future projects. 


 


 •        • • 


Community Open House 


 Have an open house at City Hall North, Large 
Community Room, on April 12 from 5:30-7:30 p.m. 
that highlights all the construction projects occurring 
in spring/summer 2018 and have other jurisdictions 
on hand to share information about their projects. 


 •          


Press Releases 


 Distribute press release to local media on April 11 
about selection of 35th Avenue Reconstruction 
contractor and informing residents in impacted 
neighborhoods of the neighborhood meeting on April 
26. Post on social media. 


 After the pre-construction meeting has taken place, 
distribute a press release that shares the project 
timeline, including when the road closure will 
commence and detour routes. 


• •        •  


Social Media Posts 
 Post when the road is about to close. 
 Share detour routes and “be nice” reminders, and 


signal the police presence.  
 Post frequent reminders throughout the construction 


period about detour routes, what is not considered a 
detour route, and how to be good neighbors. 


• • • • • • • • • • • 


Posting Flyers 


 Project flyers would be posted in Mill Creek Town 
Center, at the Library, in the MCCA newsletter, at the 
YMCA, and in other key locations for announcements 
such as the community open house, when the road 
will be closed and as needed throughout the project. 


 


 • •   •   •   


AGENDA ITEM #I.


City Manager Labor Management Meeting Minutes 35th Ave SE Preliminary Co... Page 126 of 131







P a g e  | 5 


 


Communications M A M J J A S O N D J 


Business and School Outreach 
 Provide notification of the road closure and detour 


routes via letter to businesses along 35th Avenue and 
to nearby schools by April 20. Include flyers that 
they can post to help spread the word. 


• •    •    •  


Focus Group Updates 
 Share update with the Neighborhood Focus Group at 


its meetings on April 19, in July, and in October. 
 Share update with the Senior Center Focus Group at 


its meetings on May 8, in August, and in November. 


 • •  • •  • •   


Business and Community Assoc. Outreach 


 Share updates periodically with the Mill Creek 
Business Association at its monthly lunches and with 
MCCA at its monthly board meetings. 


 • •   •    •  


E-Notifications 


 The e-notify lists would be opt-in, and would be used 
to distribute timely project information.  


• • • • • • • • • • • 


Telephone Call-in Line 


 A designated project telephone line will be manned 
during business hours, and will have current project 
messages and be updated at least on a weekly basis 
through the duration of the project.  


• • • • • • • • • • • 


Groundbreaking Ceremony 


 Hold a ground-breaking ceremony for the project 
with VIPs including Legislative delegation, County 
Councilmembers, Economic Alliance Snohomish 
County, Snohomish County Public Works, impacted 
neighborhood residents, and key City staff. Invite the 
media to cover the event. Post recap on social 
media. 


 •          


City Connection Articles 
 By editorial deadline of April 20, provide an article on 


the construction and timeline. The issue will hit 
mailboxes beginning May 14. 


 By editorial deadline of July 6, provide an article with 
a construction update. The issue will hit mailboxes 
beginning July 30. 


 By editorial deadline of Oct. 10, provide an article 
with a construction update. The issue will hit 
mailboxes beginning Nov. 1. 


  •   •   •   


AGENDA ITEM #I.


City Manager Labor Management Meeting Minutes 35th Ave SE Preliminary Co... Page 127 of 131







P a g e  | 6 


 


Communications M A M J J A S O N D J 


Virtual Meetings 


 Hold two virtual meetings in April.  
 Hold periodic virtual meetings to share project 


updates; use the information for social media posts. 


 •  •  •  •    


Ribbon-Cutting Ceremony 


 Hold a ribbon-cutting ceremony to reopen the road 
once construction is complete. Have HOA presidents 
from Highland Trails and North Pointe, the most 
impacted neighborhoods, cut the ribbon. Invite VIPS 
and the media to attend. Following the event, 
distribute a press release and photo that shares 
project successes. Thank the community for their 
patience during construction. Post on social media. 


          • 


 
 
 
 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM #I.


City Manager Labor Management Meeting Minutes 35th Ave SE Preliminary Co... Page 128 of 131







 


Tentative Council Meeting Agendas 
Subject to change without notice 


Last updated: March 23, 2018 
 


 


April 3, 2018 


 Snohomish County Update – Dave Somers 


 Work Session: Long Term Planning 


o Long Term Planning 


 Senior Center Contract Renewal – 2018 


 Presentation: Chief for a Day 


 Update - Exploration Park Project 


o Addendum: Design Services 


o Construction Mgmt Contract 


o Cost Estimates 


o Schedule 


 


April 10, 2018 


(Agenda Summary due March 27) 


 WRIA 8 ILA 


 Work Session: 


o Code Revision - Repeal of Board of 


Appeals/Adjustment 


o Administrative approval of long plats 


 35
th


 Construction Project 


o Bid Award 


o Communications Plan 


 Reports 


o Labor Management Minutes 


 


 


April 24, 2018 


(Agenda Summary due April 10) 


 Exploration Park 


o Bid Award 


o Communications Plan 


 Reports 


o Quarterly Financial Report 


 


May 1, 2018 


(Agenda Summary due April 17) 


 Presentation: EGUV Development Agreement  


 Beaver Management Plan 


 


May 8, 2018 


(Agenda Summary due April 24) 


 Presentation: Website Update – 6 Month  


Check In 


 Presentation: Sports Tourism Feasibility Study 


 Reports 


o Memorial Day Update 


 


MARCH 
Sun Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat 


        1  2  3  


       


4  5  6  7  8  9  10  


       


11  12  13  14  15  16  17  


       


18  19  20  21  22  23  24  


       


25  26  27  28  29  30  31  


       


APRIL 
Sun Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat 


1  2  3  4  5  6  7  


       


8  9  10  11  12  13  14  


       


15  16  17  18  19  20  21  


       


22  23  24  25  26  27  28  


       


29  30            


       


MAY 
Sun Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat 


    1  2  3  4  5  


       


6  7  8  9  10  11  12  


       


13  14  15  16  17  18  19  


       


20  21  22  23  24  25  26  


       


27  28  29  30  31      


       


Council 


Council 


Council 


Council 


Council 


Council 


Council 


Council 


Council 


AGENDA ITEM #I.


City Manager Labor Management Meeting Minutes 35th Ave SE Preliminary Co... Page 129 of 131







 


 


May 22, 2018 


(Agenda Summary due May 8) 


 Check Presentation: AWC Scholarship Nominee 


 Work Session: 


o HR Policies – Chapter 6 (Leave) 


 


June 12, 2018 


(Agenda Summary due May 29) 


 Long term planning impacts from Paine Field 


commercial flights. 


 


 


Work in Progress – Upcoming Agenda Items 


 Personnel Policies and Procedures 


 Freedom Field Grant Contract 


 Freedom Field Construction Contract 


 Budget Calendar 


o CIP Policies 


o Financial Policies 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


JUNE 
Sun Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat 


          1  2  


       


3  4  5  6  7  8  9  


       


10  11  12  13  14  15  16  


       


17  18  19  20  21  22  23  


       


24  25  26  27  28  29  30  


       


JULY 
Sun Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat 


1  2  3  4  5  6  7  


       


8  9  10  11  12  13  14  


       


15  16  17  18  19  20  21  


       


22  23  24  25  26  27  28  


       


29  30  31  27  28  29  30  


       


AUGUST 
Sun Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat 


      1  2  3  4  


       


5  6  7  8  9  10  11  


       


12  13  14  15  16  17  18  


       


19  20  21  22  23  24  25  


       


26  27  28  29  30  31    


       


Council 


Council 


Council 


Council 


Council 


Council 


AGENDA ITEM #I.


City Manager Labor Management Meeting Minutes 35th Ave SE Preliminary Co... Page 130 of 131







 


 


 


Possible Work Session Topics for Discussion 


 Parking Codes 


 Business signs  


 MCCA storm water discussions  


 Sports Fields 


 Repair Issues 


 Utility Project Management  


 Review of Criminal Justice Costs/Alternatives 


 Status update on County’s SHR project 


 128
th


 St as an ST3 Station 


 Issues re: no parking on sidewalks 


 Development Projects in Progress  


 Hotel/Motel Theater Tax  


 Resort Fees  


 Partnerships with Everett School District  


 Development code change to allow 


redevelopment along Mill Creek Blvd/North 


Creek   


 Council Chambers Configuration 


 


AGENDA ITEM #I.


City Manager Labor Management Meeting Minutes 35th Ave SE Preliminary Co... Page 131 of 131





		Agenda

		B. Long Term Strategic Planning

		C. PRA Rules & Policy - Ordinance to Adopt - Ordinance to Update Fees

		D. Adoption of New Ordinance Approving New City Policy Regarding Reimbursement of Business Expenses

		E. Check Vouchers

		F. Payroll Vouchers

		G. Minutes 2-13-18

		H. Report - CPP Amendments

		I. Labor Management Meeting Minutes - March 2018

		I. 35th Ave Communications Plan

		I. Council Planning Schedule




